
  March 8, 2021, Meeting 

 
 

EUGENE CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
March 8, 2021 
 

 
7:30 p.m.  CITY COUNCIL MEETING  
   Due to Governor Kate Brown’s Stay Home, Save Lives Executive Order to combat the   

spread of Covid-19, this meeting will be held remotely using virtual meeting 
technology. Information about online or other options for access and participation will 
be available at https://www.eugene-or.gov/3360/Webcasts-and-Meeting-Materials 

 
 

Meeting of March 8, 2021;  
Her Honor Mayor Lucy Vinis Presiding 

 
            Councilors 

    Jennifer Yeh, President         Claire Syrett, Vice President 
    Mike Clark                        Greg Evans         

      Randy Groves            Matt Keating 
      Emily Semple            Alan Zelenka 
 

 
7:30 p.m.  CITY COUNCIL MEETING  
 

1. COMMITTEE REPORTS AND ITEMS OF INTEREST 
 
2. CONSENT CALENDAR 1 

A. Approval of City Council Minutes 
B. Approval of City Council Tentative Agenda 
C. Adoption of an Ordinance Providing for Withdrawal of Annexed Properties 

from the Following Special Districts:  River Road Park & Recreation District; 
River Road Water District; Santa Clara Rural Fire Protection District; and 
Santa Clara Water District 
 

3. PUBLIC FORUM 
 

4. PUBLIC HEARING and ACTION:  FY22-27 Capital Improvement Program 
 
5. PUBLIC HEARING:  An Ordinance Amending the Eugene-Springfield Metropolitan 

Area General Plan Diagram to Redesignate the Property Identified as Assessor’s 
Map 17-04-26-00, Tax Lots 2801, 4303 and 4304 and Assessor’s Map 17-04-26-
43, Tax Lot 302 from Heavy Industrial to Light Medium Industrial and Rezone the 
Property From I-3 Heavy Industrial to I-2 Light-Medium Industrial 
 

https://www.eugene-or.gov/3360/Webcasts-and-Meeting-Materials


  March 8, 2021, Meeting 

 
 

6. PUBLIC HEARING:  An Ordinance Concerning Clear and Objective Approval 
Criteria for Housing; Amending Sections 9.0500, 9.2181, 9.2471, 9.2520, 9.2687, 
9.2751, 9.2761, 9.3216, 9.3221, 9.3626, 9.3725, 9.4830, 9.5750, 9.6010, 9.6710, 
9.6810, 9.6815, 9.6820, 9.6845, 9.6865, 9.6885, 9.7007, 9.8030, 9.8045, 9.8055, 
9.8085, 9.8090, 9.8100, 9.8105, 9.8205, 9.8210, 9.8215, 9.8220, 9.8310, 9.8320, 
9.8325, 9.8360, 9.8365, 9.8440, 9.8445, 9.8505, 9.8510, 9.8515, and 9.8520 of the 
Eugene Code, 1971; Adding Section 9.5860 to That Code; and Providing an 
Effective Date (City File CA 20-4)                         

 
 

Adjourn. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The Eugene City Council welcomes your interest in these agenda items. This meeting location is wheelchair-accessible. 
For the hearing impaired, an interpreter can be provided with 48 hours' notice prior to the meeting. Spanish-language 
interpretation will also be provided with 48 hours' notice. To arrange for these services, contact the receptionist at 
541-682-5010. City Council meetings are telecast live on Metro Television, Comcast channel 21, and rebroadcast later 
in the week. 
 
El consejo de la Ciudad de Eugene agradece su interés en estos asuntos de la agenda. El lugar de la reunión tiene 
acceso para sillas de ruedas. Se puede proveer a un intérprete para las personas con discapacidad auditiva si avisa con 
48 horas de anticipación. También se puede proveer interpretación para español si avisa con 48 horas de anticipación. 
Para reservar estos servicios llame al 541-682-5010. Las reuniones del consejo de la ciudad se transmiten en vivo por 
Metro Television, Canal 21 de Comcast y son retransmitidas durante la semana. 

 

 
For more information, contact the Council Coordinator at 541-682-5010, 

or visit us online at www.eugene-or.gov. 



 

 March 8, 2021, Meeting – Item 2A 

EUGENE CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 
 
  

Approval of City Council Minutes  
 
Meeting Date:  March 8, 2021  Agenda Item Number:  2A 
Department:  Central Services  Staff Contact:  Beth Forrest 
www.eugene-or.gov Contact Telephone Number:  541-682-5882 
   
 
ISSUE STATEMENT 
This is a routine item to approve City Council minutes.  
 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION 
Move to approve the minutes for the work session on February 17, 2021; and the Joint Elected 
Officials work session on February 10, 2021.  
 
 
ATTACHMENTS  
A. February 10, 2021, JEO Work Session Minutes 
B. February 17, 2021, Work Session Minutes 
 
 
FOR MORE INFORMATION 
Staff Contact:   Beth Forrest 
Telephone:   541-682-5882   
Staff E-Mail:  bforrest@eugene-or.gov  
 

CC Agenda - Page 1

file://cesrv500/#cesrv500/CC%20Support/CMO/2019%20Council%20Agendas/4-22-19/Meeting/www.eugene-or.gov
mailto:bforrest@eugene-or.gov


MINUTES – Joint City Council & 
Lane Co. Board Work Session 

February 10, 2021 Page  1 

MINUTES 

Eugene City Council and 
Lane County Board of Commissioners  

Virtual Work Session 
Eugene, Oregon 97401 

February 10, 2021 
12:00 p.m. 

Councilors Present:  Emily Semple, Matt Keating, Alan Zelenka, Jennifer Yeh, Mike Clark, Greg 
 Evans, Claire Syrett, Randy Groves 

Commissioners Present: Heather Buch, Laurie Trieger, Jay Bozievich, Pat Farr, Joe Berney 

Mayor Vinis opened the February 10, 2021, work session of the Eugene City Council. 

Lane County Board of Commissioners Chair Joe Berney opened the February 10, 2021, meeting of 
the Lane County Board of Commissioners. 

1. JOINT WORK SESSION:  Homeless Systems Transformation
Sarai Johnson, Joint Shelter and Housing Strategist for the City of Eugene and Lane County, gave a
presentation to update progress on the implementation of the homeless systems transformation.

Council Discussion:
• Councilor Yeh – expressed appreciation for having the 12-month plan outlined; asked staff

about plans for next winter and asked about provider capacity.
• Commissioner Farr – extended a special greeting to Councilors Zelenka, Syrett and Evans; asked

Steve Manela, Lane County’s Intergovernmental Human Services Program Manager, to speak to
the value of the coordination of efforts that has worked through the Poverty and Homelessness
Board and its sub-committees; asked Sarai Johnson to speak to how well the coordinated efforts
between the City and County are going.

• Councilor Groves – asked staff what specifically is being done to help youth and stated he is
concerned about the vulnerable youth population; stated there is a lack of adequate space for
trailers, recreational vehicles and campers that are landing in the West Eugene industrial area
and causing access issues for large delivery trucks, and asked staff if there is any work being
done on this issue.

• Commissioner Buch – expressed appreciation in seeing so many parts of the Technical
Assistance Collaborative (TAC) report starting implementation; stated there is a vast gap
between the information staff just presented and what the public is seeing in the community,
and asked how this gap can be filled so the public is aware of the work that is happening and the
successes; stated she would like to see a mechanism in place the first half of the year to provide
the public with information on progress; stated she would like to see at the next joint meeting a
presentation on funding, and metrics on how rural communities are being reached.

• Councilor Syrett – thanked staff for the presentation; reminded Council and the Board of
Commissioners about the decision that had been previously made by these bodies to focus
specifically on single adults because this population, proportional to the need, had the least
number of resources available; asked the City Manager if Council should plan to vote to approve
the revised homeless numbers attributed with the TAC work; asked if there is a plan for a
decision about resources to come back to Council for a vote.

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 2A

Attachment A

CC Agenda - Page 2



MINUTES – Joint City Council & 
Lane Co. Board Work Session 

February 10, 2021 Page  2 

• Commissioner Trieger – stated it is important to shore-up the provider community; stated she
wonders where the opportunities are for engaging the public in outreach work, both for more
capacity and because it opens eyes to the challenges being faced; suggested a coordinated effort
of messaging through social media channels; encouraged rethinking the mechanisms being used
to address homelessness issues and whether they are still the right ones based on what is
known now versus when they were created, and gave as an example the Poverty and
Homelessness Board.

• Councilor Clark – expressed appreciation for the partnership created for this work; stated he
thinks 350 permanent supportive housing beds is radically insufficient and a course correction
is warranted; asked staff for the net number of new people per month becoming homeless, and
inquired what the impact will be if this number doubles as he suspects it will this summer;
expressed hope that these bodies will individually and then collectively reassess goals and
tactics.

• Councilor Keating – thanked staff for the presentation; expressed excitement about efforts to
ramp-up Operation Turnkey; asked if staff is exploring using former schools, churches, banks
and empty building or lots beyond hotels and motels, and the potential to explore a vacant lot
tax; stated he is keenly focused on alternative funding mechanisms, broader partnerships, best
practices and communications; stated he would like to explore ways to make the City accessible
to businesses and faith partners in the community to find locations and microsites; stated he
would like to explore funding mechanisms that revolve around surcharges for events or
consumption fees at either the municipal or county level.

• Councilor Zelenka – welcomed Commissioner Trieger; stated progress is being made but the
story is not being communicated well to the public; stated he likes the approach being taken but
more money will be required to take it to the next level; stated a bond or levy needs to be
considered to further this work and thinks it will be supported by the public.

• Councilor Evans – asked staff if any progress has been made to acquire the site at Highway 99
and Roosevelt Blvd.; stated he is pleased that warehouses or similar facilities that can be
retrofit to be used as emergency shelter are being pursued.

• Councilor Semple – thanked staff for the report; acknowledged much has been done but
compared to the problem it is not enough, and more action will take more money; stated she is
happy with the actions taken with the COVID financial disbursements; stated ideas need to be
expanded to include looking at parking lots and warehouses where large-scale shelter can be
provided; stated work needs to happen upstream as more providers for mental health and drug
addiction are needed.

• Commissioner Berney – stated he hopes to hear at the next joint meeting a report about
potential vacant spaces that can be used; agreed that tactics and strategies may want to be
revisited; stated he would like to see included how to draw private investment to partner with
public resources to solve these problems; stated the community’s youth and families need to be
included in looking at the homeless problem; stated this work needs to be presented in not just
a systems perspective but a client-centered approach, where the client needs drive the systems
work; encouraged a public-facing dashboard that can be used to leverage resources from non-
profits and the business network.

• Mayor Vinis – recognized that outreach has been important through the pandemic and there
has been a proliferation of new providers in the form of ad-hoc citizen groups that have come
together; stated that capacity-building within provider organizations around trauma-informed
care needs to take place and can potentially be privately funded, and suggested the Poverty and
Homelessness Board could help orchestrate this; stated she hopes the medically fragile will be
prioritized when utilizing the River Avenue facility post-COVID; suggested bringing back the
steering committee to analyze City and County roles moving forward.

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 2ACC Agenda - Page 3



MINUTES – Joint City Council & 
Lane Co. Board Work Session 

February 10, 2021 Page  3 

Mayor Vinis adjourned the Eugene City Council meeting at 1:31 p.m. 

Commissioner Berney adjourned the Lane County Board of Commissioners meeting. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Beth Forrest 
City Recorder 

(Recorded by Jessica Gebb) 

Link to the webcast of this City Council meeting here.   

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 2ACC Agenda - Page 4

https://eugene.ompnetwork.org/sessions/162168?embedInPoint=1&embedOutPoint=6120&shareMethod=link


MINUTES – Eugene City Council 
Work Session 

February 17, 2021 Page  1 

MINUTES 

Eugene City Council   
Virtual Work Session 

Eugene, Oregon 97401 
February 17, 2021 

12:00 p.m. 

Councilors Present:  Emily Semple, Matt Keating, Alan Zelenka, Jennifer Yeh, Mike Clark, Greg 
Evans, Claire Syrett and Randy Groves 

Mayor Vinis opened the February 17, 2021, work session of the Eugene City Council. 

1. WORK SESSION:  2020 Census and Ward Population Update
Policy Systems Analyst Jason Dedrick gave a brief presentation to provide context to Council for
decisions it will be making that will guide the development of scenarios and process for ward
redistricting.

Council Discussion:
• Councilor Keating – stated he leans toward direct oversight of the process by the Council rather

than using a committee structure; asked if Council has considered criteria similar to the State’s
redistricting criteria to have a connection with transportation corridors.

• Councilor Clark – (in response to Councilor Keating’s question) stated the State has been willing
to do some interesting things over time in the redistricting process, and gave as an example the
use of Highway 58 as a boundary line in Pleasant Hill, which was in conflict with another part of
the statute that discouraged splitting communities; stated he is not sure how the criteria
actually work in certain scenarios.

• Councilor Clark – stated his recollection of Council’s last process 10 years ago was that it went
smoothly, and without conflicts or disputes as has occurred in the past; stated he would be
comfortable maintaining the process used 10 years ago; asked staff if there will be access to any
preliminary data prior to September; stated he would like to know broad data that is available
because he expects disproportionate growth, especially on the north side; stated he believes
Council should discuss its intention for newly filed candidates of wards that may have boundary
adjustments.

• Councilor Zelenka – agreed with Councilor Clark that the process used 10 years ago went
smoothly, and said he would advocate for direct oversight by Council; asked what the filing
deadline is for the next Council election; stated this timeline presents a dilemma because the
data will not be processed before the deadline closes; stated the criteria is really about
contiguousness of the wards and not splitting up wards as much as possible; stated while
transportation links initially seem to make some sense, it could result in neighborhoods being
split into separate wards.

• Councilor Syrett – expressed appreciation for hearing from Councilors Clark and Zelenka about
their experience from the past, and supported the idea of having Council do the process because
it seems the most logical; stated she thinks the criteria used last time makes sense but would
like Council to further discuss; stated with limited data she tends to agree with Councilor
Zelenka’s position about the transportation link criteria; asked staff how many work sessions
were needed for Council to do this work in the past and if there were significant changes to
ward boundaries during those processes; stated she likes the proposed public engagement
process and suggested the Equity Panel as another good resource to engage for this process.

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 2A

Attachment B

CC Agenda - Page 5



MINUTES – Eugene City Council 
Work Session 

February 17, 2021 Page  2 

• Mayor Vinis – asked what the reasoning was for not assuming growth in the previous process.
• Councilor Clark – (in response to the Mayor’s question) stated Council decided not to assume

growth because it is never known for certain until a development takes place and because huge
swaths of land were not being brought into the urban growth boundary; stated he would be fine
with not considering future growth but thinks it looks likely that Ward 5 will have more than
three percent growth with the developments already slated around the golf course.

• Councilor Zelenka – stated he agrees with Councilor Clark and while Council was last having
this conversation, it was really about certainty versus uncertainty and trying to address where
development would take place; stated the council decided not to assume growth because it was
too speculative.

• Mayor Vinis – stated though she doesn’t know what the recourse is, the possibility that a
candidate could file to run in a ward and then find it has been redistricted and they are no
longer in the ward is concerning.

• Councilor Semple – asked what happens to an incumbent councilor when a ward is redistricted;
asked if there was much contentiousness 20 years ago in determining where the ward
boundaries should move.

• Councilor Zelenka – stated he agrees with the public engagement proposal and thinks it is a
good list; suggested it would be helpful to have a public forum after the draft boundaries are
set; asked if the candidate filing deadline can be moved back if the process is not concluded by
January; stated if Council can complete the process in December or January before the end of
the candidate filing period, then it will prevent the dilemma previously mentioned.

• Councilor Clark – stated Council should have intentions of the rules made clear before scenarios
are presented to the public.

• Councilor Semple – stated she is concerned about this issue as well as it creates problems for
candidates and the deadline is only a couple of months before the primary election.

• Mayor Vinis – asked if Council has the option to say the elections are valid for all candidates
with the existing wards, even if they are not incumbents but are running for office.

• Councilor Syrett – suggested Council may want to seek public input for the criteria to be
applied; stated she thinks the question of what to do if ward boundaries change after candidate
filing should be put out for public feedback.

• Councilor Keating – asked if there are any disadvantages to delaying implementation to after
May 2022; asked what other population information helps inform Council’s decision beyond
Census data.

• Councilor Groves – thanked staff for the presentation; stated he is for full Council involvement
in these decisions; raised the point that potential candidates may be excluded from running due
to ward redistricting either because the lines move to exclude them, or the line doesn’t move
and excludes them.

• Councilor Semple – stated any delay needs to go through November to accommodate a potential
run-off election between the primary and general elections.

• Councilor Zelenka – stated that hearing these potential situations makes him feel that
accelerating the process rather than delaying it is a better idea.

MOTION:  Councilor Yeh, seconded by Councilor Syrett, moved to designate the Eugene City 
Council as the review and decision-making body for ward boundary criteria, scenarios, and 
process. 

Council Discussion: 
• Councilor Clark – suggested Council decide today to accept the criteria used 10 years ago.
• Councilor Yeh – stated that from councilors’ comments made today she understood that public

feedback was desired before finalizing the criteria.

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 2ACC Agenda - Page 6



MINUTES – Eugene City Council 
Work Session 

February 17, 2021 Page  3 

VOTE:  PASSED:  7:0 (Councilor Evans absent) 

Councilor Evans joined the meeting at 12:41 pm. 

2. WORK SESSION:  Interim Police Auditor
City Attorney Kathryn Brotherton gave a brief opening for the discussion of the appointment of an
Interim Police Auditor to serve in the position until permanently filled by City Council.

Council Discussion:
• Councilor Yeh – stated she spoke with Deputy Police Auditor Leia Pitcher regarding her interest

in the Interim Police Auditor position; stated the contract presented to Council is acceptable to
Ms. Pitcher as currently written.

• Mayor Vinis – stated Council is fortunate that Ms. Pitcher is willing, able and prepared to step in
to do this job, and to have a smooth transition at this time.

MOTION AND VOTE:  Councilor Yeh, seconded by Councilor Syrett, moved to appoint Deputy 
Police Auditor Leia Pitcher as the Interim Police Auditor and authorize the Council President to 
execute the Interim Police Auditor employment agreement set forth in Attachment A.  PASSED:  
7:0, Councilor Evans did not vote. 

The meeting adjourned at 12:57 p.m. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Beth Forrest 
City Recorder 

(Recorded by Jessica Gebb) 

Link to the webcast of this City Council meeting here.   

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 2ACC Agenda - Page 7

https://eugene.ompnetwork.org/sessions/162518?embedInPoint=1&embedOutPoint=3821&shareMethod=link


March 8, 2021, Meeting – Item 2B 

EUGENE CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 
 
     

Approval of Tentative Working Agenda  
 
Meeting Date:  March 8, 2021 Agenda Item Number:  2B 
Department:  Central Services  Staff Contact:  Beth Forrest 
www.eugene-or.gov  Contact Telephone Number:  541-682-5882 
  
 
ISSUE STATEMENT 
This is a routine item to approve the City Council Tentative Working Agenda.   
 
 
BACKGROUND         
On July 31, 2000, the City Council held a process session and discussed the Operating 
Agreements. Section 2 notes, in part, that “The City Manager shall recommend monthly to 
the council which items should be placed on the council agenda. This recommendation 
shall be placed on the consent calendar at the regular City Council meetings (regular 
meetings are those meetings held on the second and fourth Monday of each month in the 
Council Chamber). If the recommendation contained in the consent calendar is approved, 
the items shall be brought before the council on a future agenda. If there are concerns 
about an item, the item may be pulled from the consent calendar at the request of any 
councilor or the Mayor. A vote shall occur to determine if the item should be included as 
future council business.” Scheduling of this item is in accordance with the Council 
Operating Agreements.  
 
  
COUNCIL OPTIONS 
The council may choose to approve, amend or not approve the tentative agenda. 
 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION 
Move to approve the items on the Tentative Working Agenda. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
A. Tentative Working Agenda 
 
 
FOR MORE INFORMATION 
Staff Contact:   Beth Forrest 
Telephone:   541-682-5882   
Staff E-Mail:  bforrest@eugene-or.gov 

CC Agenda - Page 8

mailto:bforrest@eugene-or.gov


Work Session                       Action         Public Hearing              Public Forum             Consent Calendar 

Committee Reports/Items of Interest   Ceremonial Matters   Pledge of Allegiance 

Updated	March	3,	2021

**	SPECIAL	NOTICE	**	
Due to Governor Kate Brown’s Stay Home, Save Lives Executive Order to combat the spread of Covid-19, all City 
Council meetings will be held remotely, using virtual meeting technology. Information about how to access these 

meetings will be available at https://www.eugene-or.gov/3360/Webcasts-and-Meeting-Materials. 

 

March 2021 
 

Date  Day  Time  Title  Length  Dept. Contact 

8-Mar Monday 

5:30 pm 
Clear & Objective Standards 
(Work Session) 

URA – Riverfront Urban Renewal 
(Work Session) 

45 mins 

45 mins 

Jenessa Dragovich, PDD 

Amanda Nobel, PDD 

7:30 pm 

Committee Reports and Items of 
Interest 

    Adoption of Ord. on Withdrawal of 
    Annexed Properties from Special 

  Districts 
 (Consent Calendar 1) 

Public Forum 

FY22 – FY27 Capital Improvement  
Program  

 (Public Hearing and Action) 

Central Eugene Industrial Park 
Metro Plan Amendment & Zone 

  Change  
 (Public Hearing) 

Clear and Objective Standards 
Ordinance 

 (Public Hearing) 

Althea Sullivan, PDD 

Vicki Silvers, CS 

Jeff Gepper, PDD 

Jenessa Dragovich, PDD 

Expected	absences	for	3/8:	none 

10-Mar Wednesday 12 pm 
Housing Tools and Strategies: 
Moving Upstream 
(Work Session) 

90 mins Amanda Nobel, PDD 

Expected	absences	for	3/10:	none 

Council Break: March 11 – April 12 

CC Agenda - Page 9



2 

 

April 2021 
 

Date  Day  Time  Title  Length  Dept. Contact 

5:30 pm Vision, Values, Goals and Process 
(Work Session) 90 mins Sarah Medary, CMO 

12-Apr Monday 

7:30 pm 

Committee Reports and Items of 
Interest 

Public Forum 

Finalizing Compliance with ORS 
197.312(5) for ADUs 

  (Public Hearing) 

Ordinance Adopting Hazardous 
Substance User Fees 

  (Public Hearing and Poss. Action) 

  Central Eugene Industrial Park 
  Metro Plan Amendment & Zone 
  Change  
 (Action) 

  Clear & Objective Standards 
  Ordinance 
  (Action) 

Jeff Gepper, PDD 

James Lenhart, Fire 

Jeff Gepper, PDD 

Jenessa Dragovich, PDD 

Expected	absences	for	4/12:	none 

14-Apr Wednesday 12 pm 
Growth Monitoring 
(Work Session) 

Steam Plant Deal Points 
(Work Session) 

45 mins 

45 mins 

Heather O’Donnell, PDD 

Amanda D’Souza, PDD 

Expected	absences	for	4/14:	none 

19-Apr Monday 5:30 pm Schedule	only	as	needed	

7:30 pm Hold	for	Boards	and	Commissions	Interviews	

Expected	absences	for	4/19:	none					

21-Apr Wednesday 12 pm 

Finalizing Compliance with ORS 
on ADUs 
(Work Session) 

TBD 
(Work Session) 

45 mins 

45 mins 

Jeff Gepper, PDD 

Expected	absences	for	4/21:		none	

26-Apr Monday 5:30 p.m. 

Ad Hoc Committee on Police  
Policy Update 
(Work Session) 

90 mins Kevin Alltucker, CS 

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 2BCC Agenda - Page 10



3 
 

 
 
 

26-Apr 
 

 
 
 

Monday 

 
 
 
7:30 pm 

 

Committee Reports and Items of 
Interest 

 
     Eugene-Springfield 2021 One 
     Year Action Plan for Affordable 

                  Housing & Community 
                  Development 
                  (Consent Calendar 1) 
 

     Substantial Amendment to 
     Eugene-Springfield 2020 Action 

                  Plan: CDBG CV3 Funds Allocation 
                  (Consent Calendar 1) 

 
 

Public Forum 

 
 
 
 

PDD 
 
 
 
 
 

PDD 

 

 
 

 

Expected	absences	for	4/26:	none	
 

 
28-Apr 

 
 
Wednesday 

 
 

12 pm 

 

Street Repair Review Panel 
Update  
(Work Session) 

 
1059 Willamette 
(Work Session) 
 

 
45 mins 

 
 
 

45 mins 

 
Katie Marwitz, PW 

 
 
 

Amanda D’Souza, PDD 

Expected	absences	for	4/28:		none	
 

 
28-Apr 

 
 
Wednesday 

 
 
5:30 pm 

 

					Budget	Committee	Meeting	
     City Manager Presentation of Proposed 
     Budget 
 

 
 
 
 

 
Vicki Silvers, CS 

Expected	absences	for	4/28:		none																																																																																					NOTE:	Budget	Committee	Meeting	Added	
 

 

May 2021 
 

Date  Day  Time  Title  Length  Dept. Contact 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

5:30 pm 

 
CSI Community Engagement 
Update 
(Work Session)  

 

 

 
90 mins 

 
 

 

 
Mike Kinnison, CS 

10-May Monday  
 
 

7:30 pm 

 

 
Committee Reports and Items of 
Interest 

 
    FY22 MWMC Budget Ratification 
    (Consent Calendar 1) 

 
Public Forum 

  
 

 
 

James McClendon, PW 

Expected	absences	for	5/10:	none 
 

 
12-May 

 
 

Wednesday 

 
 

12 pm 

 

River Road/Santa Clara 
Neighborhood Plan Update 

                 (Work Session) 

 
TBD 
(Work Session)  

 

 
45 mins 

 
 
 

45 mins 

 
Chelsea Hartman, PDD 

 

Expected	absences	for	5/12:	none 
 

 
12-May 

 
 
Wednesday 

 
 
5:30 pm 

 

	
				Budget	Committee	Meeting	
    Budget Deliberations 
 

 
 
 
 

 
Vicki Silvers, CS 

Expected	absences	for	5/12:		none																																																																																					NOTE:	Budget	Committee	Meeting	Added	

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 2BCC Agenda - Page 11



4 
 

 
 

17-May 

 
 

Monday 

 
 
5:30 pm 

 

 
 
Schedule	only	as	needed	

  
 

 
 

 
	

 
7:30 pm 

 

Ordinance Amending MUPTE Post-
Construction Requirements 

                 (Public Hearing) 
 

 
 

 
Amanda D’Souza, PDD 

Expected	absences	for	5/17:	none																																																																																																																																					
 

 
19-May 

 
 
Wednesday 

 
 

12 pm 

 

TBD  
(Work Session) 
 
TBD 
(Work Session) 
 

 
45 mins 

 
 

45 mins 

 
 
 
 
 

Expected	absences	for	5/19:		none	
 

 
19-May 

 
 
Wednesday 

 
 
5:30 pm 

 

 
				Budget	Committee	Meeting	
    Budget Deliberations 
 

 
 
 
 

 
Vicki Silvers, CS 

Expected	absences	for	5/19:		none																																																																																					NOTE:	Budget	Committee	Meeting	Added	
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 
5:30 p.m. 

 

TBD 
(Work Session)  

 
TBD 
(Work Session)  

 

 

 
45 mins 

 
 

45 mins 

 

 

24-May 
 

Monday 
 

 
 
7:30 pm 

 
 

   Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag 
 
 

Committee Reports and Items of 
Interest 
 

    Approval of Affordable Housing 
    Trust Funds for Housing 

                  Affordable to Low and Moderate 
                  Income Persons 
                  (Consent Calendar 1) 

 
 

Public Forum 
 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 

Ellen Meyi-Galloway, 
PDD 

 
 

Expected	absences	for	5/24:	none	
 

 
26-May 

 
 
Wednesday 

 
 

12 pm 

 

TBD  
(Work Session) 
 
TBD 
(Work Session) 
 

 
45 mins 

 
 

45 mins 

 
 
 
 
 

Expected	absences	for	5/26:		none	
 

 
26-May 

 
 
Wednesday 

 
 
5:30 pm 

 
 

				Budget	Committee	Meeting	
    Public Hearing and Recommendation 
 

 
 
 
 

 
Vicki Silvers, CS 

Expected	absences	for	5/26:		none																																																																																					NOTE:	Budget	Committee	Meeting	Added	
 
   

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 2BCC Agenda - Page 12



5 
 

 
 

June 2021 
 

Date  Day  Time  Title  Length  Dept. Contact 
 

 
9-June 

 
 
Wednesday 

 
 

12 pm 

 

TBD  
(Work Session) 
 
TBD 
(Work Session) 
 

 
45 mins 

 
 

45 mins 

 
 
 
 
 

Expected	absences	for	6/9:	none	

 
 
 

14-Jun 
 

 
 
 

Monday 
 

 
 
 

5:30 pm 

 

TBD 
(Work Session) 

 
TBD 
(Work Session)  

 

 

 
45 mins 

 
 

45 mins 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

7:30 pm 

 

   Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag 
 

Committee Reports and Items of 
Interest 
 
Public Forum 

  
 
 
 

 
 

Expected	absences	for	6/14:	none 
 

 
16-Jun 

 
 

Wednesday 

 
 

12 pm 

 

TBD 
(Work Session) 

 
TBD 
(Work Session)  

 

 
45 mins 

 
 

45 mins 

 
 

Expected	absences	for	6/16:	none 
 

 
21-Jun 

 
 

Monday 

 
 
5:30 pm 

 

 
 
Schedule	only	as	needed	

  
 

 
 

 
	

 
7:30 pm 

 

    TBD  
    (Public Hearing) 

 

 
 

 

Expected	absences	for	6/21:	none																																																																																																																																					
 

 
23-Jun 

 
 
Wednesday 

 
 

12 pm 

 

TBD  
(Work Session) 
 
TBD 
(Work Session) 
 

 
45 mins 

 
 

45 mins 

 
 
 
 
 

Expected	absences	for	6/23:		none	
 

 
 

 
 

28-Jun 

 
 
 
 
 

Monday 

 
 
5:30 p.m. 

 

TBD 
(Work Session)  

 
TBD 
(Work Session)  

 

 

 
45 mins 

 
 

45 mins 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
7:30 pm 

 

Committee Reports and Items of 
Interest 
 
 

Public Forum 
 

  

 
 
 
 

Expected	absences	for	6/28:	none	
   

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 2BCC Agenda - Page 13



6 
 

 
 

 
30-Jun 

 
 
Wednesday 

 
 

12 pm 

 

TBD  
(Work Session) 
 
TBD 
(Work Session) 
 

 
45 mins 

 
 

45 mins 

 
 
 
 

Expected	absences	for	6/30:		none	
 
 

 

Work Session                       Action                         Public Hearing                             Public Forum                   Consent Calendar 
 
Committee Reports/Items of Interest                     Ceremonial Matters                    Pledge of Allegiance 

 
 

Approved Work Session Polls to be Scheduled  Councilor  Date Approved 

 “Housing Status” as a Protected Class – follow‐up TBD 
Wildfire Preparedness 

Semple 
Groves 

03/12/20 
02/11/21 

Follow‐Up Work Sessions to be Scheduled   

TAC Implementation – ongoing; tentative July   
Naming Policy – follow‐up TBD   

 

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 2BCC Agenda - Page 14



March 8, 2021, Meeting – Item 2C 

EUGENE CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 An Ordinance Providing for Withdrawal of Annexed Properties from the Following 
Special Districts:  River Road Park & Recreation District; River Road Water District; 

Santa Clara Rural Fire Protection District; and Santa Clara Water District  

Meeting Date:  March 8, 2021  Agenda Item Number:  2C 
Department:  Planning and Development Staff Contact:  Althea Sullivan 
www.eugene-or.gov Contact Telephone Number:  541-682-5485 

ISSUE STATEMENT 
The City Council is scheduled to take action on this request for the annual withdrawal of 
previously annexed properties from special districts.  

BACKGROUND 
The purpose of the ordinance is to remove annexed properties from the tax rolls of special service 
districts, which in this case are the River Road Park & Recreation District, River Road Water 
District, Santa Clara Rural Fire Protection District, and Santa Clara Water District.  State law and 
local code require annexed properties to withdraw from special service districts through a 
separate process after the annexation of those properties becomes effective.  

Withdrawals come before the City Council on an annual basis.  Properties annexed at the request 
of the property owner during the previous year are batched together to facilitate this process.  The 
2021 batch contains four annexations approved by City Council in 2020—for a total of four tax 
lots. 

Withdrawals are time sensitive.  State law provides that, if a withdrawal is not approved prior to  
March 31, the withdrawal does not become effective until July 1 of the following year (i.e., 2022 for 
these properties).  This delay would mean that the properties will remain on the tax roll of the 
special service districts that no longer provide services to the property for more than a year.  
Approving the withdrawal ordinance prior to March 31, 2021, will result in the withdrawals 
taking effect on July 1, 2021, and those properties being included on the City tax roll immediately 
thereafter.  

The City Council held the required public hearing on this item on February 22, 2021.  Public notice 
of the hearing was published and posted as required by state law and local code requirements, 
including notice to the affected special service districts.  The inclusion of these properties on City 
tax rolls, and withdrawal from special districts taxation, is anticipated by the property owners and 
by special districts as part of the annexation process.  One individual spoke at the public hearing 
on February 22, 2021. The testimony provided focused on cost concerns associated with 

CC Agenda - Page 15

file://cesrv500/#cesrv500/CC%20Support/CMO/2019%20Council%20Agendas/4-22-19/Meeting/www.eugene-or.gov


 

  March 8, 2021, Meeting – Item 2C 

annexation and noted benefits of annexation such as access to the library.  Any written testimony 
received will be provided to Council prior to action.   
 
The approval criterion for withdrawal from public service districts following annexation is 
contained in Eugene Code 9.7835 and corresponding statutory provisions in Oregon Revised 
Statute 222.524, which require the City Council to find that approval of the withdrawal is in the 
best interest of the City.  
 
If Council finds the withdrawals are in the City’s best interest, Council is asked to adopt the 
attached ordinance (see Attachment A), which provides for the withdrawal from special service 
districts of these annexed properties.  Maps and legal descriptions of the properties to be 
withdrawn are provided as exhibits to the ordinance.  
 
 
PREVIOUS COUNCIL DIRECTION 
February 22, 2021, Public Hearing 

A public hearing was held, and testimony was provided by one individual who raised concerns 
about cost associated with annexation.  

 
 
COUNCIL OPTIONS 
City Council may consider the following options: 
1.  Approve the withdrawals by ordinance;  
2.  Approve the withdrawals by ordinance with specific modifications as determined by the City 

Council;  
3.  Deny the withdrawals by ordinance.  
 
 
CITY MANAGER’S RECOMMENDATION 
The City Manager recommends adoption of the ordinance as drafted, providing for withdrawal of 
all listed territories by March 31, 2021. 
 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION 
Move to adopt An Ordinance Providing for Withdrawal of Annexed Properties from the Following 
Special Districts: River Road Parks & Recreation District; River Road Water District; Santa Clara 
Rural Fire Protection District; and Santa Clara Water District. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
A.  Ordinance, including Exhibits A-D (maps and legal descriptions of properties) 
 
 
FOR MORE INFORMATION 
Staff Contact: Althea Sullivan, Assistant Planner 
Telephone:  541-682-5485 Staff E-Mail: ASullivan@eugene-or.gov 

CC Agenda - Page 16

https://eugene.ompnetwork.org/sessions/163065?embedInPoint=8530&embedOutPoint=8881&shareMethod=link
https://eugene.ompnetwork.org/sessions/163065?embedInPoint=8530&embedOutPoint=8881&shareMethod=link
mailto:ASullivan@eugene-or.gov


Ordinance - Page 1 of 2 

ORDINANCE NO. _________ 

AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR WITHDRAWAL OF ANNEXED PROPERTIES FROM 
THE FOLLOWING SPECIAL DISTRICTS: RIVER ROAD PARK & RECREATION 
DISTRICT; RIVER ROAD WATER DISTRICT; SANTA CLARA RURAL FIRE 
PROTECTION DISTRICT; AND SANTA CLARA WATER DISTRICT. 

The City Council of the City of Eugene finds that: 

A. Notice of the proposed withdrawal of real property which has been annexed to the City, but
is currently contained within the boundaries of the River Road Park & Recreation District; River Road Water 
District; Santa Clara Rural Fire Protection District; and Santa Clara Water District; (“the Districts”) was 
published in the Register-Guard on February 8 and 15, 2021, posted in four public places in the City of 
Eugene for a period of two successive weeks prior to the hearing date, and mailed to the affected public 
service districts. 

B. The Notice provided that a public hearing to allow the City Council to hear objections to the
withdrawals and to determine whether the withdrawals are in the best interest of the City was scheduled 
remotely for February 22, 2021, at 7:30 p.m., using virtual meeting technology. 

C. The City is willing to assume the liabilities and indebtedness previously contracted by the
Districts proportionate to the parts of the Districts that have been annexed to the City upon the effective 
date of the withdrawals as provided in ORS 222.520.   

D. The withdrawals of the annexed territories from the Districts are consistent with adopted
City policies and are in the best interest of the City. 

NOW, THEREFORE, 

THE CITY OF EUGENE DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1.  The following territories in Lane County, Oregon, annexed to the City of Eugene by 
Resolution of the Eugene City Council, are withdrawn from the Districts indicated effective July 1, 2021: 

River Road Park & Recreation District 

Name File # 
Site Address or 
Location 

Assessor’s 
Map 

Tax 
Lot Resolution 

Approval 
Date 

Effective 
Date 

Legal 
Desc. & 
Map 

Steinhouse, 
Elizabeth 

A 19-7 Lot behind 830 
Willow Avenue 

17-04-23-42 3900 5287  1/21/2020 1/31/2020 Ex. A 

Finnerty, 
Katheryn 

A 19-11 1345 Elkay Drive 17-04-23-13 7400* 5292 2/24/2020 5/20/2020 Ex. B 

*At the time of annexation, the property annexed was identified as Assessor’s Map Number 17-04-23-13, and Tax
Lot 7400.  The property has since been partitioned and is now identified as Assessor’s Map Number 17-04-23-13,
and Tax Lots 7401 and 7402.

Attachment A

Attachment A

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 2C

CC Agenda - Page 17



Ordinance - Page 2 of 2 

River Road Water District 

Name File # 
Site Address or 
Location 

Assessor’s 
Map 

Tax 
Lot Resolution 

Approval 
Date 

Effective 
Date 

Legal 
Desc. & 
Map 

Steinhouse, 
Elizabeth 

A 19-7 Lot behind 830 
Willow Avenue 

17-04-23-42 3900 5287  1/21/2020 1/31/2020 Ex. A 

Finnerty, 
Katheryn 

A 19-11 1345 Elkay Drive 17-04-23-13 7400* 5292 2/24/2020 5/20/2020 Ex. B 

*At the time of annexation, the property annexed was identified as Assessor’s Map Number 17-04-23-13, and Tax
Lot 7400.  The property has since been partitioned and is now identified as Assessor’s Map Number 17-04-23-13,
and Tax Lots 7401 and 7402.

Santa Clara Rural Fire Protection District 

Name File # 
Site Address or 
Location 

Assessor’s 
Map 

Tax 
Lot Resolution 

Approval 
Date 

Effective 
Date 

Legal 
Desc. & 
Map 

Roderick, 
April & Chad 

A 20-1 290 Wilkes Drive 17-04-02-44 1300 5304 7/13/2020 7/24/2020 Ex. C 

Peace 
Presbyterian 
Church 

A 20-2 3060 River Road 17-04-11-13 1900 5308 9/14/2020 11/4/2020 Ex. D 

Santa Clara Water District 

Name File # 
Site Address or 
Location 

Assessor’s 
Map 

Tax 
Lot Resolution 

Approval 
Date 

Effective 
Date 

Legal 
Desc. & 
Map 

Roderick, 
April & Chad 

A 20-1 290 Wilkes Drive 17-04-02-44 1300 5304 7/13/2020 7/24/2020 Ex. C 

Peace 
Presbyterian 
Church 

A 20-2 3060 River Road 17-04-11-13 1900 5308 9/14/2020 11/4/2020 Ex. D 

Section 2.  The City Recorder is requested to forward a copy of this Ordinance to the above 
referred Districts.  

Passed by the City Council this Approved by the Mayor this 

_____ day of March, 2021.  ____ day of March, 2021. 

__________________________________ __________________________________ 
City Recorder Mayor 

Attachment A

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 2C

CC Agenda - Page 18



LEGAL DESCRIPTION

Beginning at the SW corner of Lot 3 of Caprice Meadows, recorded October 20, 2004, Document No.

2004-081107, Lane County Oregon Deeds and Records and the easterly extension thereof to the True

Point of Beginning; thence continuing along southerly line of Caprice Meadows West 119.11 feet to a Y2

inch iron pipe in concrete referencing the southwest corner of said Caprice Meadows; thence leaving
said south line bearing South 70 feet to a Y2 inch iron pipe in concrete; thence East 119.11 feet; thence

north 70 feet returning to the south line of Caprice Meadows and the True Point of Beginning, all in

Eugene, Lane County, Oregon.

Containing 8,338 square feet, more or less.

Exhibit A 

Attachment A

Attachment A

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 2C

CC Agenda - Page 19



FIL
BE

RT
 AV

E

SUNNYSIDE
DR

PARK AVE

CAPRICE WAY

GL
OR

Y D
R

NORTHWEST EXPRESSWAY

W
ILL

OW
 AV

E

^

Caution: This map is based on
imprecise source data, subject to
change, and for general reference only.

Created on 1/22/2021
by City of Eugene Planning Division

N0 50 10025
Ft

Steinhouse, Elizabeth (A 19-7)
Lot Behind 830 Willow Avenue

Area of Withdrawal
Taxlots
Eugene UGB

Exhibit A 

Attachment A

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 2C

CC Agenda - Page 20



Legal Description for the Annexation

of

Assessor's Map No. 17-04-23-13 Tax Lot No. 7400

to the

City of Eugene
November 13, 2019

Beginning at a point which is 1196.945 South 89°47'00" East of a point which is 475 feet North

of the southwest corner of the Benjamin Davis D.L.C. No. 45 in Township 17 South, Range 4

West of the Willamette Meridian; thence North 20.0 feet to a point on the north margin of Elkay
Drive, said point being the True Point of Beginning; thence leaving said north margin and

continuing North 142.00 feet; thence South 89°47'00" East 134.445 feet; thence South 142.00

feet to a point on the north margin of Elkay Drive, said point being 20.0 feet northerly of, when

measured at right angles to, the centerline of Elkay Drive; thence along the north margin of

Elkay Drive North 89°47'00" West 134.445 feet to the True Point of Beginning, all in Lane

County Oregon.

Containing 19,091 sq. ft. more or less

Exhibit B

Attachment A

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 2C

CC Agenda - Page 21



W
ILL

OW
 AV

E

ELKAY DR

BEEBE LN

^

Caution: This map is based on
imprecise source data, subject to
change, and for general reference only.

Created on 1/22/2021
by City of Eugene Planning Division

N0 50 10025
Ft

Finnerty, Katheryn (A 19-11)
1345 Elkay Drive

Area of Withdrawal
Taxlots
Eugene UGB

Exhibit B

Attachment A

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 2C

CC Agenda - Page 22



DESCRIPTION OF AFFECTED TERRITORY TO BE ANNEXED

Situated in the Southeast 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 2 in Township 17 South, Range 4

West of the Willamette Meridian in unincorporated area of Lane County, State of Oregon and

described as follows:

Commencing at the Northwest Corner of the L. Poindexter Donation Land Claim Number 52 in

Township 17 South, Range 4 West of the Willamette Meridian; running thence North 1°08'58"

East 13.20 feet, South 86°54'02" East 467.73 feet, and S 1°08'58" West 56.46 feet to the

northeast corner of Lot 1 in Block 8 of "Second Addition to Terra Linda" as platted and recorded

March 10, 1975 in Book 68, Page 15 in Lane County Oregon Plat Records; which corner lies on

the re-aligned south margin of Wilkes Drive and is the TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING of the

lands being described herein.

Thence, leaving said corner and TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING, easterly along said south

margin of Wilkes Drive, the following two numbered courses: (1) along a curve to the left,
having a radius center that bears North 1°48' 54" East 2904.79 feet, a central angle of 00°45'28",
and long chord that bears South 88°33' 50" East 38.42 feet, an arc distance of 38.42 feet to a

point of tangent line; and (2) along said tangent line, South 88°56' 34" East 164.81 feet to the

northwest corner of the lands that were conveyed to Christopher J. Peterson and Niccole S.

Peterson in that certain Warranty Deed that was recorded May 1, 2017 as Reception Number

2017-021164 in Lane County Oregon Deed Records;

Thence, southerly along the west line of said lands that were conveyed to Peterson, the following
one numbered course: (3) South 01°08'58" West 126.14 feet to the Northeast plat corner of the

Roderick Subdivision" as platted and recorded September 27, 2002 in Lane County Oregon Plat

Records and assigned Reception Number 2002-074908 in Lane County Oregon Deed Records;

Thence westerly along the north plat boundary of said "Roderick Subdivision" the following one

numbered course: (4) North 88°33' 00" West 203.23 feet to its intersection with the northerly,
east plat boundary of the afore-called plat of "Second Addition to Terra Linda";

Thence, northerly along said northerly, east plat boundary, the following one numbered course:

5) North 01°08'58" East 125.00 feet RETURNING to the TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING.

Exhibit C 

Attachment A

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 2C

CC Agenda - Page 23



RI
VE

RC
RE

ST
 D

R

WILKES DR

E ANCHOR AVE

TE
MP

A 
ST

MECCA AVE

BA
NN

ER
ST

GREENWOOD ST

SC
EN

IC 
DR

YO
GI

 W
AY

^
Caution: This map is based on
imprecise source data, subject to
change, and for general reference only.

Created on 1/22/2021
by City of Eugene Planning Division

N0 75 15037.5
Ft

Roderick, April & Chad(A 20-1)
290 Wilkes Drive

Area of Withdrawal
Taxlots
Eugene UGB

Exhibit C 

Attachment A

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 2C

CC Agenda - Page 24



June 2, 2020 

ANNEXATION LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
PEACE PRESBYTERIAN CHURCH 
Branch Engineering Inc. Project No. 20-257 

Parcel 2 of Minor Subdivision 69-29 as filed in the Pre-1990 Partition Records of the Lane 
County Oregon Surveyor’s Office; said parcel being more particularly described as 
follows: 

COMMENCING at the Northeast corner of Lot 7, Ferndale Addition to Santa Clara as 
platted and recorded in the Lane County Oregon Plat Records; THENCE along the east 
boundary of said Lot 7 South 00°16’ East, 30.00 feet more or less to the southerly right-
of-way margin of Ferndale Drive as shown in said Minor Subdivision 69-29 and surveyed 
in County Survey File 15879 as recorded in the Lane County Oregon Surveyor’s Office; 
THENCE along said southerly margin South 89°48’ East, 297.50 feet, more or less, to a 
5/8” rebar set in County Survey File 15879, said point being the POINT of BEGINNING; 
THENCE South 00°16’ East, 320.17 feet, more or less, to a 5/8” rebar set in said County 
Survey File 15879; THENCE South 89°57’ East, 416.28 feet, more or less, to a 3/4” iron 
pipe set in County Survey File 7015 as recorded in the Lane County Oregon Surveyor’s 
Office and found in said County Survey File 15879; THENCE North 00°03’ East, 4 feet, 
more or less, to a 3/4” iron pipe set in said County Survey File 7015 and found in said 
County Survey File 15879; THENCE South 89°57’ East, 137 feet, more or less, to the 
westerly right-of-way margin of River Road as dedicated in that Bargain and Sale Deed 
recorded on August 1, 1984 as Instrument 8431037 on Reel 1308R in the Lane County 
Oregon Official Records; THENCE along said westerly right-of-way margin North 
16°03’25” West, 336 feet, more or less, to the aforesaid southerly right-of-way margin of 
Ferndale Drive; THENCE along said southerly right-of-way margin North 89°57’ West, 
454 feet, more or less, RETURNING to the POINT OF BEGINNING. 

DIGITALLY SIGNED

Exhibit D

Attachment A

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 2C

CC Agenda - Page 25



CIN
DY

 ST

BANTON AVE

RIVER RD

GRIZZLY AVE

W MYOAK DR

FERNDALE DR

GA
RD

EN
IA

 W
AY

CA
MR

OS
E S

T

AVA ST

QU
IET

 LN

M EM ORY LN

CHAPEL DR

RIVER LOOP 1
^

Caution: This map is based on
imprecise source data, subject to
change, and for general reference only.

Created on 1/22/2021
by City of Eugene Planning Division

N0 100 20050
Ft

Peace Presbyterian Church (A 20-2)
3060 River Road

Area of Withdrawal
Taxlots
Eugene UGB

Exhibit D

Attachment A

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 2C

CC Agenda - Page 26



 

 March 8, 2021, Meeting – Item 3 

EUGENE CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 
 
  

Public Forum  
 
Meeting Date:  March 8, 2021 Agenda Item Number:  3 
Department:  Central Services  Staff Contact:  Beth Forrest 
www.eugene-or.gov Contact Telephone Number:  541-682-5882 
   
  
ISSUE STATEMENT 
This segment allows citizens the opportunity to express opinions and provide information to the 
council.  Testimony presented during the Public Forum should be on city-related issues and 
should not address items which have already been heard by a Hearings Official or are on the 
present agenda as a public hearing item. 
 
  
SUGGESTED MOTION 
No action is required; this is an informational item only. 
 
 
FOR MORE INFORMATION 
Staff Contact:   Beth Forrest 
Telephone:   541-682-5882   
Staff E-Mail:  bforrest@eugene-or.gov  
 
 
  
 
 
  
 

CC Agenda - Page 27

file://cesrv500/#cesrv500/CC%20Support/CMO/2018%20Council%20Agendas/M180514/Meeting/www.eugene-or.gov
mailto:bforrest@eugene-or.gov


March 8, 2021, Meeting – Item 4 

EUGENE CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

Public Hearing and Action:  FY22-27 Capital Improvement Program  

Agenda Item Number:  4 
Staff Contact:  Vicki Silvers 

Meeting Date:  March 8, 2021 
Department:  Central Services 
www.eugene-or.gov Contact Telephone Number:  541-682-5082 

ISSUE STATEMENT 
This item is an opportunity for the City Council to adopt the Proposed Capital Improvement 
Program (CIP) for fiscal years 2022 through 2027 (FY22-27).  The Proposed CIP was reviewed and 
recommended by the City’s Budget Committee on February 18, 2021. 

BACKGROUND 
The Capital Improvement Program (CIP) is a planning document that forecasts the City’s capital 
needs over a six-year period based on various City-adopted long-range plans, policies, goals, and 
other planning processes.  The Proposed FY22-27 CIP totals approximately $288.4 million and 
includes projects for the Airport, Parks and Open Space, Public Buildings and Facilities, 
Stormwater, Transportation, and Wastewater.  The Project Summaries section of the CIP 
document contains tables summarizing all CIP projects, anticipated annual funding levels, and 
maps indicating the geographic location of CIP projects. 

The primary goals of the CIP are to: 
 Provide a balanced program for capital improvements given anticipated funding sources

over a six-year planning period
 Illustrate upcoming capital needs based on anticipated funding levels
 Plan for land acquisition, construction, and the major preservation of public facilities

necessary for the safe and efficient provision of services, and
 Serve as the basis for the capital budget for the upcoming two fiscal years (FY22 and FY23)

Capital projects are generally large-scale endeavors in terms of cost, size, and benefit to the 
community.  A critical element of a balanced CIP is the provision of funds to preserve or enhance 
existing facilities and provide new assets that will aid response to service needs and community 
growth. 

Highlights and Changes to the FY22-27 CIP 
In 2017, the Budget Committee passed a motion to integrate the City’s Climate Recovery 
Ordinance (CRO) into the Capital Improvement Program document going forward. The FY20-25 
CIP was amended to meet the motion’s directives by incorporating estimated Greenhouse Gas 
(GHG) metrics for CIP projects where feasible.  The GHG metrics help quantify the impacts of the 

CC Agenda - Page 28



 

 

City’s infrastructure on the climate.  These estimates, along with additional narrative on emissions 
reductions by program area, are included in the new GHG Summary section of the document.  This 
effort resulted in the City of Eugene receiving the 2020 American Public Works Association 
(APWA) Exceptional Performance Award for Sustainability and the 2019 APWA Oregon Chapter 
Sustainability Practices Award.  The inclusion of GHG metrics was continued and improved upon 
in the FY22-27 CIP.  
 
The FY22-27 CIP continues another effort that was introduced in the last CIP – to provide more 
information on specific capital projects within ongoing capital programs.  For the first two years of 
the FY22-27 CIP, the individual capital projects within ongoing capital programs have been 
provided where feasible.  Staff do not always know with certainty which projects within a capital 
program will be funded, but where possible those projects and related financial and planning 
information have been provided for FY22 and FY23.  This change provides greater transparency 
for the public and decision-makers on individual projects and improved clarity about how the City 
spends its capital budget dollars.  This change also enhances the connection between important 
policy initiatives and more capital projects. 
 
Lastly, the Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) encourages local governments to 
prepare budget documents of the very highest quality and sets criteria and guidelines through the 
Distinguished Budget Presentation Award Program.  GFOA recently implemented new criteria for 
the FY22 Budget that aligns with the work of the CIP.  The new requirement brings to the forefront 
the need for identifying projects that will affect the current and future operating budget and 
quantifying the impact above current levels.  The following projects were identified in the FY22-27 
CIP with on-going operating costs above current budget levels.  Incorporating this change into the 
CIP process helps the City of Eugene to meet the GFOA’s new criteria and provide greater 
transparency to decision makers and the public.  
 

Operating Costs by Project (in thousands) 
Project Title FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27 Total 
Amazon Prairie Mitigation Bank 200 200 200 200 200 200 1,200 
Delta Ponds Loop Trail Construction - 1 1 1 1 1 5 
Ferndale Park Development - - - - 32 32 64 
Mattie Reynolds Park Development - - - 50 50 50 150 
Santa Clara Community Park Phase 1 - - 200 200 200 200 800 
Sheldon Pool Renovation and Expansion 31 128 131 134 137 200 800 
Sports Complex Phase 1 - - - - 50 50 100 
Suzanne Arlie Park Ridgeline Trail Extension - - 10 10 10 10 40 
West Bank Park - - - - - 32 32 
Grand Total 231 329 542 595 680 715 3,092 

 
FY22-27 CIP Projects 
The capital projects and ongoing capital improvement programs in this document total 
approximately $288.4 million. 
 
Airport is the largest portion of the CIP, with $95.9 million in planned projects over the six-year 

CC Agenda - Page 29



 

  March 8, 2021, Meeting – Item 4 

forecast period.  Major projects include the Terminal Building:  Concourse C addition for $30.0 
million, reconstruction of the Concourse C Apron for $20.0 million, Taxiway C/M Rehabilitation for 
$15.9 million, Runway 34R Rehabilitation and Taxiway B Relocation for $14.3 million, and 
Terminal Ramp Rehabilitation for $10.5 million.  
 
Transportation is the second largest portion of the CIP, with approximately $84.1 million of 
anticipated spending.  Projects funded by the 2017 Street Bond approved by voters account for 
$31.3 million of the Transportation total, local gas tax funded capital projects account for $17.4 
million, and projects funded by System Development Charges (SDC) account for $14.1 million.  
Federal funds are projected to fund $12.0 million in Transportation projects. 
 
Public Buildings and Facilities is the third-largest category with $40.9 million in proposed 
projects, including $8.1 million for the Sheldon Pool renovation and expansion, supported by the 
2018 Parks and Recreation Bond and Parks SDCs.  Other identified projects include improvements 
to the Atrium Building for $1.0 million, parking structure deferred maintenance for $4.8 million, 
and HVAC repair or replacement for $2.0 million.   
 
Parks and Open Space (POS) represents the next largest category with $32.3 million for proposed 
projects including $9.3 million from the 2018 Parks and Recreation Bond.  Major projects include 
$8.9 million for site renovations and rehabilitations, $3.6 million identified for the Downtown 
Riverfront Plaza, $2.9 million for the Sports Complex Phase 1, $2.4 million for park and path 
lighting, $2.1 million for the Santa Clara Community Park Phase 1, and $1.8 million for park land 
acquisition.  
 
Wastewater is projected to spend $18.0 million on capital projects.  Included in these 
improvements is $15.0 million to preserve and rehabilitate the City’s aging wastewater system, 
$1.7 for pump station replacement, with an addition $0.7 million dedicated to the completion of 
the West Irwin Pump Station replacement, and $0.6 million for wastewater services for new 
development. 
 
Stormwater is planning to invest $17.2 million.  Projects include the continuation of drywell 
removal for $2.7 million, which is mandated by the Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ), 
system rehabilitation for $3.4 million, and the Amazon Prairie Mitigation Bank for $1.4 million. 
 
With the exception of General Capital Projects, the vast majority of funding for CIP projects is 
restricted to a particular use, such as the 2017 Street Bond for transportation projects, FAA 
funding for airport projects, wastewater and stormwater charges, local motor vehicle fuel tax 
revenue, system development charges (SDCs), and airport passenger facility charges.  General 
Capital Projects refer mostly to capital improvements and preservation for public buildings and 
facilities, which account for $32.4 million, or 11.2%, of planned capital spending over the next six 
years.  General capital projects are primarily funded through the City’s General Fund.  
 
CIP Development and Engagement Process 
During the summer and fall of even-numbered years, staff compiles the Proposed CIP using input 
from a variety of sources including Council-adopted plans and policy documents, maintenance 
monitoring programs, and funding directives from federal and state grants and mandates.  All of 

CC Agenda - Page 30



 

 

these plans and policies are developed through various forms of public engagement.  The 
Proposed CIP is subsequently published and made available to the public weeks in advance of 
Budget Committee or Council consideration.  Following review of the CIP by the Budget 
Committee, and adoption by the City Council, the projects become the basis for preparation of the 
City’s capital budget for the next two fiscal years. 
 
The Proposed CIP document was made available on the City’s website on February 2, 2021.  
Information about the proposed FY22-27 CIP was also sent electronically to interested citizens via 
the City Council newsletter, Community Bulletin, and the Budget Interested Parties e-mail list.  
Hard copies of the Proposed CIP document were made available to the public upon request.  A 
presentation on the Proposed FY22-27 CIP was made to the Planning Commission at their 
February 22, 2021 meeting. 
 
The Budget Committee held a public comment period on the Proposed FY22-27 CIP on February 
18, 2021.  One member of the public provided comment requesting additional attention be paid to 
tree canopy expansion in capital projects.  The committee passed a motion to recommend that the 
City Council adopt the FY22-27 CIP as proposed. 
 
 
PREVIOUS COUNCIL DIRECTION 
The Council acts on the CIP on a biennial basis.  The FY22-27 CIP presentation to the Budget 
Committee and subsequent discussion and recommendation regarding the Proposed FY22-27 CIP 
on February 18, 2021 can be viewed here:  
https://eugene.ompnetwork.org/sessions/162929/eugene-budget-committee-meeting-february-
18-2021 
 
 
COUNCIL OPTIONS 
The City Council may exercise one of the following two options: 

1. The council may choose to adopt the Proposed FY22-27 CIP as recommended by the 
Budget Committee. 

2. The council may choose to amend the CIP by identifying changes in the projects and/or 
funding sources and adopt the Proposed FY22-27 CIP that includes those changes. 

 
 
CITY MANAGER’S RECOMMENDATION 
The City Manager recommends that the council adopt the Proposed FY22-27 CIP as recommended 
by the Budget Committee. 
 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION 
Move to adopt the Proposed FY22-27 Capital Improvement Program as recommended by the 
Budget Committee. 
 
 

CC Agenda - Page 31

https://eugene.ompnetwork.org/sessions/162929/eugene-budget-committee-meeting-february-18-2021
https://eugene.ompnetwork.org/sessions/162929/eugene-budget-committee-meeting-february-18-2021


 

  March 8, 2021, Meeting – Item 4 

ATTACHMENTS 
None.  The Proposed FY22-27 CIP was previously distributed to the Mayor and City Council in 
hard copy and is available for review at www.eugene-or.gov/371/Capital-Improvement-Program. 
 
 
FOR MORE INFORMATION 
Staff Contact:   Vicki Silvers 
Telephone:   541-682-5082 
Staff E-Mail:  VSilvers@eugene-or.gov 
 
  
 
  
 
 
  

CC Agenda - Page 32

http://www.eugene-or.gov/371/Capital-Improvement-Program
mailto:VSilvers@eugene-or.gov


March 8, 2021, Meeting – Item 5 

EUGENE CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

Public Hearing:  An Ordinance Amending the Eugene-Springfield Metropolitan Area 
General Plan Diagram to Redesignate the Property Identified as Assessor’s Map    

17-04-26-00, Tax Lots 2801, 4303 and 4304 and Assessor’s Map 17-04-26-43, Tax
Lot 302 from Heavy Industrial to Light Medium Industrial and Rezone the property

from I-3 Heavy Industrial to I-2 Light-Medium Industrial  

Agenda Item Number:  5 
Staff Contact:  Jeff Gepper 

Meeting Date:  March 8, 2021  
Department:  Planning & Development  
www.eugene-or.gov Contact Telephone Number:  541-682-5282 

ISSUE STATEMENT 
City Council will hold a public hearing on a privately initiated Metro Plan Amendment to change 
the plan designation from Heavy Industrial to Light Medium Industrial, with a concurrent Zone 
Change from I-3 Heavy Industrial to I-2 Light-Medium Industrial, on four lots referred to as the 
Central Eugene Industrial Park (City files: MA 20-3 & Z 20-10).  The four tax lots total 
approximately 41 acres and are located west of Highway 99, north of West 5th Avenue, south of 1st 
Avenue, and east of Seneca Road.  Maps showing the location of the subject property and existing 
zoning of the surrounding area are provided in Attachment A. 

BACKGROUND 
The applicants, BPS Associates LLC, CEIP LLC, and Wfe LLC, applied for a privately initiated, site-
specific Metro Plan Amendment and concurrent Zone Change for the subject property with the 
goal of allowing a more diverse range of industrial uses and businesses that are compatible with 
existing nearby development.  The applicant states the increased uses allowed by the plan 
designation and zone changes will support a vibrant employment area taking advantage of the 
strategic location near transit and major transportation corridors. 

The subject property is currently zoned I-3 Heavy Industrial.  A change to I-2 Light-Medium Industrial 
will expand the number of permitted uses for the subject property and only a few uses will be prohibited 
as a result of the change.  These prohibited uses include conditional explosives manufacturing, large 
collection recycling facilities, and scrap and dismantling yards.  As the current Heavy Industrial land 
use designation does not support a zone change to I-2, a site-specific amendment to the land use 
diagram of the Metro Plan is required.  In this case, there is no applicable refinement plan that 
requires an amendment.  The application before the council is for an amendment to change the 
Metro Plan designation, and a concurrent Zone Change.  If this application is approved, the subject 
property could be developed with any use permitted in the I-2 zone, as identified in EC Table 

CC Agenda - Page 33

https://eugene.municipal.codes/EC/9.2450


 

  March 8, 2021, Meeting – Item 5 

9.2450 (https://eugene.municipal.codes/EC/9.2450).  Detailed maps showing the proposed 
designation and zoning changes are included as Exhibits A and B of the draft ordinance (see the 
draft ordinance attached as Attachment B to this AIS). 
 
More details on this request can be found in the full record of application materials to date, which 
will be provided separately to councilors on a thumb-drive.  Otherwise, application materials can 
be made available in hardcopy or electronic format upon request.  Materials can be viewed online 
here: https://pdd.eugene-or.gov/LandUse/SearchApplicationDocuments?file=MA-20-0003  
 
Planning Commission Process & Recommendation 
The Planning Commission held a public hearing on January 26, 2021 to consider the proposed 
Metro Plan Amendment and Zone Change.  The webcast of the meeting is available at 
https://eugene.ompnetwork.org/sessions/161261?embedInPoint=4901&embedOutPoint=7186&
shareMethod=link.  No public comments were received prior to the Planning Commission’s public 
hearing.  Testimony by the applicant’s representative, expressing support for approval of the 
application, was the only testimony received at the public hearing.  On the same night, following 
the public hearing, the Planning Commission deliberated and unanimously voted to recommend 
approval of the proposed amendments and zone change with a trip cap condition.  
 
City Council Process & Action 
This request is subject to Metro Plan Amendment procedures at Eugene Code 9.7700-9.7735.   
Council’s public hearing is also required to follow quasi-judicial procedures, and the decision must 
be based on the approval criteria from EC 9.7735 and EC 9.8865.  As a reminder, at the beginning 
of the hearing, councilors will be required to disclose any ex-parte contacts that may have 
occurred related to this request.  
 
Notice of Council’s public hearing on this request was provided on February 12, 2021, in 
accordance with Eugene Code requirements. No additional public testimony has been received 
since the Planning Commission hearing or in response to the most recent public notice.  Any 
additional written testimony received in advance of the public hearing will be included in the 
record and forwarded to Councilors for consideration.  Following close of the public hearing and 
record, Council is tentatively scheduled for deliberations and final action on April 12, 2021.  
 
 
COUNCIL OPTIONS 
No action is required at this time; however, options will be provided at the time of City Council 
deliberations and action scheduled for April 12, 2021. 
 
 
CITY MANAGER’S RECOMMENDATION 
This item is scheduled for a public hearing only.  Following the public hearing and City’s receipt of 
any testimony, the City Manager will make a recommendation to be included in the Council packet 
for action on April 12, 2021. 
 
 
 

CC Agenda - Page 34

https://eugene.municipal.codes/EC/9.2450
https://eugene.municipal.codes/EC/9.2450
https://pdd.eugene-or.gov/LandUse/SearchApplicationDocuments?file=MA-20-0003
https://eugene.ompnetwork.org/sessions/161261?embedInPoint=4901&embedOutPoint=7186&shareMethod=link
https://eugene.ompnetwork.org/sessions/161261?embedInPoint=4901&embedOutPoint=7186&shareMethod=link


 

  March 8, 2021, Meeting – Item 5 

ATTACHMENTS 
A. Subject Property and Zoning Maps 
B. Proposed Ordinance and Exhibits 
 Exhibit A:  Proposed Metro Plan Designation Map  
 Exhibit B: Proposed Zone Change Map  
 Exhibit C:  Findings 
 
 
FOR MORE INFORMATION 
Staff Contact:   Jeff Gepper, Senior Planner 
Telephone:   541-682-5282 
Staff E-Mail:  JGepper@eugene-or.gov    
  

CC Agenda - Page 35

mailto:JGepper@eugene-or.gov


Caution:
This map is based on imprecise
source data, subject to change,
and for general reference only.

Central Eugene Industrial Park
Metro Plan Amendment and Zone Change (MA 20-3 / Z 20-10)

Subject Property
Taxlots
Streets

HWY 99N

W 7TH PL

SE
NE

CA
 R

D W 5TH AVE

ROOSEVELT BLVD

W 1ST AVE

WI
LS

ON
 STCO

NG
ER

 ST

CROSS ST

MC
KI

NL
EY

 ST

TY
IN

N 
ST

W 7TH AVE

N 
SE

NE
CA

 R
D

FO
CH

 ST

IO
WA

 ST

MEADOW LN
MA

RK
ET

 ST

W BROADWAY

N 
CL

EV
EL

AN
D 

ST

N 
MC

KI
NL

EY
 ST

ST
EV

EN
SO

N 
WA

Y CL
EV

EL
AN

D 
ST

CROSS ST
HWY 99N

W 5TH AVE

W 7TH AVE

´
01/19/2021

Attachment AVICINITY MAP

0 1000 2000500
Feet

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 5CC Agenda - Page 36



Caution:
This map is based on imprecise
source data, subject to change,
and for general reference only.

Central Eugene Industrial Park
Metro Plan Amendment and Zone Change (MA 20-3 / Z 20-10)

Subject Property
Taxlots
Streets

SE
NE

CA
 R

D

W 5TH AVE

W 1ST AVE

HWY 99N

CO
NG

ER
 ST

ST
EV

EN
SO

N 
WA

Y

´
01/19/2021

Attachment ASUBJECT PROPERTY MAP

0 500 1000250
Feet

17-04-26-43 / 00302

17-04-26-00 / 02801

17-04-26-00 / 04303

17-04-26-00 / 04304

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 5CC Agenda - Page 37



Caution:
This map is based on imprecise
source data, subject to change,
and for general reference only.

Central Eugene Industrial Park
Metro Plan Amendment and Zone Change (MA 20-3 / Z 20-10)

Subject Property
Taxlots
Streets

C-2 Community Commercial
E-2 Mixed Use Employment
I-2 Light-Medium Industrial
I-3 Heavy Industrial
NR Natural Resource
R-3 Limited High-Density Residential

I-3I-3

I-2I-2

C-2C-2

R-3R-3

NRNR

E-2E-2

HWY 99N

W 7TH PL

SE
NE

CA
 R

D

W 5TH AVE

W 1ST AVE

WI
LS

ON
 ST

CROSS ST

CO
NG

ER
 ST

MC
KI

NL
EY

 ST

W 7TH AVE

TY
IN

N 
ST

FO
CH

 ST

MA
RK

ET
 ST

ST
EV

EN
SO

N 
WA

Y CL
EV

EL
AN

D 
ST

W 5TH AVE

CROSS ST
HWY 99N

W 7TH AVE

´

01/19/2021

Attachment AZONING MAP

0 500 1000250
Feet

Proposed Zone Change 
for Subject Property: 

I-3  to  I-2

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 5
CC Agenda - Page 38



Ordinance -- Page 1 of 2 

ORDINANCE NO.___________ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE EUGENE-SPRINGFIELD METROPOLITAN 
AREA GENERAL PLAN DIAGRAM TO REDESIGNATE THE PROPERTY 
IDENTIFIED AS ASSESSOR’S MAP 17-04-26-00, TAX LOTS 2801, 4303 AND 
4304 AND ASSESSOR’S MAP 17-04-26-43, TAX LOT 302 FROM HEAVY 
INDUSTRIAL TO LIGHT MEDIUM INDUSTRIAL AND REZONE THE 
PROPERTY FROM I-3 HEAVY INDUSTRIAL TO I-2 LIGHT-MEDIUM 
INDUSTRIAL. 

The City Council of the City of Eugene finds as follows: 

A. On September 18, 2020, BPS Associates LLC, CEIP LLC, and Wfe LLC submitted
an application for a Type I amendment to the Eugene-Springfield Metropolitan Area General Plan 
(Metro Plan) Plan Diagram and a concurrent zone change to redesignate and rezone the property 
identified as Assessor’s Map 17-04-26-00, Tax Lots 2801, 4303 and 4304 and Assessor’s Map 
17-04-26-43, Tax Lot 302.  The applicants requested a Metro Plan designation change from the
Heavy Industrial designation to a Light Medium Industrial designation. The zone change
requested by the applicant would rezone the subject property from I-3 Heavy Industrial to I-2
Light-Medium Industrial.

B. On January 26, 2021, the Eugene Planning Commission held a public hearing on
the application.  The Eugene Planning Commission recommended that the Eugene City Council 
adopt the proposed amendment to the plan diagram for the Metro Plan as shown in Exhibit A. 

NOW, THEREFORE, 

THE CITY OF EUGENE DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1.  The plan diagram for the Eugene-Springfield Metropolitan Area General Plan 
is amended to redesignate the property identified as Assessor’s Map 17-04-26-00, Tax Lots 2801, 
4303 and 4304 and Assessor’s Map 17-04-26-43, Tax Lot 302, from Heavy Industrial to Light 
Medium Industrial, as depicted on Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. 

Section 2.  The property identified as Assessor’s Map 17-04-26-00, Tax Lots 2801, 4303 
and 4304 and Assessor’s Map 17-04-26-43, Tax Lot 302, is rezoned from I-3 Heavy Industrial to 
I-2 Light-Medium Industrial, as depicted on Exhibit B attached hereto and incorporated herein by
this reference.

Section 3.  The findings set forth in the attached Exhibit C are adopted in support of this 
Ordinance. 

Section 4.  Based on the findings set forth in Exhibit C attached hereto and adopted as 
findings in support of this Ordinance, the following limitation on development of the property 
identified as Assessor’s Map 17-04-26-00, Tax Lots 2801, 4303 and 4304 and Assessor’s Map 
17-04-26-43, Tax Lot 302 is hereby imposed:

Site development shall be limited so as to generate no more than 438 PM peak hour 

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 5
CC Agenda - Page 39



Ordinance -- Page 2 of 2 

vehicle trips as determined by the most current edition of the Institute of Transportation 
Engineers Trip Generation Manual. The City may allow development intensity beyond this 
maximum number of peak hour vehicle trips if the applicant submits to the appropriate 
approving agencies a transportation impact analysis demonstrating the proposed 
intensification of use is consistent with the Transportation Planning Rule (TPR) criteria 
outlined in Oregon Administrative Rule (OAR) 660 012-0060. The applicant shall seek, 
and the City shall consider such approval using the City’s Type II land use application 
procedure. 

Section 5.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this 
Ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, 
that portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct, and independent provision and that holding shall 
not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 

Passed by the City Council this  Approved by the Mayor this 

_____ day of ______________, 2021 _____ day of ______________, 2021. 

_______________________________ _______________________________ 
City Recorder Mayor 

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 5
CC Agenda - Page 40



Central Eugene Indus trial Park - City File: MA 20-3 / Z 20-10
Me tro Plan Am endm e nt & Zone Change 

SE
NE

CA
 R

D

W 5TH AVE

HWY 99NW 1ST AVE

WI
LS

ON
 ST

CO
NG

ER
 ST

ST
EV

EN
SO

N 
WA

Y

W 5TH AVE

HWY 99N

´

Exhibit AProposed Metro Plan Designation

Property to be rede signated from  Heavy Indus trial to Light Medium  Industrial 
on the Me tro Plan's Plan Diagram

As s e s sor’s Map 17-04-26-00, Tax Lots 2801, 4303 and 4304; and
Ass e s sor’s Map 17-04-26-43, Tax Lot 302 March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 5CC Agenda - Page 41



Central Eugene Industrial Park - City File: MA 20-3 / Z 20-10
Metro Plan Amendment & Zone Change 

SE
NE

CA
 R

D

W 5TH AVE

HWY 99NW 1ST AVE

WI
LS

ON
 ST

CO
NG

ER
 ST

ST
EV

EN
SO

N 
WA

Y

W 5TH AVE

HWY 99N

´

Exhibit BProposed Zone Change

Property to be rezoned from I-3 Heavy Industrial to I-2 Light-Medium Industrial 

Assessor’s Map 17-04-26-00, Tax Lots 2801, 4303 and 4304; and
Assessor’s Map 17-04-26-43, Tax Lot 302 March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 5CC Agenda - Page 42



EXHIBIT C 

Findings Page 1 of 14 
MA 20-3 / Z 20-10 

FINDINGS IN SUPPORT OF AMENDING THE EUGENE-SPRINGFIELD METROPOLITAN AREA 
GENERAL PLAN DIAGRAM TO REDESIGNATE THE PROPERTY IDENTIFIED AS ASSESSOR’S MAP 

17-04-26-00, TAX LOTS 2801, 4303 AND 4304 AND ASSESSOR’S MAP 17-04-26-43, TAX LOT 302
FROM HEAVY INDUSTRIAL TO LIGHT MEDIUM INDUSTRIAL AND REZONE THE PROPERTY

FROM I-3 HEAVY INDUSTRIAL TO I-2 LIGHT-MEDIUM INDUSTRIAL 

APPLICATION OVERVIEW  

Name (File Numbers): Central Eugene Industrial Park (MA 20-3 / Z 20-10) 

Map No. / Tax Lots: 17-04-26-00 / 2801, 4303, 4304 and 17-04-26-43 / 302

The applicant is seeking an amendment to the Eugene-Springfield Metropolitan Area General 
Plan (Metro Plan) land use diagram, and a concurrent zone change. The requested changes are 
outlined in Table 1, below.  

Table 1: Current/Proposed Plan Designations and Zoning 

The subject property is located west of Highway 99, north of West 5th Avenue, south of 1st 
Avenue, and east of Seneca Road. It consists of four separate tax lots with 3 different owners, 
all of whom have submitted their permission to proceed with this application. 

FINDINGS 

This request for a Metro Plan Amendment (Type I) is subject to the land use application procedures 
in the Eugene Code (EC) 9.7700-9.7735. The applicant has also requested a zone change. Per EC 
9.8005, the requested zone change is being processed concurrently. The applicable refinement 
plans are the Bethel Danebo Neighborhood Refinement Plan, Phase 2, and the West Eugene 
Wetlands Plan.  Neither refinement plan contains a land use diagram and therefore the refinement 
plans do not require any amendments to remain consistent with the applicant’s proposed changes 
to the Metro Plan Diagram. 

The applicant’s narrative states that, “the proposed Metro Plan and Zoning Map amendments 
will allow a more diverse range of industrial uses and businesses that are compatible with 
existing nearby development.” While it is helpful and relevant to know why the applicant has 
requested the Metro Plan amendment and Zone Change, it is important to recognize that these 
findings will reflect how changes to the land use designation and zoning, and all potential uses 
resulting from said change, are consistent with the approval criteria. 

Central Eugene Industrial Park - Metro Plan Amendment & Zone Change 

Application (File #) Current Proposed Acres 

Metro Plan Amendment 
(MA 20-3) 

Heavy Industrial Light Medium Industrial ~41.31 

Zone Change 
(Z 20-10) 

I-3 Heavy Industrial
I-2 Light-Medium

Industrial 
~41.31 

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 5
CC Agenda - Page 43



EXHIBIT C 

Findings Page 2 of 14 
MA 20-3 / Z 20-10 

The following preliminary findings address details of the proposal in the context of compliance 
with the applicable approval criteria at EC 9.7735 and EC 9.8865. Those criteria are provided 
below (in bolded text), including findings addressing compliance with each. 

METRO PLAN AMENDMENT 

The applicant’s requested Metro Plan Amendment proposes to change the land use designation 
of the subject property from Heavy Industrial to Light Medium Industrial. The amendment 
qualifies as a Type I amendment as it only involves a change to the land use diagram and no 
text amendments to the plan are proposed or required. The following findings address the 
applicable approval criteria for the Metro Plan Amendment:  

EC 9.7735 (1):  The proposed amendment is consistent with the relevant Statewide Planning 
Goals. 

Goal 1: Citizen Involvement - To develop a citizen involvement program that ensures 
the opportunity for citizens to be involved in all phases of the planning process. 

The City’s provisions for citizen involvement ensure the opportunity for citizens to be involved 
in all phases of the planning process and set out requirements for such involvement. The 
proposal does not include any changes to the City’s citizen involvement program.  

The City’s land use code implements Statewide Planning Goal 1 through its noticing 
requirements, which include: 

 A pre-application neighborhood/applicant meeting (08/13/2020)

 Notice to the Oregon Department of Land Conservation and Development (12/22/2020)

 Referrals and notice sent to Lane County and the City of Springfield (01/06/2021)

 Public notice for the Planning Commission public hearing to consider the applications,
which includes: mailing notice to interested parties and adjacent property owners
(12/24/2020); posting of the notice on-site (01/08/2021); and, publishing the notice in a
local newspaper (01/08/2021).

Consideration of the amendment and zone change will begin with a Planning Commission 
public hearing on January 26, 2021, which provides an opportunity for members of the public to 
provide oral testimony in addition to written comments. Following consideration and 
deliberations, the Planning Commission will provide a recommendation to the City Council. The 
Eugene City Council will then hold a public hearing to consider the proposal. Each public hearing 
will present an opportunity for interested parties to provide testimony to the Planning 
Commission and City Council for their consideration. 

Based on these findings, the proposed Metro Plan Amendment is consistent with Statewide 
Planning Goal 1.  

Goal 2: Land Use Planning - To establish a land use planning process and policy 
framework as a basis for all decisions and actions related to use of land and to assure 
an adequate factual base for such decisions and actions. 

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 5
CC Agenda - Page 44



EXHIBIT C 

Findings Page 3 of 14 
MA 20-3 / Z 20-10 

In accordance with Statewide Planning Goal 2, the requested Metro Plan Amendment is being 
processed according to Eugene’s land use code, which specifies the procedure and criteria for 
consideration of the request. The requested Metro Plan amendment qualifies as a Type I 
amendment as defined in EC 9.7705 because the only requested change is to the Metro Plan’s 
land use diagram, for lands located wholly within the City of Eugene. Consistent with EC 
9.7715(1), the request for an amendment was initiated by a representative of the property 
owners. Per EC 9.7705(1), this Type I amendment requires approval by City of Eugene only. The 
subject property is entirely within the Eugene City limits and there is no regional impact 
associated with this request to amend the Metro Plan land use designation.  

As the application follows the procedural requirements established by Eugene’s land use code, 
the amendment is consistent with Statewide Planning Goal 2. 

The Statewide Planning Goal 2 coordination requirement is met when the City engages in an 
exchange, or invites such an exchange, between the City and any affected governmental unit 
and when the City uses the information obtained in the exchange to balance the needs of its 
citizens. To comply with the Goal 2 coordination requirement, the City provided notice of the 
proposal and an opportunity to comment to Lane County, Lane Council of Governments, City of 
Springfield, the Oregon Department of Transportation and the Oregon Department of Land 
Conservation and Development.  

There are no exceptions to Statewide Planning Goal 2 required for this amendment. Therefore, 
the amendments are consistent with Statewide Planning Goal 2. 

Goal 3: Agricultural Lands - To preserve agricultural lands. 

The amendment is for property located within the urban growth boundary and does not affect 
any land designated for agricultural use. Based on this finding, Statewide Planning Goal 3 does 
not apply. 

Goal 4: Forest Lands - To preserve forest lands. 

The amendment is for property located within the urban growth boundary and does not affect 
any land designated for forest use. Based on this finding, Statewide Planning Goal 4 does not 
apply. 

Goal 5: Natural Resources, Scenic and Historic Areas, and Open Spaces - To protect 
natural resources and conserve scenic and historic areas and open spaces. 

There are no Goal 5 resources located on the subject property. This amendment does not 
create or amend the City’s list of Goal 5 resources, does not amend a code provision adopted in 
order to protect a significant Goal 5 resource or to address specific requirements of Goal 5, nor 
does it allow new uses that could be conflicting with a significant Goal 5 resource site. 
Therefore, Statewide Planning Goal 5 does not apply. 

Goal 6: Air, Water and Land Resources Quality - To maintain and improve the quality 
of the air, water and land resources of the state. 

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 5
CC Agenda - Page 45



EXHIBIT C 

Findings Page 4 of 14 
MA 20-3 / Z 20-10 

The proposed change to the Metro Plan Diagram does not impact existing regulations that 
implement the air, water, and land resources quality protections. Any future development will 
be subject to City regulations and other state and federal requirements, ensuring that future 
developments will be consistent with this Goal. Based on these findings, the Metro Plan 
amendment is consistent with Statewide Planning Goal 6. 

Goal 7: Areas Subject to Natural Hazards - To protect people and property from 
natural hazards. 

Statewide Planning Goal 7 requires that local government planning programs include provisions 
to protect people and property from the following natural hazards: floods, landslides, 
earthquakes and related hazards, tsunamis, coastal erosion and wildfires. Goal 7 prohibits 
development in natural hazard areas without appropriate safeguards. The subject property is 
not located within known areas of natural disasters or hazards. The subject property is outside 
the flood zone and is not subject to hazards normally associated with wildfires or tsunamis. 
Other hazards can be mitigated at the time of development based on applicable land use code 
provisions, building codes and building techniques. The amendment to the Metro Plan Diagram 
does not affect the City’s restrictions on development in areas subject to natural disasters and 
hazards. Based on these findings, the amendment is consistent with Statewide Planning Goal 7. 

Goal 8: Recreational Needs - To satisfy the recreational needs of the citizens of the 
state and visitors and, where appropriate, to provide for the siting of necessary 
recreational facilities including destination resorts. 

Statewide Planning Goal 8 ensures the provision of recreational facilities to Oregon citizens and 
is primarily concerned with the provision of those facilities in non-urban areas of the state. The 
Metro Plan Diagram amendment does not affect the City’s provisions for or access to recreation 
areas, facilities or recreational opportunities. Therefore, Statewide Planning Goal 8 does not 
apply. 

Goal 9: Economic Development - To provide adequate opportunities throughout the 
state for a variety of economic activities vital to the health, welfare, and prosperity of 
Oregon's citizens. 

Statewide Planning Goal 9 requires cities to evaluate the supply and demand of commercial and 
industrial land relative to community economic objectives. This amendment to the Metro Plan 
Diagram is only related to lands designated as industrial. The Administrative Rule for Statewide 
Planning Goal 9 (OAR 660 Division 9) requires that the City provide for at least an adequate 
supply of sites of suitable sizes, types, locations, and service levels for a variety of industrial and 
commercial uses consistent with plan policies.  

The Employment Lands Supply Study 2012-2032 (ELSS) is included as Appendix B in the City’s 
comprehensive plan, Envision Eugene, and complies with the requirements of Goal 9 and the 
corresponding Administrative Rule.  

The ELSS classifies the subject properties as “developed commercial and industrial lands.” See 
Employment Land Supply (2012) Figure 5, map tile 10 of 18. Based on this classification, the 

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 5
CC Agenda - Page 46



EXHIBIT C 

Findings Page 5 of 14 
MA 20-3 / Z 20-10 

subject property was not included in the inventory of available or developable employment 
lands within Eugene’s Urban Growth Boundary. Therefore, while the subject property may have 
some vacant and developable areas, the proposed amendment to the Metro Plan will have no 
impact on the City’s adopted supply of industrially designated land. 

Further, the map amendments do not add or subtract any industrial land from the adopted 
inventories. For the purposes of the City’s ELSS, all industrial land use land designations 
(Campus, Light-Medium, and Heavy) are grouped together. Therefore, properties within the 
broad category of industrial can be re-designated to another type of industrial without 
changing the amount of industrial land in the City’s inventory. In this case, a re-designation 
from Heavy Industrial to Light-Medium Industrial results in no net change to the City’s adopted 
inventory of industrially designated land.  

OAR 660-009-010(4) includes specific requirements for changes in plan designation that involve 
land in excess of two acres within an existing urban growth boundary from an industrial use 
designation to a non-industrial use designation, or another employment use designation to any 
other use designation. While the subject property is in excess of 2 acres, the proposed change is 
from one industrial designation (Heavy) to another industrial designation (Light-Medium). 
Therefore, the requirements of OAR 660-009-010(4) do not apply.  

The requested Metro Plan Amendment will not adversely impact the City’s ability to provide 
opportunities for a variety of economic activities. In the application materials, the applicant 
addresses the economic benefits of the proposed change. The applicant asserts that the 
proposed change will “allow a more diverse range of industrial uses and businesses that are 
compatible with existing nearby development.”  

Further contextual analysis demonstrating how the proposed amendment supports Statewide 
Planning Goal 9 generally is included in the applicant’s narrative.  

Based on these findings, the amendment is consistent with Statewide Planning Goal 9. 

Goal 10: Housing - To provide for the housing needs of citizens of the state. 

The subject property does not include any lands designated for residential use in the City’s 
Buildable Lands Inventory (BLI); therefore, the proposal does not include any changes that 
would impact the availability of residential lands for housing, nor does it impact the City’s 
ability to provide for housing needs in the future. Based on these findings, Statewide Planning 
Goal 10 does not apply.  

Goal 11: Public Facilities and Services - To plan and develop a timely, orderly and 
efficient arrangement of public facilities and services to serve as a framework for 
urban and rural development. 

The Metro Plan Diagram amendment does not affect the City’s provision of public facilities and 
services. Based on this finding, Statewide Planning Goal 11 does not apply. However, as a note, 
all necessary public services exist or are readily available in close proximity to the subject site. 

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 5
CC Agenda - Page 47



EXHIBIT C 

Findings Page 6 of 14 
MA 20-3 / Z 20-10 

Goal 12: Transportation - To provide and encourage a safe, convenient and economic 
transportation system. 

Goal 12 requires a determination of whether the proposed Metro Plan Amendment will 
significantly impact an existing or planned transportation facility. OAR 660-012-0060, the 
Transportation Planning Rule (TPR), implements Goal 12 for proposed amendments to the 
Metro Plan diagram, such as this application. The TPR contains the following requirement: 

OAR 660-012-0060(1) If an amendment to a functional plan, an acknowledged 
comprehensive plan, or a land use regulation (including a zoning map) would significantly 
affect an existing or planned transportation facility, then the local government must put in 
place measures as provided in section (2) of this rule, unless the amendment is allowed 
under section (3), (9) or (10) of this rule. A plan or land use regulation amendment 
significantly affects a transportation facility if it would: 

(a) Change the functional classification of an existing or planned transportation facility
(exclusive of correction of map errors in an adopted plan);

(b) Change standards implementing a functional classification system; or

(c) Result in any of the effects listed in paragraphs (A) through (C) of this subsection based
on projected conditions measured at the end of the planning period identified in the
adopted TSP. As part of evaluating projected conditions, the amount of traffic projected
to be generated within the area of the amendment may be reduced if the amendment
includes an enforceable, ongoing requirement that would demonstrably limit traffic
generation, including, but not limited to, transportation demand management. This
reduction may diminish or completely eliminate the significant effect of the amendment.

(A) Types or levels of travel or access that are inconsistent with the functional
classification of an existing or planned transportation facility;

(B) Degrade the performance of an existing or planned transportation facility such
that it would not meet the performance standards identified in the TSP or
comprehensive plan; or

(C) Degrade the performance of an existing or planned transportation facility that is
otherwise projected to not meet the performance standards identified in the TSP or
comprehensive plan.

Kelly Sandow, PE, of Sandow Engineering, prepared a TPR analysis on behalf of the applicant to 
demonstrate consistency with Statewide Planning Goal 12 requirements and the Eugene 2035 
Transportation System Plan (TSP). The analysis calculated an assumed “worst-case 
development” scenario for the existing and proposed land use designations and zoning to 
quantify potential transportation impacts for a 20-year planning horizon. The assumption was 
based on the total site area, a rate of development based on proposed zoning and a high traffic 
impact use allowed in the existing (I-3) and proposed (I-2) zone. The result of the 
Transportation Engineer’s calculation is that development under the proposed designation and 

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 5
CC Agenda - Page 48



EXHIBIT C 

Findings Page 7 of 14 
MA 20-3 / Z 20-10 

zoning would potentially generate 428 more peak hour trips compared to the existing 
designation. City staff concurs with the scope of the study, and the analysis is consistent with 
the agreed upon scope of work. 

The applicant’s TPR analysis concludes that the proposed amendment and zone change will not 
significantly affect the operation of the studied intersections, in accordance with OAR 660-012-
0060(1). This is supported by findings included within the analysis that verify the proposed 
amendment and zone change does not significantly affect any transportation facility, citing 
compliance with OAR 660-012-0060(1)(a) though (c). The analysis concludes that because OAR 
660-012-0060(1) is satisfied and there is no significant effect, the remaining OAR subsections
(2) through (11) do not apply.

While staff concurs with the consultant’s methodology and study, it was found that there is a 
significant effect that needs to be addressed under the TPR, contrary to the applicant’s TPR 
conclusions. A significant effect was triggered under OAR 660-012-0060(1)(c)(C) due to impact 
to the intersection at 5th Avenue and Seneca Road, as discussed further below. 

The City uses Level of Service (LOS) as our performance standard to determine significant effect 
and our locally adopted performance standard is a minimum LOS “E” at all intersections outside 
of the downtown area.  LOS can be generally described as a report card that measures of the 
amount of time delay expected at a given intersection. Based on the amount of delay, 
intersections are graded “A” through “F”, where delay thresholds “A” is little or no delay and 
“F” is excessive and demand is nearing capacity). Per Table 6 of the applicant’s TPR analysis, the 
proposal impacts the intersection at 5th Avenue and Seneca Road. Without any changes, this 
intersection is projected to operate below the City’s performance standard (LOS “F”) in 2035. 
As the requested change in plan designation and zoning will result in increased vehicle trips to 
this intersection, it will result in further degradation of the LOS performance at the intersection 
of 5th and Seneca. Based on these facts, the requested change triggers a significant effect under 
Subsection (1)(c)(C). When a significant effect is determined, a remedy to mitigate increased 
degradation is required to ensure compliance with the TPR’s subsection (2). 

OAR 660-012-0060(2) If a local government determines that there would be a significant 
effect, then the local government must ensure that allowed land uses are consistent with 
the identified function, capacity, and performance standards of the facility measured at 
the end of the planning period identified in the adopted TSP through one or a 
combination of the remedies listed in (a) through (e) below, unless the amendment 
meets the balancing test in subsection (2)(e) of this section or qualifies for partial 
mitigation in section (11) of this rule. A local government using subsection (2)(e), section 
(3), section (10) or section (11) to approve an amendment recognizes that additional 
motor vehicle traffic congestion may result and that other facility providers would not be 
expected to provide additional capacity for motor vehicles in response to this congestion. 

(a) Adopting measures that demonstrate allowed land uses are consistent with
the planned function, capacity, and performance standards of the transportation
facility.

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 5
CC Agenda - Page 49



EXHIBIT C 

Findings Page 8 of 14 
MA 20-3 / Z 20-10 

(b) Amending the TSP or comprehensive plan to provide transportation facilities,
improvements or services adequate to support the proposed land uses consistent
with the requirements of this division; such amendments shall include a funding
plan or mechanism consistent with section (4) or include an amendment to the
transportation finance plan so that the facility, improvement, or service will be
provided by the end of the planning period.

(c) Amending the TSP to modify the planned function, capacity or performance
standards of the transportation facility.

(d) Providing other measures as a condition of development or through a
development agreement or similar funding method, including, but not limited to,
transportation system management measures or minor transportation
improvements. Local governments shall, as part of the amendment, specify when
measures or improvements provided pursuant to this subsection will be provided.

(e) Providing improvements that would benefit modes other than the significantly
affected mode, improvements to facilities other than the significantly affected
facility, or improvements at other locations, if:

(A) The provider of the significantly affected facility provides a written
statement that the system-wide benefits are sufficient to balance the
significant effect, even though the improvements would not result in
consistency for all performance standards;

(B) The providers of facilities being improved at other locations provide
written statements of approval; and

(C) The local jurisdictions where facilities are being improved provide
written statements of approval.

The following trip cap condition provides a remedy consistent with OAR 660-012-0060(2)(d). It 
limits future development’s transportation impact to a level the same as the current plan 
designation. The number of trips for the trip cap condition is based on the most reasonable 
buildout scenario under the current plan designation and zoning, which was calculated in the 
applicant’s TPR analysis. The result of the trip cap is that a change in plan designation and 
zoning will have no greater impact on the transportation system than the current designation 
and zone.  

Trip Cap Condition of Approval 
Site development shall be limited so as to generate no more than 438 PM peak hour 
vehicle trips as determined by the most current edition of the Institute of 
Transportation Engineers Trip Generation Manual. The City may allow development 
intensity beyond this maximum number of peak hour vehicle trips if the applicant 
submits to the appropriate approving agencies a transportation impact analysis 
demonstrating the proposed intensification of use is consistent with the Transportation 
Planning Rule (TPR) criteria outlined in Oregon Administrative Rule (OAR) 660 012-0060. 

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 5
CC Agenda - Page 50



EXHIBIT C 

Findings Page 9 of 14 
MA 20-3 / Z 20-10 

The applicant shall seek, and the City shall consider such approval using the City's Type II 
land use application procedure. 

With the inclusion of the trip cap condition, the proposal meets the requirements of Statewide 
Planning Goal 12, the Transportation Planning Rule, and the City’s TSP. Based on these findings 
and condition, the proposal is consistent with Statewide Planning Goal 12. 

Goal 13: Energy Conservation - To conserve energy. 

The proposed change to the Metro Plan‘s land use diagram will not amend or otherwise involve 
any land use regulations that implement this Goal. Therefore, Statewide Planning Goal 13 does 
not apply. 

Goal 14: Urbanization - To provide for an orderly and efficient transition from rural to 
urban land use, to accommodate urban population and urban employment inside 
urban growth boundaries, to ensure efficient use of land, and to provide for livable 
communities. 

The Metro Plan diagram amendment does not affect the City’s provisions regarding the 
transition of land from rural to urban uses. Based on this finding, Statewide Planning Goal 14 
does not apply. 

Goal 15: Willamette River Greenway - To protect, conserve, enhance and maintain the 
natural, scenic, historical, agricultural, economic and recreational qualities of lands 
along the Willamette River as the Willamette River Greenway. 

The Metro Plan Amendment does not contain any changes that affect the Willamette River 
Greenway regulations, nor is the subject property located within the adopted Willamette 
Greenway boundary. Based on this finding, Statewide Planning Goal 15 does not apply. 

Goals 16 – 19: Estuarine Resources; Coastal Shorelands; Beaches and Dunes; and 
Ocean Resources 

There are no estuarine, beach and dune, coastal, or ocean resources related to subject 
property. Based on this finding, Statewide Planning Goals 16 through 19 do not apply. 

Based on the findings above, the Metro Plan Amendment complies with the Statewide Planning 
Goals and the approval criterion at EC 9.7735(1) is met. 

EC 9.7735(2):  The proposed amendment does not make the Metro Plan internally 
inconsistent. 

No policies within the Metro Plan appear to serve as mandatory approval criteria for this 
application, nor do any Metro Plan policies appear to be directly relevant to this site-specific 
Metro Plan Diagram amendment. Therefore, the proposed amendment does not present any 
conflict with Metro Plan policies nor make the Metro Plan internally inconsistent. Based on 
these findings, this criterion is met.  

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 5
CC Agenda - Page 51



EXHIBIT C 

Findings Page 10 of 14 
MA 20-3 / Z 20-10 

EC 9.7735(3):  When the city-specific local comprehensive plan also applies, the proposed 
amendment is consistent with the city-specific local comprehensive plan. 

The city-specific local comprehensive plan for the City of Eugene is the Envision Eugene 
Comprehensive Plan. The following policies from the Envision Eugene (EE) Comprehensive Plan 
provide general support for the amendment to the Metro Plan Diagram:  

EE Policy 3.15: Adequate Land Supply. Designate an adequate number of sites within the 
urban growth boundary to accommodate growing local businesses and new targeted 
industries, especially a diversified manufacturing base that includes advanced 
manufacturing, food and beverages, wood products manufacturing, regional distribution, 
trade, and services such as offices, software developers, educational technology, corporate 
headquarters, and other employment uses. 

EE Policy 3.18: Multimodal Freight Accessibility. Encourage maximum use of industrial land 
by businesses that rely on access and adjacency to multimodal (rail, highway, airport) 
freight infrastructure and services. 

EE Policy 3.19: Industrial Land Preservation. Protect and retain the West Eugene and 
Highway 99 Industrial Corridors as industrial land, particularly parcels with access to rail 
infrastructure. Foster opportunities for a variety of heavy industrial development in existing 
heavy industrial areas. 

EE Policy 3.22: West Eugene Employment Areas. Protect industrial areas in west Eugene, 
while supporting their evolution into diverse places of commerce with a flexible regulatory 
approach that offers a broad mix of employment and industrial uses, thereby 
accommodating increased employment densities and services to surrounding 
neighborhoods. 

Each of the policies above comes from Economic Development Chapter of the Envision Eugene 
Comprehensive Plan. The applicant contends that the proposed amendment will diversify the 
industrial and employment uses permitted on the site, which is supported by Policies 3.19 and 
3.22. The proposed amendment also results in the property remaining an industrial designation 
with access to a private rail spur and thus is supported by Policies 3.18, 3.19, and 3.22. The 
proposed amendment and concurrent zone change greatly expands the number of permitted 
industrial and employment uses, while only four uses will no longer be allowed, including: 
Existing Homeless Shelters, Conditional Explosives Manufacturing, large collection recycling 
facilities, and scrap and dismantling yard (see EC Table 9.2450 for a complete list of permitted 
uses in the Employment and Industrial Zones). Based on these facts, the proposed amendment 
and concurrent zone change are generally supported by the Economic Development policies 
cited above.  

The Transportation chapter of Envision Eugene states that the Eugene 2035 Transportation 
System Plan (TSP) serves as the transportation element for the comprehensive plan. As noted in 
the findings related to Statewide Planning Goal 12, the Metro Plan Diagram amendment is 
consistent with the City’s TSP, and therefore consistent with the transportation element of 

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 5
CC Agenda - Page 52



EXHIBIT C 

Findings Page 11 of 14 
MA 20-3 / Z 20-10 

Envision Eugene. No transportation policies appear to be directly relevant to this site-specific 
Metro Plan Amendment, nor do they serve as mandatory approval criteria for the amendment. 

Based on these findings, the proposed Metro Plan Amendment is consistent with Envision 
Eugene, the City’s local comprehensive plan.  

ZONE CHANGE 

The applicant’s request includes a concurrent zone change from I-3 Heavy Industrial to I-2 Light-
Medium Industrial, to bring the zoning into conformance with the proposed Light-Medium 
Industrial plan designation. The following findings address the applicable approval criteria for 
the zone change request:  

EC 9.8865(1):  The proposed change is consistent with applicable provisions of the Metro 
Plan. The written text of the Metro Plan shall take precedence over the Metro Plan diagram 
where apparent conflicts or inconsistencies exist. 

According to EC 9.2410, the requested I-2 zone implements the Metro Plan’s Light-Medium 
Industrial land use designation. Therefore, the zone change is consistent with a change to the 
Metro Plan Diagram to designate the subject property as Light-Medium Industrial. There are no 
Metro Plan polices that serve as mandatory approval criteria for this zone change or require 
further analysis beyond that provided above for the requested Metro Plan Amendment.  

Based on these findings, and with approval of the Metro Plan Diagram Amendment, this 
criterion is met.  

EC 9.8865(2):  The proposed zone change is consistent with applicable adopted refinement 
plans. In the event of inconsistencies between these plans and the Metro Plan, the Metro 
Plan controls. 

One applicable adopted refinement plan for the area of this request is the Bethel Danebo 
Neighborhood Refinement Plan, Phase 2. This refinement plan does not contain a land use 
diagram, and therefore the proposed change relies on the designation set forth by the Metro 
Plan’s land use diagram, as discussed above. No other policies or provisions within the Bethel 
Danebo Neighborhood Refinement Plan, Phase 2 appear to serve as mandatory approval 
criteria for this zone change. 

Another applicable adopted refinement plan is the West Eugene Wetlands Plan (WEWP). Again, 
this refinement plan does not contain a land use diagram, and therefore the proposed change 
relies on the designation set forth by the Metro Plan’s land use diagram, as discussed above. 
The WEWP does not identify any wetlands on the subject property. No other policies or 
provisions within the WEWP appear to serve as mandatory approval criteria for this zone 
change.  

Based on these findings, and with approval of the amendment to the Metro Plan Diagram, this 
criterion is met.  

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 5
CC Agenda - Page 53



EXHIBIT C 

Findings Page 12 of 14 
MA 20-3 / Z 20-10 

EC 9.8865(3):  The uses and density that will be allowed by the proposed zoning in the 
location of the proposed change can be served through the orderly extension of key urban 
facilities and services. 

Key urban facilities and services are defined in the Metro Plan as: wastewater service, 
stormwater service, transportation, water service, fire and emergency medical services, police 
protection, City-wide parks and recreation programs, electric service, land use controls, 
communication facilities, and public schools on a district-wide basis (see Metro Plan, page V-3). 
The following summary addresses the availability of these key urban services and facilities as 
required under this criterion.  

Wastewater: Public wastewater service is currently available for the subject property from 
wastewater lines located in in West 5th Avenue, Seneca Road, and West 1st Avenue. 
Wastewater standards will be reviewed at the time of future development for any extension of 
service to the subject property. 

Stormwater: Existing stormwater conveyance lines are located in West 5th Avenue, Stevenson 
Way, Seneca Road, and West 1st Avenue. Stormwater standards will be reviewed at the time of 
future development for any extension of service to the subject property. 

Streets: The subject property has public street frontage on West 1st Avenue, Seneca Road, West 
5th Avenue, and Stevenson Way. Compliance with applicable street standards will be addressed 
at the time of future development.  

Solid Waste: Collection service is provided by private entities. Regional disposal sites and the 
Short Mountain Landfill are operated by Lane County. 

Water and Electric: Water and electrical services, operated by Eugene Water and Electric Board 
(EWEB) are existing or available for extension to the property. Any future development will 
require coordination with EWEB staff to ensure that water and electric services comply with 
City standards and EWEB requirements.  

Public Safety: Police protection for the subject property is consistent with service provision 
through the City. Fire protection will be provided by the Eugene Springfield Fire Department. 
Emergency medical services are currently provided on a regional basis by the cities of Eugene 
and Springfield. 

Transportation: The subject property is accessible to pedestrians, bicycles, and vehicles via the 
surrounding network of streets and transportation infrastructure. Transit services are available 
along Seneca Road, as well as along Highway 99.  

Parks and Recreation: Parks and recreation programs are provided on a City‐wide basis. The 
inclusion of the subject property in the City is sufficient evidence to demonstrate the minimum 
level of this key urban service is met. 

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 5
CC Agenda - Page 54



EXHIBIT C 

Findings Page 13 of 14 
MA 20-3 / Z 20-10 

Planning and Development Services: Planning and building permit services are provided for all 
properties located within the urban growth boundary by the City of Eugene. The Eugene Code, 
Chapter 9, will provide the required land use controls for future development of the subject 
property. 

Communication: A variety of telecommunication providers offer communications services 
throughout the Eugene/Springfield area; therefore, these services are available, and this key 
urban service requirement is met.  

Public Schools: The subject property is within Eugene School District 4J. As access to schools is 
evaluated on a district wide basis, the property’s location within the school district is sufficient 
evidence to demonstrate the minimum level of this key urban service is met. 

Based on these findings, this criterion is satisfied. 

EC 9.8865(4):  The proposed zone change is consistent with the applicable siting 
requirements set out for the specific zone in: 

(b) EC 9.2430 Employment and Industrial Zone Siting Requirements.

The specific siting standards for the I-2, Light-Medium Industrial zone are listed under EC 
9.2430(3) and provided for ease of reference below.  

EC 9.2430(3) I-2 Light – Medium Industrial. This zone is limited to areas designated Light-
Medium Industrial in the comprehensive plan or those that meet all of the following 
minimum siting requirements: 

(a) Access to arterial streets without undue negative impact on residential streets.
(b) No more than 5 acres.
(c) Sufficient street frontage to accommodate structures, parking, and access in
character with adjacent non-industrial properties.

I-2 zoning is limited to areas designated Light-Medium Industrial and the subject property is
designated Light-Medium Industrial by the Metro Plan Diagram amendment approved as part
of this set of applications. As such, the alternative siting standards on lands not designated
Light-Medium industrial at EC 9.2430(3)(a)-(c) are not applicable.

Based on these findings, with approval of the proposed Metro Plan Diagram amendment, the 
siting requirements of EC 9.2430 are satisfied, and this criterion is met.  

EC 9.8865(5):  In cases where the NR zone is applied … 

This criterion does not apply because the proposed zone change does not include the NR zone. 

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 5
CC Agenda - Page 55

https://eugene.municipal.codes/EC/9.2430


EXHIBIT C 

Findings Page 14 of 14 
MA 20-3 / Z 20-10 

OAR 660-012-0060 - Transportation Planning Rule 

While not an approval criterion included in Eugene Code, zone change applications are required to 
demonstrate compliance with the State’s Transportation Planning Rule under OAR 660-012-0060. 
Consistent with the findings under the Statewide Planning Goal 12, incorporated herein by 
reference, the proposed zone change is consistent with the Transportation Planning Rule.  

CONCLUSION 

Based on the available information and evidence, and the preceding findings of compliance 
with the applicable approval criteria, the proposed Metro Plan Amendment and Zone Change 
comply with the applicable approval criteria, subject to the following conditions of approval:  

Trip Cap Condition of Approval 
Site development shall be limited so as to generate no more than 438 PM peak hour 
vehicle trips as determined by the most current edition of the Institute of 
Transportation Engineers Trip Generation Manual. The City may allow development 
intensity beyond this maximum number of peak hour vehicle trips if the applicant 
submits to the appropriate approving agencies a transportation impact analysis 
demonstrating the proposed intensification of use is consistent with the Transportation 
Planning Rule (TPR) criteria outlined in Oregon Administrative Rule (OAR) 660 012-0060. 
The applicant shall seek, and the City shall consider such approval using the City's Type II 
land use application procedure. 

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 5
CC Agenda - Page 56



 

  March 8, 2021, Meeting – Item 6 

EUGENE CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 
 
  
Public Hearing:  An Ordinance Concerning Clear and Objective Approval Criteria for 

Housing; Amending Sections 9.0500, 9.2181, 9.2471, 9.2520, 9.2687, 9.2751, 9.2761, 
9.3216, 9.3221, 9.3626, 9.3725, 9.4830, 9.5750, 9.6010, 9.6710, 9.6810, 9.6815, 
9.6820, 9.6845, 9.6865, 9.6885, 9.7007, 9.8030, 9.8045, 9.8055, 9.8085, 9.8090, 
9.8100, 9.8105, 9.8205, 9.8210, 9.8215, 9.8220, 9.8310, 9.8320, 9.8325, 9.8360, 
9.8365, 9.8440, 9.8445, 9.8505, 9.8510, 9.8515, and 9.8520 of the Eugene Code, 

1971; Adding Section 9.5860 to That Code; and Providing an Effective Date          
(City File CA 20-4)                       

 
 
Meeting Date:  March 8, 2021 Agenda Item:  6 
Department:  Planning & Development Staff Contact:  Jenessa Dragovich 
www.eugene-or.gov Contact Telephone Number:  541-682-8385 
   
  
ISSUE STATEMENT 
The City Council will hold a public hearing on city-wide land use code amendments to implement 
changes identified through the Clear & Objective Housing Approval Criteria Update.  A summary of 
the proposed land use code amendments is provided in Attachment A. 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
As part of the Envision Eugene urban growth boundary (UGB) process, in 2015, City Council 
initiated several projects.  These included establishing a baseline UGB, establishing urban 
reserves, growth monitoring and updating the City’s needed housing (clear and objective) 
regulations.  Related to the City’s needed housing regulations, the council specifically directed an 
update of the City’s procedures and approval criteria for needed housing (clear and objective) 
applications, following the adoption of the UGB.  
 
Through this project, Eugene’s existing clear and objective approval criteria have been 
reevaluated for potential updates.  Proposed updates were crafted based on the following goals:  
 accommodate housing on lands available within our current UGB 
 provide a clear and objective path to land use approval for all housing as required by State 

law 
 guide future housing development in a way that reflects our community’s values 

 
The project has identified land use approval criteria and procedures to be updated, added, or 
removed to improve efficiency in complying with State requirements for clear and objective 
regulations, while still effectively addressing development impacts. 

 

CC Agenda - Page 57



 

  March 8, 2021, Meeting – Item 6 

As a reminder, state law requires that local governments adopt and apply clear and objective 
standards, conditions, and procedures regulating the development of all housing.  The intent of 
this requirement is to ensure that communities provide a predictable path to approval for housing 
projects and that path does not rely on discretionary or subjective criteria.  This may include 
development standards such as setbacks and building height that apply to housing at the time of 
building permit, as well as land use application criteria that apply to land use applications, such as 
subdivisions, for the development of housing.   
 
Cities that provide a clear and objective land use application approval path may also adopt 
alternative or “discretionary” approval criteria that developers may elect to follow, for example to 
allow greater flexibility in housing development proposals.  Eugene has a two-track system 
currently, and this project is focused on the existing clear and objective approval criteria for our 
conditional use, partition, planned unit development (PUD), site review, and subdivision 
applications – currently called the Needed Housing tracks. 
 
The Clear & Objective Update was formally kicked-off in 2018 and has consisted of four phases.   
The project was designed to provide incremental review of proposed code changes, with public 
involvement and review by Planning Commission and City Council provided during each phase of 
the project.  Stakeholders helped identify significant issues in Phase 1, helped generate possible 
concepts in Phase 2, and had opportunity in Phase 3 to weigh in on draft amendments.  Planning 
Commission and City Council check-ins have occurred at key project milestones.  Phase 4, 
currently underway, is the formal adoption process.  The public had opportunity to provide input 
on the draft amendments during the Planning Commission public hearing process and has another 
chance through the public hearing before City Council.  
 
A summary of the proposed amendments is provided in Attachment A.  The draft ordinance is 
provided as Attachment B.  
 
Public Involvement 
The Clear & Objective Update was intentionally designed to have an iterative review process with 
public involvement opportunities throughout the project phases.  The level of engagement has 
varied with the requirements of each project phase.  Throughout the process, we’ve kept the 
public informed about the status and the outcomes through emails to interested parties, 
newsletter updates, and the project website.  
 
Extensive input was gathered early on by consulting with and involving key stakeholders.  This 
group included users of the land use code, housing providers, staff, and people affected by the 
outcomes of development.  With a technical code amendment project such as this, broader input 
and involvement opportunities occur early as key issues are identified and concepts for 
addressing them generated.  Next, the project moved on to the more technical draft code writing 
and formal adoption phases.  During these latter phases, most testimony received was from 
interested parties who work directly with the land use code on a regular basis.  Staff and Planning 
Commission evaluated and responded to all input thoughtfully, appreciative of the time and effort 
stakeholders contributed to help draft meaningful and realistic code changes.  
 

CC Agenda - Page 58



 

  March 8, 2021, Meeting – Item 6 

As noted above, the project was intentionally designed to allow incremental review from Planning 
Commission and Council as well as the public.  A complete list (with webcast links) of the 22 
previous Planning Commission and City Council meetings related to the project is included as 
Attachment C.  
 
Procedural Summary for Adoption of Land Use Code Amendments 
This proposed code amendment is subject to Type V application procedures from the Eugene Code 
(EC 9.7500 through EC 9.7560) for the upcoming public hearing, as well as the applicable approval 
criteria from EC 9.8065.  These application procedures provide for a legislative review of changes 
to the land use code.  The process includes public notice and hearing before the Planning 
Commission, which forwards a recommendation to the City Council for a final public hearing and 
action.  
 
Planning Commission Review Process/Recommendation 
Notice for the public hearing before Planning Commission was conducted consistent with applicable 
requirements of the Eugene Code.  This includes notice sent to Eugene neighborhood organizations, 
the Oregon Department of Land Conservation and Development, Lane County, the City of Springfield, 
and other community groups and individuals who requested notice.  Notice was also published in the 
Register Guard.  In addition to the required public notice, staff has maintained a webpage and 
interested parties list for the duration of the project and has provided regular updates of important 
dates and opportunities for public comment, including the public hearing.  
 
Following the public hearing on October 20, 2020, the Planning Commission held five deliberation 
meetings.  The Commission thoroughly reviewed and refined the draft amendments using a 
thoughtful approach that considered public input and sought to balance multiple community 
values.  The Planning Commission voted unanimously (7-0) to recommend City Council approval 
of the proposed amendments, with refinements that have been incorporated into the draft 
Ordinance.  Attachment D is a memorandum from the Planning Commission to City Council that 
provides additional context and insight into the Commission’s review and recommendation.  
 
City Council Process 
Consistent with Eugene Code requirements, notice of the City Council public hearing was mailed 
on February 23, 2021 to anyone who submitted written or oral testimony in a timely manner 
during the Planning Commission hearing procedures and anyone who requested notice of the 
Planning Commission’s recommendation.  Any written comments received after the preparation of 
this agenda item summary will be provided to the City Council prior to the public hearing for 
inclusion into the public record.  City Council action is currently scheduled for April 12, 2021. 
 
 
PREVIOUS COUNCIL DIRECTION 
May 30, 2018, Update 
 
November 26, 2018, Work Session 

Move to advance the maintenance concepts and the significant concepts identified in this AIS 
as less complex to the draft land use code writing phase. (Motion passed) 
 

CC Agenda - Page 59

https://eugene.municipal.codes/EC/9.7500
https://eugene.municipal.codes/EC/9.7560
https://eugene.municipal.codes/EC/9.8065
https://eugene.ompnetwork.org/embed/sessions/156262/eugene-planning-commission-public-hearing-october-20-2020?default_tab=1
https://eugene.ompnetwork.org/embed/sessions/38872/eugene-city-council-wednesday-work-session-may-30-2018
https://eugene.ompnetwork.org/embed/sessions/93670/eugene-city-council-work-session-november-26-2018


 

  March 8, 2021, Meeting – Item 6 

January 23, 2019, Work Session 
Move to advance the preferred concepts identified in Attachment B to this AIS, as supported by 
Planning Commission, to the draft land use code writing phase. (Motion passed) 
 

May 20, 2019, Work Session 
Move to advance draft land use code language substantially consistent with Attachment C to 
this AIS but also reflecting Planning Commission discussion regarding tree preservation, 300-
foot setback, 20 percent slope and quarter-mile open space to the formal adoption process. 
(Motion passed) 
  

 
ATTACHMENTS 
A. Summary of Proposed Amendments  
B. Draft Ordinance 
C. Links to Planning Commission and City Council Meetings 
D. Memo to City Council from the Eugene Planning Commission 
 
The project website at https://www.eugene-or.gov/3947/Clear-Objective contains background 
information and documents associated with this project. 
 
 
FOR MORE INFORMATION  
Staff Contact:  Jenessa Dragovich, Senior Planner  
Telephone:  541-682-8385 
Email:   jdragovich@eugene-or.gov 

CC Agenda - Page 60

https://eugene.ompnetwork.org/embed/sessions/97347/eugene-city-council-wednesday-work-session-january-23-2019
https://ompnetwork.s3-us-west-2.amazonaws.com/sites/134/documents/agenda_packet_5-20-19_work_session_-_post.pdf?Sa.AbmImG_hcecBxs0FRiTzpO3na5axL
https://www.eugene-or.gov/3947/Clear-Objective
https://www.eugene-or.gov/3947/Clear-Objective


CLEAR & OBJECTIVE HOUSING: APPROVAL CRITERIA UPDATE 

Proposed land use code amendments are divided into two categories – Maintenance Issues and Significant Issues. 

This summary describes each issue type followed by short descriptions of how the proposed amendments 

address the key issues.  

MAINTENANCE ISSUES 

Several key issues represent procedural changes or amendments that will create consistency between the clear 

and objective and discretionary review tracks, consistency with other sections of the land use code, or otherwise 

improve efficiency or effectiveness in the development review process. These require only maintenance-level 

code revisions that are relatively straightforward.  

Needed Housing Criterion – For consistency with State law, remove criterion that requires applicant to 

demonstrate that the proposed housing is needed housing for conditional use, partition, planned unit 

development, site review, and subdivision applications.  

Review Track Renaming – For clarity, rename the two existing review tracks to distinguish between the 

‘General/Discretionary’ track and the ‘Clear and Objective’ track only available to applications involving 

housing and revise references to these review tracks throughout Chapter 9 as needed. 

Applicable Standards Reference for Conditional Uses – For consistency with other clear and objective 

application types, revise the language for conditional use permits to require compliance with all applicable 

standards (instead of using “including but not limited to”) and add additional development standards to the 

list of applicable standards, including public improvement and street standards. 

Bonding Requirement – To improve effectiveness, revise the timing specified to construct or bond for 

required public improvements to be prior to issuance of a development permit for conditional use permits 

and site reviews; and, add a criterion similar to that required for final subdivisions to require that public 

improvements be completed or bonded prior to approval of the final application for final planned unit 

developments not associated with land divisions.  

Overlay Zone Standards – For consistency with the discretionary track, revise the clear and objective track 

approval criteria for the five application types to include compliance with the lot dimensions and density 

requirements in overlay zones. Use the same language provided for the discretionary track applications to 

require compliance with: “Lot standards of EC 9.2000 through 9.4170 regarding applicable lot dimensions and 

density requirements.”    

Planned Unit Development Adjustment/Modification – To improve efficiency and effectiveness, replace 

criterion that requires compliance with “all applicable development standards explicitly addressed in the 

application except where the applicant has shown that a modification is consistent with the purposes as set 

out in EC 9.8300 Purpose of Planned Unit Development” with a requirement for compliance with “all 

applicable development standards explicitly addressed in the application.” 

SUMMARY OF PROPOSED AMENDMENTS 

Attachment A

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 6CC Agenda - Page 61



CLEAR & OBJECTIVE HOUSING: APPROVAL CRITERIA UPDATE 
 
 

  

Access Management Requirement – To improve the review process, remove unnecessary criterion for 

partitions that requires compliance with access management guidelines of the agency having jurisdiction over 

the street. 

Natural Resource Protection Requirement – To improve the process, remove unnecessary criterion for 

protection of designated natural resource areas. Only two sites are formally designated, and they are already 

effectively protected by way of public ownership and long-term management for natural resource values, as 

well as through other land use regulations. 

Solar Lot Standards – Remove criterion for planned unit developments requiring compliance with solar lot 

standards. Solar lot standards only apply to the creation of lots within subdivisions and the criterion will no 

longer be necessary given the related amendment to allow concurrent reviews for tentative planned unit 

developments and tentative subdivisions. 

Planned Unit Development/Subdivision Concurrent Review – To improve process efficiency, revise code to 

allow concurrent review of tentative planned unit development and tentative subdivision or partition 

applications. 

Site Review Street Standards – For consistency, add compliance with Standards for Streets, Alleys, and Other 

Public Ways (EC 9.6800 through EC 9.6875) as an approval criterion for site reviews. 

Duplicate Neighborhood/Applicant Meeting – To improve process efficiency, provide an exception under the 

neighborhood/applicant meeting requirement at EC 9.7007 for subdivisions and partitions when processed in 

conjunction with a planned unit development. 

Off-Site Bike/Pedestrian Connections – For consistency, add the requirement for off-site connections for bike 

and pedestrian ways that already applies to partitions, planned unit developments and subdivisions to site 

reviews and conditional uses. 

Does Not Hamper Provision of Public Open Space – For consistency, add new criterion for subdivisions that 

requires connection to adjacent City owned park land, open space or ridgeline trail, unless the Public Works 

Director determines such a connection is not necessary. 

19 Lot Rule—Motor Vehicle Dispersal – For consistency with past Land Use Board of Appeals decision, remove 

discretionary criterion from the clear and objective track.  

 

SIGNIFICANT ISSUES 

The remaining issues addressed in the proposed amendments raised potential policy implications and were 

brought to stakeholder working groups for discussion and to generate possible concepts. Staff evaluated the 

possible concepts according to criteria outlined in the Preferred Concepts Report and presented staff 

recommendations to Planning Commission and City Council prior to drafting proposed code amendments in 

accordance with the approved concepts.  

Clear & Objective Compatibility – To improve effectiveness, add new code section for transition standards 

that will apply to new higher-intensity development abutting lower-intensity development (e.g. multi-family 

development next to single-family development in the R-1 Low-Density Residential zone). 

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 6CC Agenda - Page 62



CLEAR & OBJECTIVE HOUSING: APPROVAL CRITERIA UPDATE 
 
 

  

30-Foot Buffer Requirement for Planned Unit Developments – Remove existing criterion and replace with 

new criterion requiring compliance with transition standards (see Clear & Objective Compatibility above). 

Geotechnical Requirement – To improve effectiveness, revise existing criteria to address additional landslide 

risk factors and adopt new Eugene Landslide Hazard Map to identify moderate to high landslide risk areas. 

20 Percent Slope Grading Prohibition -- Remove existing criterion and rely on amended geotechnical 

requirements.  

One Acre Accessible Open Space for Planned Unit Developments – To improve effectiveness and efficient use 

of land, revise to reduce required distance from open space (for exception) from ¼ mile to ½ mile and make 

onsite open space requirement scalable when applicable. 

Limitation Over 900 Feet for Planned Unit Developments – To improve effectiveness and efficient use of land, 

revise to allow less intensive (2.5 dwelling units/gross acre) development above 900 feet elevation and include 

more stringent tree preservation requirements and limit allowable building area and driveway width. 

Ridgeline Setback for Planned Unit Developments – To improve efficient use of land, revise to make setback 

applicable only to areas above 900 feet elevation.  

40 Percent Open Space Requirement for Planned Unit Developments – To improve efficient use of land, 

remove existing criterion and rely on proximity (within ½ mile) to qualifying public open space and amended 

accessible open space criteria for planned unit developments. 

Conditional Use Compatibility Requirement – To improve effectiveness, add criterion requiring compliance 

with new transition standards. 

Partition Tree Preservation – For consistency between the two review tracks, remove criterion from the clear 

and objective track. The partition is a tool for infill development that has a longstanding practice and intent of 

allowing minor land divisions to encourage infill development. The discretionary track does not require 

compliance with tree preservation standards at the time of partition and tree preservation and removal 

standards already apply to development of housing at the time of building permit. 

Tree Preservation Consideration – To improve effectiveness, add new criteria that set required tree 

preservation requirements, allow mitigation options, and provide allowable tree species for required 

replacement plantings. Includes related amendments to the approval criteria for adjustments to these 

standards. 

Site Review Compatibility Requirement – To improve effectiveness, add criterion requiring compliance with 

new transition standards. 

Street Standards Modifications – To improve process efficiency, add clear and objective exceptions and an 

adjustment review option. 

Pedestrian Definition – For clarity, define ‘Pedestrian’ similar to the Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS) definition.  

 

 

 

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 6CC Agenda - Page 63



CLEAR & OBJECTIVE HOUSING: APPROVAL CRITERIA UPDATE 
 
 

       

 

Eugene Code 
Section   

Ordinance 
Section # 

Description of Proposed Amendment 

9.0500 1 Define ‘Pedestrian’ similar to the Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS) definition 

9.2181(1) 2 Revise reference to reflect renaming of the ‘General’ track to ‘General/Discretionary’ track 

9.2471(1) 3 Revise reference to reflect renaming of the ‘General’ track to ‘General/Discretionary’ track 

9.2520(2) 4 Revise reference to reflect renaming of the ‘General’ track to ‘General/Discretionary’ track 

9.2687(1) 5 Revise reference to reflect renaming of the ‘General’ track to ‘General/Discretionary’ track 
and the ‘Needed Housing’ track to ‘Housing/Clear and Objective’ track 

9.2751(2) 6 Revise reference to reflect renaming of the ‘General’ track to ‘General/Discretionary’ track 
and the ‘Needed Housing’ track to ‘Housing/Clear and Objective’ track and add option to 
adjust lot standards when processed concurrently with a planned unit development  

9.2761 7 Revise to allow adjustments to lot standards concurrent with a PUD  

9.3216(1) 8 Revise reference to reflect renaming of the ‘General’ track to ‘General/Discretionary’ track 
and the ‘Needed Housing’ track to ‘Housing/Clear and Objective’ track 

9.3221(1) 9 Revise reference to reflect renaming of the ‘General’ track to ‘General/Discretionary’ track 
and the ‘Needed Housing’ track to ‘Housing/Clear and Objective’ track 

9.3626(9) 10 Revise reference to reflect renaming of the ‘General’ track to ‘General/Discretionary’ track 
and the ‘Needed Housing’ track to ‘Housing/Clear and Objective’ track 

9.3725 11 Revise reference to reflect renaming of the ‘General’ track to ‘General/Discretionary’ track 

9.4830(2) 12 Revise reference to reflect renaming of the ‘General’ track to ‘General/Discretionary’ track 

9.5750(2) 13 Revise reference to reflect renaming of the ‘General’ track to ‘General/Discretionary’ track 

9.5860 
(New) 

14 Add section for transition standards that will apply to new higher-intensity development 
abutting lower-intensity development (e.g. multi-family development next to single-family 
development in the R-1 Low-Density Residential zone) 

Figure (New) 15 Add new Figure 9.5860(2)(a)2 illustrating the sloped setback requirement from Option 2 
of the transition standards 

9.6010(1) 16 Revise and clarify references in the general standards contained in EC chapter 9.6000 that 
only apply to housing proposals reviewed under the clear and objective approval criteria 

9.6010(1)(b) 16 Revise reference from ‘needed housing’ to ‘housing to be reviewed with clear and 
objective approval criteria’ 

9.6710 17 Revise geotechnical criteria to address additional landslide risk factors and adopt new 
Eugene Landslide Hazard Map to identify moderate to high landslide risk areas 

9.6810 18 Add clear and objective exceptions and an adjustment review option for applications 
proposing housing to be reviewed with clear and objective approval criteria 

9.6815 19 Add clear and objective exceptions and an adjustment review option for applications 
proposing housing to be reviewed with clear and objective approval criteria 

9.6820 20 Add clear and objective exceptions and an adjustment review option for applications 
proposing housing to be reviewed with clear and objective approval criteria 

9.6845 21 Revise reference to reflect renaming of the needed housing track 

9.6865 22 Revise reference to reflect renaming of the needed housing track 

9.6885 23 Revise and add new criteria that set required tree preservation requirements, allow 
mitigation options, and provide allowable tree species for required replacement plantings 

9.7007 24 Add an exception to requiring a neighborhood/applicant meeting for subdivisions when 
processed in conjunction with a planned unit development and remove requirement for 3-
lot partitions 

9.8030(13) 25 Update the criteria for adjustments to the Tree Preservation and Removal Standards 

INDEX OF PROPOSED AMENDMENTS 
 

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 6CC Agenda - Page 64



CLEAR & OBJECTIVE HOUSING: APPROVAL CRITERIA UPDATE 
 
 

       

Eugene Code 
Section   

Ordinance 
Section # 

Description of Proposed Amendment 

9.8030(37) 
(New) 

25 Add approval criteria for new Street Standards adjustment option for applications 
proposing housing to be reviewed with clear and objective approval criteria 

9.8045 26 Revise reference from ‘needed housing’ to ‘housing to be reviewed with clear and 
objective approval criteria’ 

9.8055 27 Revise reference to reflect renaming of the ‘General’ track to ‘General/Discretionary’ track 

9.8085 28 Revise reference to reflect renaming of the ‘General’ track to ‘General/Discretionary’ track 
and the ‘Needed Housing’ track to ‘Housing/Clear and Objective’ track 

9.8090 29 Revise reference to reflect renaming of the ‘General’ track to ‘General/Discretionary’ track 

9.8100 30 Revise reference to reflect renaming of the ‘General’ track to ‘General/Discretionary’ track 
and the ‘Needed Housing’ track to ‘Housing/Clear and Objective’ track  

9.8100(1) 30 Add criterion requiring compliance with new transition standards at subsection (1) 

9.8100(3) 30 Remove unnecessary criterion for protection of designated natural resource areas under 
subsection 

9.8100(4) 30 Revise the language for conditional use permits to require compliance with all applicable 
standards (instead of using “including but not limited to”) and add additional development 
standards to the list of applicable standards 

9.8100(5) 30 Revise the timing specified to construct or bond for required public improvements to be 
prior to issuance of a development permit at subsection 

9.8100(6) 30 Add requirement for off-site connections for bike and pedestrian ways under subsection 

9.8105 31 Revise reference to reflect renaming of the ‘General’ track to ‘General/Discretionary’ track 

9.8205 32 Revise to allow concurrent review of tentative planned unit development and tentative 
partition applications. 

9.8210 33 Revise reference to reflect renaming of the ‘General’ track to ‘General/Discretionary’ track 
and the ‘Needed Housing’ track to ‘Housing/Clear and Objective’ track  

9.8215 34 Revise reference to reflect renaming of the ‘General’ track to ‘General/Discretionary’ track 

9.8220 35 Revise reference to reflect renaming of the ‘General’ track to ‘General/Discretionary’ track 
and the ‘Needed Housing’ track to ‘Housing/Clear and Objective’ track 

9.8220(1) 35 Remove unnecessary criterion demonstrating that housing is needed housing  

9.8220(1) 35 Revise/renumber (formerly sub (2)) to include compliance with the lot dimensions and 
density requirements in overlay zones 

9.8220(1)(k) 35 Remove requirement for compliance with tree preservation and removal standards 

9.8220(4) 35 Remove unnecessary criterion that requires compliance with access management 
guidelines of the agency having jurisdiction over the street  

9.8220(3)(c) 35 Remove discretionary criterion (formerly sub (5)(c)) from the clear and objective partition 
track 

9.8310 36 Revise reference to reflect renaming of the ‘General’ track to ‘General/Discretionary’ track 
and the ‘Needed Housing’ track to ‘Housing/Clear and Objective’ track 

9.8310(2)(c) 36 Remove cover sheet requirement  

9.8320 37 Revise reference to reflect renaming of the ‘General’ track to ‘General/Discretionary’ track 

9.8325 38 Revise reference to reflect renaming of the ‘General’ track to ‘General/Discretionary’ track 
and the ‘Needed Housing’ track to ‘Housing/Clear and Objective’ track  

9.8325(1) 38 Remove unnecessary criterion demonstrating that housing is needed housing and add 
criterion for compliance with new transition standards 

9.8325(3) 38 Remove 30-foot buffer requirement 

9.8325(3) 38 Revise/remove unnecessary criterion (formerly sub (4)) for protection of designated 
natural resource areas  

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 6CC Agenda - Page 65



CLEAR & OBJECTIVE HOUSING: APPROVAL CRITERIA UPDATE 
 
 

       

Eugene Code 
Section   

Ordinance 
Section # 

Description of Proposed Amendment 

9.8325(5) 38 Remove prohibition on grading 20% slopes  

9.8325(4)(c) 38 Remove discretionary criterion (formerly sub (6)(c)) from the clear and objective track 

9.8325(5)(a) 38 Revise (formerly sub (7)(a)) to include compliance with the lot dimensions and density 
requirements in overlay zones 

9.8325(5)(k) 
(New) 

38 Add requirement similar to the discretionary track  

9.8325(7) 38 Revise (formerly sub (9)) to reduce required distance from open space (for exception) 
from ¼ mile to ½ mile and set onsite open space requirements when applicable 

9.8325(10) 38 Remove unnecessary criterion for planned unit developments for standards applicable to 
subdivisions given related amendment to allow concurrent reviews for tentative planned 
unit developments and tentative subdivisions 

9.8325(11) 38 Remove allowance for modifications without an approved adjustment review 

9.8325(8) 38 Revise criteria for developments within the boundaries of the South Hills Study (formerly 
sub (12)) to reflect preferred concept direction on multiple significant issues related to 
limitations over 900 feet, the ridgeline setback requirement, and the 40 percent open 
space requirement 

9.8360 39 Remove public improvement bonding requirement from application requirements 

9.8365 40 Add approval criteria with public improvement bonding requirement  

9.8440 41 Revise reference to reflect renaming of the ‘General’ track to ‘General/Discretionary’ track 

9.8445 42 Revise reference to reflect renaming of the ‘General’ track to ‘General/Discretionary’ track 
and the ‘Needed Housing’ track to ‘Housing/Clear and Objective’ track  

9.8445(1) 42 Remove unnecessary criterion demonstrating that housing is needed housing under 
original subsection and add criterion for compliance with new transition standards  

9.8445(3) 42 Revise/remove unnecessary criterion for protection of designated natural resource areas  

9.8445(4) 42 Update code reference and add standards 

9.8445(5) 42 Revise the timing specified to construct or bond for required public improvements to be 
prior to issuance of a development permit 

9.8445(6) 42 Add requirement for off-site connections for bike and pedestrian ways 

9.8505 43 Revise to allow concurrent review of tentative planned unit development and tentative 
subdivision applications. 

9.8510 44 Revise reference to reflect renaming of the ‘General’ track to ‘General/Discretionary’ track 
and the ‘Needed Housing’ track to ‘Housing/Clear and Objective’ track 

9.8515 45 Revise reference to reflect renaming of the ‘General’ track to ‘General/Discretionary’ track 

9.8520 46 Revise reference to reflect renaming of the ‘General’ track to ‘General/Discretionary’ track 
and the ‘Needed Housing’ track to ‘Housing/Clear and Objective’ track;); and,  

9.8520(1) 46 Remove unnecessary criterion demonstrating that housing is needed housing 

9.8520(2) 46 Revise/renumber (formerly sub (3)) to include compliance with the lot dimensions and 
density requirements in overlay zones 

9.8520(5) 46 Remove prohibition on grading 20% slopes  

9.8520(4)(b) 46 Revise/renumber (formerly sub (6)(b))  to remove discretionary criterion from the clear 
and objective subdivision track 

9.8520(5) 46 Revise/remove (formerly sub (7)) unnecessary criterion for protection of designated 
natural resource areas  

Map (New) 47 Adopt Eugene Landslide Hazard Map referenced at 9.6710(6)(a) 

 

 

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 6CC Agenda - Page 66



Ordinance - Page 1 of 38 

ORDINANCE NO. ________ 

AN ORDINANCE CONCERNING CLEAR AND OBJECTIVE APPROVAL 
CRITERIA FOR HOUSING; AMENDING SECTIONS 9.0500, 9.2181, 9.2471, 
9.2520, 9.2687, 9.2751, 9.2761, 9.3216, 9.3221, 9.3626, 9.3725, 9.4830, 9.5750, 
9.6010, 9.6710, 9.6810, 9.6815, 9.6820, 9.6845, 9.6865, 9.6885, 9.7007, 9.8030, 
9.8045, 9.8055, 9.8085, 9.8090, 9.8100, 9.8105, 9.8205, 9.8210, 9.8215, 9.8220, 
9.8310, 9.8320, 9.8325, 9.8360, 9.8365, 9.8440, 9.8445, 9.8505, 9.8510, 9.8515, 
AND 9.8520 OF THE EUGENE CODE, 1971; ADDING SECTION 9.5860 TO 
THAT CODE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

THE CITY OF EUGENE DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1.  Section 9.0500 of the Eugene Code, 1971, is amended by adding the definition 

of “Pedestrian” to that section in alphabetical order as follows: 

9.0500 Definitions. As used in this land use code, unless the context requires otherwise, 
the following words and phrases mean: 

Pedestrian.  Any person afoot or using any type of wheelchair. 

Section 2.  Section 9.2181 of the Eugene Code, 1971, is amended to provide as follows: 

9.2181 Special Standards for Table 9.2180. 
(1) Lot area, frontage, and width minimums may be adjusted in accordance with

the provisions of EC 9.8030(1).  Modifications may be approved through a
planned unit development. (For planned unit development procedures refer to
EC 9.7300 General Overview of Type III Application Procedures and for
approval criteria refer to EC 9.8320 Tentative Planned Unit Development
Approval Criteria - General/Discretionary or EC 9.8325 Tentative Planned
Unit Development Approval Criteria – Housing/Clear and Objective.)

Section 3.  Section 9.2471 of the Eugene Code, 1971, is amended to provide as follows: 

9.2471 Special Standards for Table 9.2470. 
(1) Lot area, frontage, and width minimums may be adjusted pursuant to the

provisions of EC 9.8030(1) of this land use code.  Modifications may be
approved through a site review or planned unit development. (For planned unit
development procedures refer to EC 9.7300 General Overview of Type III
Application Procedures and for approval criteria refer to EC 9.8320 Tentative
Planned Unit Development Approval Criteria – General/Discretionary.)

Attachment B

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 6CC Agenda - Page 67



Ordinance - Page 2 of 38 

 Section 4.  Subsection (2) of Section 9.2520 of the Eugene Code, 1971, is amended to 

provide as follows: 

9.2520 Natural Resource Zone Land Use and Permit Requirements.  The provisions of 
the NR zone do not exempt a person or property from state or federal laws and 
regulations that protect water quality, wetlands, or other natural areas.  In cases 
where the NR zone overlaps with the /WB wetland buffer overlay zone or the /WP 
waterside protection overlay zone, only the provisions of the NR zone are applied.  

 * * *  
(2) Uses Subject to a Conditional Use Permit.  The following uses are 

permitted conditionally in the NR zone: 
(a) Nature interpretive centers and wetland research facilities, when such 

centers or facilities are specified in or consistent with adopted plans or 
policies. 

(b) Maintenance facilities for storage of equipment and materials used 
exclusively for maintenance of wetlands and other natural resource 
areas. 

Conditional use permit approval shall be based upon conformance with EC 
9.2530 Natural Resource Zone Development Standards (2) through (19), in 
addition to EC 9.8090 Conditional Use Permit Approval Criteria -
General/Discretionary. 
 

  * * * 
 
 
 Section 5.  Subsection (1) of Section 9.2687 of the Eugene Code, 1971, is amended to 

provide as follows: 

9.2687 Special Standards for Table 9.2686. 
(1) Lot area, frontage, and width minimums may be adjusted pursuant to the 

provisions of EC 9.8030(1) of this land use code. Modifications may be 
approved through a planned unit development.  (For planned unit 
development procedures refer to EC 9.7300 General Overview of Type III 
Application Procedures and for approval criteria refer to EC 9.8320 Tentative 
Planned Unit Development Approval Criteria -General/Discretionary or EC 
9.8325 Tentative Planned Unit Development Approval Criteria – 
Housing/Clear and Objective.) 

 
* * * 

 
 
 Section 6.  Subsection (2) of Section 9.2751 of the Eugene Code, 1971, is amended to 

provide as follows: 

9.2751 Special Development Standards for Table 9.2750. 
 * * *  

(2) Maximum building height, minimum building setbacks, and maximum building 
dimensions may be modified with an approved planned unit development 

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 6CC Agenda - Page 68



Ordinance - Page 3 of 38 

permit. (For planned unit development procedures refer to EC 9.7300 General 
Overview of Type III Application Procedures and for approval criteria refer to 
EC 9.8320 Tentative Planned Unit Development Approval Criteria - 
General/Discretionary or EC 9.8325 Tentative Planned Unit Development 
Approval Criteria – Housing/Clear and Objective.) 

 
* * * 

 
 
 Section 7.  Subsection (1)(c) of Section 9.2761 of the Eugene Code, 1971, is amended to 

provide as follows: 

9.2761 Special Standards for Table 9.2760. 
(1) Lot Standards. 
 * * * 

(c) Lot area, frontage, and width minimums may be modified with an 
approved cluster subdivision in R-1 or Planned Unit Development (PUD) 
in any zone, or adjustments may be made if consistent with the 
criteria in EC 9.8030(1) and reviewed and approved concurrently 
with a planned unit development in any zone.  

 
* * * 

 
 
 Section 8.  Subsection (1) of Section 9.3216 of the Eugene Code, 1971, is amended to 

provide as follows: 

9.3216 Special Development Standards for Table 9.3215.   
(1) Maximum building height, minimum building setbacks, and maximum building 

dimensions may be modified with an approved planned unit development 
permit.  (For planned unit development procedures refer to EC 9.7300 
General Overview of Type III Application Procedures and for approval criteria 
refer to EC 9.8320 Tentative Planned Unit Development Approval Criteria - 
General/Discretionary or EC 9.8325 Tentative Planned Unit Development 
Approval Criteria – Housing/Clear and Objective.) 

 
  * * * 
 
 
 Section 9.  Subsection (1) of Section 9.3221 of the Eugene Code, 1971, is amended to 

provide as follows: 

9.3221 Special Standards for Table 9.3220. 
(1) Lot area, frontage, and width minimums may be modified with an approved 

planned unit development permit. (For planned unit development procedures 
refer to EC 9.7300 General Overview of Type III Application Procedures and 
for approval criteria refer to EC 9.8320 Tentative Planned Unit Development 

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 6CC Agenda - Page 69



Ordinance - Page 4 of 38 

Approval Criteria - General/Discretionary or EC 9.8325 Tentative Planned 
Unit Development Approval Criteria – Housing/Clear and Objective.)   

 
  * * * 
 
 
 Section 10.  Subsection (9) of Section 9.3626 of the Eugene Code, 1971, is amended to 

provide as follows: 

9.3626 Special Development Standards for Table 9.3625. 
 * * *  

(9) Maximum building height and minimum building setbacks may be modified 
with an approved planned unit development permit. (For planned unit 
development procedures refer to EC 9.7300 General Overview of Type III 
Application Procedures and for approval criteria refer to EC 9.8320 Tentative 
Planned Unit Development Approval Criteria - General/Discretionary or EC 
9.8325 Tentative Planned Unit Development Approval Criteria – 
Housing/Clear and Objective.)  

 
 
 Section 11.  The lead-in paragraph of Section 9.3725 of the Eugene Code, 1971, is 

amended to provide as follows: 

9.3725 S-RP Riverfront Park Special Area Zone Review Procedures.  The master site 
plan for developments proposed within the S-RP zone shall be reviewed through the 
conditional use permit process provided in this land use code.  For the purpose of 
this review, the following criteria shall be applied in lieu of the criteria provided in EC 
9.8090 Conditional Use Permit Approval Criteria - General/Discretionary: 

 
 * * * 
 
 
 Section 12.  Subsection (2)(c) of Section 9.4830 of the Eugene Code, 1971, is amended 

to provide as follows: 

9.4830 /WB Wetland Buffer Overlay Zone Land Use and Permit Requirements.  Within 
the /WB overlay zone, there are 2 categories of uses:  those allowed by the base 
zone or special area zone outside of the /WB area, and a more restrictive list of 
uses allowed within the /WB area. 

 * * *  
(2) Within /WB Areas:   
 * * * 

(c) Uses Permitted Conditionally.  The following uses are permitted 
conditionally in the /WB overlay zone: 
1. Nature interpretive centers, when specified in or consistent with 

adopted plans or policies. 
2. Maintenance facilities for storage of equipment and materials used 

exclusively for maintenance and management of wetlands and 

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 6CC Agenda - Page 70



Ordinance - Page 5 of 38 

natural areas. 
Conditional use permit approval shall be based upon conformance with 
EC 9.2530 Natural Resource Zone Development Standards (2) through 
(19) in addition to the conditional use criteria contained in EC 9.8090 
Conditional Use Permit Approval Criteria – General/Discretionary. 
 

   * * * 
 
 
 Section 13.  Subsections (2)(b) and (c) of Section 9.5750 of the Eugene Code, 1971, are 

amended to provide as follows: 

9.5750 Telecommunication Devices-Siting Requirements and Procedures. 
* * *  
(2) Siting Restricted.  No telecommunication facility, as defined in this land use 

code, may be constructed, modified to increase its height, installed or 
otherwise located within the city except as provided in this section.  
Depending on the type and location of the telecommunication facility, the 
telecommunication facility shall be either an outright permitted use, subject to 
site review procedures, or require a conditional use permit.  

 * * *  
(b) Site Review.  A telecommunication facility which, pursuant to 

subsections (3) through (5) of this section, is subject to site review shall 
be processed in accordance with the site review procedures of this land 
use code.  The criteria contained in this section, as well as the criteria 
contained in EC 9.8440 Site Review Approval Criteria – 
General/Discretionary, shall govern approval or denial of the site 
review application.  In the event of a conflict in criteria, the criteria 
contained in this section shall govern.  No development permit shall be 
issued prior to completion of the site review process, including any local 
appeal.  

(c) Conditional Use Permit.  A telecommunication facility which, pursuant to 
subsections (4) or (5) of this section, requires a conditional use permit 
shall be processed in accordance with the conditional use permit 
procedures of this land use code, except that the variance provisions 
shall not apply.  The criteria contained in EC 9.8090 Conditional Use 
Permit Approval Criteria –General/Discretionary and subsections (6) 
and (7) of this section shall govern approval or denial of the conditional 
use permit application.  In the event of a conflict in criteria, the criteria 
contained in subsections (6) and (7) of this section shall govern.  No 
development permit shall be issued prior to completion of the conditional 
use permit process, including any local appeal. 

 
* * * 

 
 
 Section 14.  Section 9.5860 of the Eugene Code, 1971, is added to provide as follows: 

9.5860 Transition Standards for Housing/Clear and Objective Applications. 
(1) Applicability of Transition Standards. The transition standards at EC 

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 6CC Agenda - Page 71



Ordinance - Page 6 of 38 

9.5860(2) shall apply to land use applications proposing housing to be 
reviewed with clear and objective approval criteria under EC 9.8100 
Conditional Use Permit Approval Criteria – Housing/Clear and Objective, 
EC 9.8325 Tentative Planned Unit Development Approval Criteria – 
Housing/Clear and Objective, or EC 9.8445 Site Review Approval Criteria 
– Housing/Clear and Objective. The transition standards at EC 9.5860(2) 
apply to all new buildings and any building additions that increase the 
square footage of livable floor area by 20 percent or more for any of the 
following: 
(a) Multiple-family development on property abutting land zoned R-1, 

R-1.5, S-C/R-1, or S-RN/LDR except where the multiple-family 
development consists of:  
1. a single tri-plex on one lot. 
2. a single four-plex on one lot. 
3. structures that are less than 30 feet in height.  

(b) Assisted care, boarding and rooming house, campus living 
organization, university or college dormitory, or single room 
occupancy (SRO), proposed on property abutting land zoned R-1, 
R-1.5, S-C/R-1, or S-RN/LDR. 

In cases where the standards in subsection (2) apply to building 
additions, they shall be applicable between the addition and any 
property line abutting land zoned R-1, R-1.5, S-C/R-1, or S-RN/LDR.  

(2) Standards. The following standards apply to new buildings and building 
additions identified in subsection (1) and unless specified otherwise, 
must be applied within 25 feet along the portion of any property line that 
abuts land zoned R-1, R-1.5, S-C/R-1, or S-RN/LDR: 
(a) Height and Setback Options. The proposed development must 

comply with one of the following four options: 
1. Option 1. The maximum building height of a new building or 

building addition shall be limited to 35 feet. In addition, at 
least one of the following must be provided along the entire 
portion of any property line that abuts land zoned R-1, R-1.5, 
S-C/R-1, or S-RN/LDR: 
a. A 6-foot high, 100 percent sight-obscuring wooden 

fence or masonry wall.  
b. A 6-foot high metal fence with high shrubs planted 

every 6 feet. Chain link or cyclone fences are not 
allowed. For the purpose of this subparagraph, high 
shrubs must be: 
(1) Selected from the City of Eugene Plant Materials 

list approved by administrative order of the city 
manager; 

(2) Designated in the City of Eugene Plant Materials 
list as meeting the high shrub requirement; and,  

(3) In at least 5-gallon containers at the time of 
planting. 

c. Landscaping with a minimum plant bed width of 7 feet 
meeting EC 9.6210(3) High Screen Landscape Standard 
(L-3).  

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 6CC Agenda - Page 72



Ordinance - Page 7 of 38 

2. Option 2. The minimum interior yard setback shall be 10 feet 
from the portion of any property line land zoned R-1, R-1.5, S-
C/R-1, or S-RN/LDR. In addition:  
a. At a point that is 25 feet above grade at the property 

line, the interior yard setback shall slope toward the 
interior of the property at the rate of 10 inches vertically 
for every 12 inches horizontally away from that property 
line until a point 25 feet away from the property line. 
(See Figure 9.5860(2)(a)2.a. Transition Standards Option 
2 Sloped Setback). 

b. For new buildings or building additions within 25 feet of 
R-1, R-1.5, S-C/R-1, or S-RN/LDR zoned property, trees 
growing to a mature height of at least 20 feet shall be 
planted at a minimum interval of 25 feet, parallel to the 
property line, between buildings and any property line 
that abuts land zoned R-1, R-1.5, S-C/R-1, or S-RN/LDR. 
In addition, one of the following shall be provided along 
the portion of any property line that abuts or is directly 
across a public alley from land zoned R-1, R-1.5, S-C/R-
1, or S-RN/LDR:  
(1) A 6-foot high, 100 percent sight-obscuring wooden 

fence or masonry wall.  
(2) A 6-foot high metal fence with high shrubs planted 

every 6 feet. Chain link or cyclone fences are not 
allowed. For the purpose of this subparagraph, 
high shrubs must be: 

(a) Selected from the City of Eugene Plant 
Materials list approved by administrative 
order of the city manager; 

(b) Designated in the City of Eugene Plant 
Materials list as meeting the high shrub 
requirement; and,  

(c) In at least 5-gallon containers at the time of 
planting. 

3. Option 3. A minimum 25-foot setback shall be provided 
between a new building or building addition and the portion 
of any property line that abuts land zoned R-1, R-1.5, S-C/R-1, 
or S-RN/LDR. The 25-foot setback area may be used for open 
space, vehicle use area, pedestrian circulation, bicycle 
parking, stormwater quality facilities, or landscaping. 

(b) Allowed intrusions into setbacks. In lieu of the permitted setback 
intrusions provided at EC 9.6745(3) the following intrusions are 
allowed within the interior yard setback area described in EC 
9.5860(2)(a)2 through 3: 
1. Eaves and chimneys may intrude a maximum of 2 feet into 

the vertical plane of the interior yard sloped setback area. No 
other intrusions are allowed into the vertical plane of the 
setback. 

2. Dormers may intrude into the sloped portion of the interior 
yard sloped setback area provided each dormer is no more 
than 12 feet wide and the total width of all dormers on a given 

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 6CC Agenda - Page 73



Ordinance - Page 8 of 38 

wall does not exceed 50 percent of the linear length of the 
building wall. 

3. Architectural screens or arbors serving an upper floor 
balcony may protrude a maximum of 6 feet into the sloped 
portion of the interior yard sloped setback area. 

(c) Outdoor spaces located above the ground floor.  Balconies, decks 
and other outdoor spaces located above the ground floor shall be 
setback at least 20 feet from any property line that abuts land 
zoned R-1, R-1.5, S-C/R-1, or S-RN/LDR.  

(d) Tree Exception. An exception to the tree planting required by 
subsection (2)(a)2.b. of this section is allowed if the applicant 
provides a signed and notarized letter from the abutting property 
owner stating that the abutting property owner does not desire the 
trees required by this section. This exception does not apply to 
trees required by other applicable standards. Future development 
proposals subject to the standards in this section will need to 
obtain a separate exception from the tree planting requirements of 
this section. 

 
 

Section 15.  Figure 9.5860(2)(a)2 attached as Exhibit A is added. 
 

 
 Section 16.  The heading of Section 9.6010 of the Eugene Code, 1971, and subsection 

(1) of that Section are amended to provide as follows: 

9.6010 Applications Proposing [Needed] Housing.   
(1) As used in EC chapter 9.6000, the term “applications proposing [needed] 

housing to be reviewed with clear and objective approval criteria” 
includes: 
(a) Applications that are proceeding (or have proceeded) under EC 9.8100, 

9.8220, 9.8325, 9.8445, or 9.8520; or 
(b) Applications for housing developments [permits] for residential uses 

permitted outright in the subject zone that are entitled to clear and 
objective standards pursuant to state statutes [proposed housing is 
needed housing as defined by state statutes]. 

 
* * * 
 

 
 Section 17.  Subsection (6) of Section 9.6710 of the Eugene Code, 1971, is amended to 

provide as follows: 

9.6710 Geological and Geotechnical Analysis. 
 * * * 

(6)  [Needed] Clear and Objective Housing. Unless exempt under 9.6710(3)[(a)-
(f)], in lieu of compliance with subsections (2), (4), and (5) of this section, 
applications proposing [needed]housing to be reviewed with clear and 
objective approval criteria shall include a certification from an Oregon 

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 6CC Agenda - Page 74



Ordinance - Page 9 of 38 

licensed Engineering Geologist, an Oregon licensed Geotechnical 
Engineer, or an Oregon licensed Civil Engineer with geological experience, 
prepared within ten years of the date of application, that includes the 
following information[stating]: 
(a) Identification of any portion of the proposed development site that 

is located in an area of moderate or high landslide susceptibility as 
shown on the city’s adopted Eugene Landslide Hazard Map. 

(ab) A statement t[T]hat the proposed development [activity]will not be 
impacted by existing or potential stability problems or any of the 
following site conditions: slopes 20 percent or greater, springs or 
seeps, depth of soil bedrock, soil types, variations in soil types, open 
drainage ways, fill, or a combination of these conditions. 

(bc) If proposed development [activity]will be located in an area identified 
as moderately or highly susceptible to landslides pursuant to (a), 
or will be impacted by existing or potential stability problems or any 
of the site conditions listed in (ab), the certification must also 
include: 
1. A review of the suitability of the proposed lot layout, street 

locations, and proposed locations for utilities, driveways, 
parking areas, and buildings given the landslide hazards, 
stability problems, and/or site conditions identified in the 
certification;  

2. Any recommended modifications to the proposed lot layout, 
street locations, and proposed locations for utilities, 
driveways, parking areas, and buildings that in the engineer’s 
opinion, would mitigate the landslide hazards, stability 
problems, and/or site conditions identified in the certification; 

3. Methods for safely addressing the landslide hazards and/or site 
conditions identified in (a) and (b)[.]; and,  

4. Recommendations, if any, for additional geotechnical analysis 
for future buildings or improvements on the development site. 

5. Recommendations, if any, for additional geotechnical analysis 
for future buildings or improvements on proposed lots or 
parcels. 

If [a statement]certification is submitted under (6)(bc), the application shall include 
the applicant’s statement that it will develop in accordance with the Engineer’s 
[statement]certification. 
 

 
 Section 18.  Section 9.6810 of the Eugene Code, 1971, is amended to provide as follows: 

9.6810 Block Length.  
(1) Except as provided in subsections (2) and (3) of this section, b[B]lock 

length for local streets shall not exceed 600 feet[, unless an exception is 
granted based on one or more of the following:].  

(2) Applications not proposing housing to be reviewed with clear and 
objective approval criteria will be exempt from the block length 
requirements in subsection (1) if one or more of the following conditions 
apply: 
(1a) Physical conditions preclude a block length 600 feet or less. Such 

conditions may include, but are not limited to, topography or the 

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 6CC Agenda - Page 75



Ordinance - Page 10 of 38 

existence of natural resource areas such as wetlands, ponds, streams, 
channels, rivers, lakes or upland wildlife habitat area, or a resource on 
the National Wetland Inventory or under protection by state or federal 
law. 

(2b) Buildings or other existing development on adjacent lands, including 
previously subdivided but vacant lots or parcels, physically preclude a 
block length 600 feet or less, considering the potential for 
redevelopment. 

(3c) An existing public street or streets terminating at the boundary of the 
development site have a block length exceeding 600 feet, or are 
situated such that the extension of the street(s) into the development 
site would create a block length exceeding 600 feet. In such cases, the 
block length shall be as close to 600 feet as practicable. 

(4d) As part of a Type II or Type III process, the developer demonstrates that 
a strict application of the 600-foot requirement would result in a street 
network that is no more beneficial to vehicular, pedestrian or bicycle 
traffic than the proposed street network and that the proposed street 
network will accommodate necessary emergency access.  

(3) Applications proposing housing to be reviewed with clear and objective 
approval criteria, must comply with the block length requirements in 
subsection (1) unless one of the following exemptions applies:  
(a) Existing slopes would result in a street grade that exceeds the 

grade allowed under current adopted street design standards when 
measured along the centerline of the proposed streets to the 
existing grade of the subdivision boundary or abutting property 
under separate ownership.  

(b) An existing public street or streets terminating at the boundary of 
the development site have a block length exceeding 600 feet, or are 
situated such that the extension of the street(s) into the 
development site would create a block length exceeding 600 feet. 
In such cases, the block length shall not exceed 700 feet. 

(4) Block length may be adjusted in accordance with EC 9.8030(37) for 
applications proposing housing to be reviewed with clear and objective 
approval criteria. 

Special block requirements related to multiple-family developments are found in 
section (10) of EC 9.5500 Multiple-Family Standards. 
 

 
 Section 19.  Subsections (2)(e) and (g) of Section 9.6815 of the Eugene Code, 1971, are 

amended, and subsections (h) and (i) are added, to provide as follows: 

9.6815 Connectivity for Streets. 
 * * * 

(2) Street Connectivity Standards. 
* * * 
(e) Except for applications proposing [needed] housing to be reviewed 

with clear and objective approval criteria, all applicants shall show 
that the proposed street alignment shall minimize excavation and 
embankment and avoid impacts to natural resources, including water-
related features.  

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 6CC Agenda - Page 76



Ordinance - Page 11 of 38 

* * * 
(g) Except for applications proposing housing to be reviewed with 

clear and objective approval criteria, [I]in the context of a Type II or 
Type III land use decision, the city shall grant an exception to the 
standards in subsections (2)(b), (c) or (d) if the applicant demonstrates 
that any proposed exceptions are consistent with either subsection 1. or 
2. below: 
1. The applicant has provided to the city, at his or her expense, a 

local street connection study that demonstrates:  
a. That the proposed street system meets the intent of street 

connectivity provisions of this land use code as expressed in 
EC 9.6815(1); and  

b. How undeveloped or partially developed properties within a 
quarter mile can be adequately served by alternative street 
layouts.  

2. The applicant demonstrates that a connection cannot be made 
because of the existence of one or more of the following 
conditions:  
a. Physical conditions preclude development of the connecting 

street. Such conditions may include, but are not limited to, 
topography or likely impact to natural resource areas such 
as wetlands, ponds, streams, channels, rivers, lakes or 
upland wildlife habitat area, or a resource on the National 
Wetland Inventory or under protection by state or federal 
law.  

b. Buildings or other existing development on adjacent lands, 
including previously subdivided but vacant lots or parcels, 
physically preclude a connection now or in the future, 
considering the potential for redevelopment. 

(h) For applications proposing housing to be reviewed with clear and 
objective approval criteria, exceptions to street connectivity 
standards may be granted if one of the following conditions exists:  
1. Existing building(s) on the development site or on land 

abutting the development site and under separate ownership 
obstruct the extension of the planned street. For the 
purposes of this subparagraph, “building” is defined as a 
structure designed and used as a place of occupancy. For the 
purposes of this subparagraph, “building” does not include a 
shed, carport, detached garage, accessory building, or other 
structure designed and used solely for storage or shelter; 

2. Existing slopes would result in a street grade exceeding 
current adopted street design standards when measured 
along the centerline of the proposed streets to the existing 
grade of the subdivision boundary or abutting property under 
separate ownership;  

3. Provision of public street connection would require 
dedication of 25 percent or more of the total development site 
area.  

4. Abutting residential land cannot be further divided under 
current development standards.  

(i) Street connectivity standards may be adjusted in accordance with 

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 6CC Agenda - Page 77



Ordinance - Page 12 of 38 

EC 9.8030(37) for applications proposing housing to be reviewed 
with clear and objective approval criteria. 

Section 20.  Subsection (5) of Section 9.6820 of the Eugene Code, 1971, is amended 

and subsection (6) is added, to provide as follows: 

9.6820 Cul-de-Sacs or Emergency Vehicle Turnarounds. 
* * *
(5) As part of a Type II or Type III process, an exception may be granted to the

requirements of (1), (3) and (4) of this section. For applications proposing
housing to be reviewed with clear and objective approval criteria,
exceptions may only be granted as provided in subparagraph (c). For all
other applications, exceptions may be granted because of the existence of
one or more of the following conditions:
(a) Physical conditions preclude development of the connecting street.

Such conditions may include, but are not limited to, topography or likely
impact to natural resource areas such as wetlands, ponds, streams,
channels, rivers, lakes or upland wildlife habitat areas, or a resource on
the National Wetland Inventory or under protection by state or federal
law.

(b) Buildings or other existing development on the subject property or
adjacent lands, including previously subdivided but vacant lots or
parcels, physically preclude a connection now or in the future,
considering the potential for redevelopment.

(c) For applications proposing housing to be reviewed with clear and
objective approval criteria, an exception to the requirements of
subsections (1), (3) and (4) may be granted if the applicant provides
certification from an Oregon licensed civil engineer stating that a
cul-de-sac or emergency vehicle turnaround cannot be constructed
to meet current standards according to the adopted Design
Standards and Guidelines for Eugene Streets, Sidewalk, Bikeways
and Accessways.

(6) Cul-de-sacs or emergency vehicle turnarounds standards may be
adjusted in accordance with EC 9.8030(37) for applications proposing
housing to be reviewed with clear and objective approval criteria.

Section 21.  Section 9.6845 of the Eugene Code, 1971, is amended to provide as follows: 

9.6845 Special Safety Requirements.  Except for applications proposing [needed] housing 
to be reviewed with clear and objective approval criteria, where necessary to 
insure safety, reduce traffic hazards and promote the welfare of the general public, 
pedestrians, bicyclists and residents of the subject area, the planning director or 
public works director may require that local streets and alleys be designed to 
discourage their use by non-local motor vehicle traffic and encourage their use by 
local motor vehicle traffic, pedestrians, bicyclists, and residents of the area. 

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 6CC Agenda - Page 78



Ordinance - Page 13 of 38 

Section 22.  Section 9.6865 of the Eugene Code, 1971, is amended to provide as follows: 

9.6865 Transit Facilities. 
(1) Except for applications proposing [needed] housing to be reviewed with 

clear and objective approval criteria, the city manager may require 
provisions, including easements, for transit facilities where future transit routes 
are required on streets extending through or adjacent to the area of the 
development, and where a need for bus stops, bus pullouts or other transit 
facilities within the development has been identified, provided the city makes 
findings to demonstrate consistency with constitutional requirements. 

(2) Except for applications proposing [needed] housing to be reviewed with 
clear and objective approval criteria, where the provision of transit stops, 
bus pullouts or other facilities along a public street requires a right-of-way or 
paving width greater than that listed in Table 9.6870 Right-of-Way and Paving 
Widths and where a need for transit service within the development has been 
identified, the planning director or public works director, depending upon the 
type of application being processed, may require that additional right-of-way or 
paving be provided. 

 
 
Section 23.  Subsection (2) of Section 9.6885 of the Eugene Code, 1971, is amended, 

and subsection (3) is deleted, to provide as follows: 

9.6885 Tree Preservation and Removal Standards. 
 * * *  

(2) Tree Preservation and Removal Standards. The standards in this 
subsection apply only to land use applications processed under EC 
9.8100, EC 9.8325, EC 9.8445, and EC 9.8520. Unless exempt under 
subparagraph (b) below, [N]no permit for a development activity subject to 
this section shall be approved until the applicant [submits plans or information, 
including a written report by a certified arborist or licensed landscape architect, 
that] demonstrates compliance with the [following] standards in this 
subsection.[:]  
[(a) The materials submitted shall reflect that consideration has been given to 

preservation in accordance with the following priority: 
1. Significant trees located adjacent to or within waterways or wetlands 

designated by the city for protection, and areas having slopes greater 
than 25%; 

2. Significant trees within a stand of trees; and 
3. Individual significant trees.] 

(a) Definitions. For the purposes of this subsection (2), the following 
definitions apply: 
1. Critical Root Zone (CRZ). That area surrounding a tree that has a 

radius of 12 inches multiplied by the diameter breast height 
expressed in inches of the tree trunk or trunks. 

2. Tree Removal. To fell or sever a tree or to use any procedure the 
natural result of which is to cause the death or substantial 
destruction of the tree.  Substantial destruction includes actions 
that destroy more than 20% of the critical root zone of a tree, or 
topping, or severing the cambial material on 50% or more of the 

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 6CC Agenda - Page 79



Ordinance - Page 14 of 38 

circumference of the tree trunk.  Remove does not in any context 
include those pruning standards as defined in the edition of 
American National Standards Institute (ANSI) Section A300, Tree, 
Shrub and Other Woody Plant Maintenance Standard Practices in 
effect at the time the pruning occurs. 

(b) For the purposes of this subsection (2), the South Hills Area is 
defined as all property located within the City’s adopted Urban 
Growth Boundary, above an elevation of 500 feet, and: 
1. South of 18th Avenue,  
2. South of Franklin Boulevard and East of the intersection of 18th 

Avenue and Agate Street, or 
3. If 18th Avenue were extended from the intersection of 18th 

Avenue and Willow Creek Road directly west to the Urban Growth 
Boundary, the area south of that extension of 18th Avenue. 

(c) Exemptions. A proposed development shall be exempt from the 
requirements of EC 9.6885(2) if any of the following apply:  
1. Except as provided in subparagraph 4., the area of the 

development site is less than 20,000 square feet. 
2. Five or fewer significant trees exist on the development site prior 

to development.  
3. The development site is zoned R-1.5 Rowhouse zone, R-2 

Medium- Density Residential, R-3 Limited High-Density 
Residential, R-4 High Density Residential, GO General Office, C-2 
Community Commercial, or C-3 Major Commercial zones.  

4. Notwithstanding subparagraph 1., development sites that include 
property at or above 900 feet elevation are subject to the 
requirements of EC 9.6885(2), regardless of the area of the 
development site. 

(d) Tree Preservation Requirements. Unless adjusted per EC 9.8030(13), 
significant trees must be preserved in accordance with the 
requirements of Table 9.6855(2)(c). Minimum preservation is based 
on the total existing Diameter Breast Height (d.b.h.) of significant 
trees within each specific location category prior to development. 
Maximum mitigation is the percentage of the minimum preservation 
that may be mitigated according to subsection 2. below. 

 

Table 9.6885(2)(d) Tree Preservation and Mitigation 

Location Category 
Minimum 

Preservation 
Maximum 
Mitigation 

Outside the South Hills Area  40% 100% 

Within the South Hills Area, between 500 feet and 900 feet 
elevation 

50% 50% 

Within the South Hills Area, at or above 900 feet elevation 50% 0% 

 

1. A Tree Preservation and Removal Plan is required except as 
provided in EC 9.6885(2)(c) or EC 9.6885(2)(d)3. The plan must be 

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 6CC Agenda - Page 80



Ordinance - Page 15 of 38 

prepared by a certified arborist, licensed landscape architect, 
licensed engineer, or licensed surveyor and shall provide the 
following: 
a. A table, organized by the location categories listed in Table 

9.6885(2)(d), listing all significant trees on the development 
site and including the following information for each listed 
tree:  
(1) Diameter Breast Height (d.b.h.)  
(2) Preservation, removal, or mitigation status  
(3) Common name, genus and species  

b. A site plan that includes the following information: 
(1) The locations of all significant trees on the development 

site, the Diameter Breast Height (d.b.h.) for each 
significant tree, whether each significant tree is to be 
preserved, removed, or mitigated according to EC 
9.6885(2)(c)2, and the location of the critical root zone 
(CRZ) for each significant tree to be preserved. 

(2) The location of all existing and/or proposed public and 
private utility easements, driveways, and areas of 
grading or excavation on the development site. 

(3) The location of all existing development on the site as 
well as the location of development proposed in the 
land use application that triggers the requirement for a 
Tree Preservation and Removal Plan.  

(4) Proposed lot or parcel boundaries.  
(5) For development sites with any portion located within 

the South Hills Area, identification of areas at or above 
500 feet elevation and areas at or above 900 feet 
elevation. 

c. A written statement from a certified arborist or licensed 
landscape architect that the Tree Preservation and Removal 
Plan meets EC 9.6885(2)(d) Tree Preservation Requirements. 
If the Tree Preservation and Removal Plan is prepared by a 
certified arborist or licensed landscape architect, then the 
written statement otherwise required by this subparagraph is 
not required. 

2. Mitigation. An applicant may elect to mitigate a portion of the 
minimum preservation of significant trees on the development 
site as provided below: 
a. The maximum d.b.h. that can be mitigated shall be based on 

location category as provided in Table EC 9.6885(2)(d) Tree 
Preservation and Mitigation.  

b. Proposed subdivisions in areas outside of the South Hills 
Area may mitigate up to 100% of the minimum tree 
preservation requirement by either: 
(1) Providing that lots up to 7,000 square feet in area will 

contain a minimum of two trees and lots 7,000 square 
feet or more will contain a minimum of three trees; or,  

(2) Providing one replacement tree for each significant tree 
designated for mitigation.      

c. Installation and Maintenance. Unless otherwise specified, 

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 6CC Agenda - Page 81



Ordinance - Page 16 of 38 

each significant tree designated for mitigation must be 
replaced with one tree selected from the approved species 
listed in Table 9.6885(2)(d)2 within one year from the date of 
removal or prior to final occupancy, whichever is later. Trees 
planted in accordance with subparagraph b.(1) must be 
planted prior to final occupancy. At the time of planting, 
deciduous trees used for replacement must have a minimum 
diameter of 2 inches and evergreen trees used for 
replacement must be a minimum of 5 feet in height as 
measured according to the 2014 edition of the American 
Standard for Nursery Stock (ANSI Z60.1), published by the 
American Nursery and Landscape Association.  

d. The maximum mitigation allowance may be adjusted in 
accordance with EC 9.8030(13). 

 

Table 9.6885(2)(d)2. Approved Species List 

Genus and Species Common Name 

Abies koreana Silver Korean Fir 

Abies pinsapo Spanish Fir 

Acer circinatum Vine Maple  

Acer ginnala Amur Maple 

Acer glabrum var. douglasii Rocky Mountain Maple 

Acer griseum Paperbark Maple 

Acer macrophyllum Big Leaf Maple 

Acer rubrum Red Maple 

Acer saccharum Sugar Maple 

Alnus rhombifolia White Alder 

Alnus rubra Red Alder  

Amelanchier alnifolia Pacific Serviceberry 

Arbutus menziesii Pacific Madrone 

Arbutus unedo Strawberry Madrone 

Arbutus 'Marina' Marina Strawberry Tree 

Betula nigra River Birch 

Calocedrus decurrens Incense Cedar 

Carpinus betulus European Hornbeam 

Carpinus caroliniana American Hornbeam 

Castanopsis cuspidate Japanese Chinquapin 

Catalpa speciose Northern Catalpa 

Cedrus atlantica Atlas Cedar 

Cedrus deodara Deodar Cedar 

Cedrus libani Cedar of Lebanon 

Celtis occidentalis Common Hackberry 

Cercidiphyllum japonicum Katsura Tree 

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 6CC Agenda - Page 82



Ordinance - Page 17 of 38 

Table 9.6885(2)(d)2. Approved Species List 

Genus and Species Common Name 

Chrysolepis chrysophylla Golden Chinquapin 

Cinnamomum chekiangense Camphor Tree 

Cornus nuttallii Pacific Dogwood 

Corylus colurna Turkish Filbert 

Cupressus arizonica Arizona Cypress 

Cupressus bakeri Modoc Cypress 

Cupressus leylandii Leyland Cypress 

Fraxinus latifolia Oregon Ash 

Fraxinus ornus Flowering Ash 

Ginkgo biloba (fruitless cultivars only) Ginkgo 

Koelreuteria paniculate Goldenrain Tree 

Maackia amurensis Maackia 

Nyssa sylvatica Tupelo, Black Gum 

Ostrya virginiana American Hophornbeam 

Oxydendrum aroboreum Sourwood 

Parrotia persica Persian Ironwood 

Picea smithiana Morinda Spruce 

Pinus ponderosa Ponderosa Pine 

Pinus ponderosa var. benthamania Willamette Valley Ponderosa Pine 

Pinus wallichiana Himalayan Pine 

Pistacia chinensis Chinese Pistachio 

Platanus acerifolia  London Plane 

Prunus virginiana  Chokecherry 

Pseudotsuga menziesii Douglas Fir 

Quercus acutissima Sawtooth Oak 

Quercus agrifolia Coast Live Oak 

Quercus alba White Oak 

Quercus bicolor Swamp White Oak 

Quercus chrysolepis Canyon Live Oak 

Quercus douglasii Blue Oak 

Quercus frainetto Hungarian Oak 

Quercus gambelii Gambel Oak 

Quercus garryana Oregon White Oak  

Quercus hypoleucoides Silver Oak 

Quercus ilex Holly Oak 

Quercus kelloggii California Black Oak 

Quercus lobate Valley Oak 

Quercus macrocarpa Bur Oak 

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 6CC Agenda - Page 83



Ordinance - Page 18 of 38 

Table 9.6885(2)(d)2. Approved Species List 

Genus and Species Common Name 

Quercus myrsinifolia Chinese Evergreen Oak 

Quercus palustris Pin Oak 

Quercus phellos Willow Oak 

Quercus rubra Red Oak 

Quercus shumardii Shumardii Oak 

Quercus suber Cork Oak 

Quercus wislizeni Interior Live Oak 

Rhamnus purshiana Cascara Buckthorn 

Salix lucida ssp. Lasiandra Pacific Willow 

Salix scouleriana Scouler’s Willow 

Sciadopitys verticillate Japanese Umbrella Pine 

Sequoia sempervirens Coast Redwood 

Sequoiadendron giganteum Giant Sequoia 

Stewartia pseudocamellia Stewartia 

Styrax japonicus (japonica) Japanese Snowbell 

Taxodium distichum Bald Cypress 

Taxus brevifolia Pacific Yew 

Thuja plicata Western Red Cedar 

Tilia Americana American Linden 

Tilia cordata Little Leaf Linden 

Tilia tomentosa Silver Linden 

Tsuga canadensis Canadian Hemlock 

Tsuga heterophylla Western Hemlock  

Tsuga mertensiana Mountain Hemlock 

Tsuga sieboldii Southern Japanese Hemlock 

Ulmus americana  American Elm 

Ulmus carpinifolia Smoothleaf Elm 

Ulmus parvifolia  Chinese Elm 

Ulmus propinqua Japanese Elm 

Umbellularia californica California Bay Laurel  

Zelkova serrata Zelkova 

 

3. Tree Preservation Area Alternative. 
a. A Tree Preservation and Removal Plan is not required if 

the applicant chooses to preserve at least 50 percent of 
the total existing d.b.h. of significant trees on the 
development site within one or more tree preservation 
area(s) and the following requirements are met: 

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 6CC Agenda - Page 84



Ordinance - Page 19 of 38 

(1) Tree preservation area(s) must be delineated and 
shown on a site plan submitted for approval by the 
City.  

(2) Applicant must provide written certification from a 
certified arborist or licensed landscape architect 
stating that the area(s) designated for tree 
preservation include(s) at least 50 percent of the 
total existing d.b.h. of significant trees on the 
development site. 

b. Mitigation is not allowed when the Tree Preservation 
Area Alternative is used to meet tree preservation 
requirements, except as approved through an adjustment 
review according to EC 9.8030(13). 

4. Protection Standards. The following notes must be included 
on the final plan set submitted for approval by the City and 
shall apply at the time of development:  
a. “Protective fencing for trees identified to be preserved 

shall be installed by the applicant and inspected by the 
City prior to beginning any development activities. All 
protective tree fencing must remain in place until 
completion of all construction activities; any relocation, 
removal, or modification of the protective fencing shall 
only occur under the direction of a certified arborist and 
a written explanation of the reason for the relocation, 
removal, or modification of the protective fencing from 
the certified arborist must be provided to the City.”  

b. “At the time of building permit, a site plan in compliance 
with the approved tree preservation and removal plan is 
required.”  

c. “No excavation, grading, material storage, staging, 
vehicle parking or other construction activity shall take 
place within protective tree fencing areas.”  

d. “The removal of trees not designated to be preserved is 
optional; removal may occur at the owner’s discretion.”  

e. “Any tree designated for mitigation must be replaced 
with one tree selected from the approved species listed 
in Table 9.6885(2)(d)2 within one year from the date of 
removal or prior to final occupancy, whichever is later. At 
the time of planting, deciduous trees used for 
replacement must have a minimum diameter of 2 inches 
and evergreen trees used for replacement must be a 
minimum of 6 feet in height as measured according to 
the 2014 edition of the American Standard for Nursery 
Stock (ANSI Z60.1), published by the American Nursery 
and Landscape Association. Maintenance of replacement 
trees is the ongoing responsibility of the property 
owner.”  

f. “In the event a tree designated to be preserved must be 
removed because it is dead, diseased, dying, or 
hazardous, documentation of the tree’s dead, diseased, 
dying, or hazardous condition by a certified arborist must 

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 6CC Agenda - Page 85



Ordinance - Page 20 of 38 

be provided to the City prior to tree removal. The tree 
must be replaced with one replacement tree selected 
from the approved species list in Table 9.6885(2)(d)2. At 
the time of planting, deciduous trees used for 
replacement must have a minimum diameter of 2 inches 
and evergreen trees used for replacement must be a 
minimum of 6 feet in height as measured according to 
the 2014 edition of the American Standard for Nursery 
Stock (ANSI Z60.1), published by the American Nursery 
and Landscape Association. Maintenance of replacement 
trees is the ongoing responsibility of the property 
owner.”  

(be) Street Tree Removal. If the proposal includes removal of any street 
tree(s), removal of those street trees has been approved, or approved 
with conditions according to the process at EC 6.305 Tree Felling 
Prohibition. 

[(3) Adjustment to Standards. Except for applications being processed under EC 
9.8100 Conditional Use Permit Approval Criteria - Needed Housing, EC 
9.8325 Tentative Planned Unit Development Approval Criteria - Needed 
Housing, EC 9.8445 Site Review Approval Criteria – Needed Housing, or EC 
9.8520 Subdivision, Tentative Plan Approval Criteria - Needed Housing, 
adjustments to these standards may be made, subject to compliance with the 
criteria for adjustment in EC 9.8030(13) Tree Preservation and Removal 
Standards Adjustment.]  

 
 
Section 24.  Subsection (1)(a) of Section 9.7007 of the Eugene Code, 1971, is amended 

to provide as follows: 

9.7007 Neighborhood/Applicant Meetings.   
(1) This section applies to the following types of applications: 

(a) Type II:  [3-lot partitions, t]Tentative subdivisions, tentative cluster 
subdivisions and design reviews, except tentative subdivisions that 
implement an approved tentative planned unit development; 

 
  * * * 
 
 
Section 25.  Subsection (13) of Section 9.8030 of the Eugene Code, 1971, is amended, 

and subsection (37) is added, to provide as follows: 

9.8030 Adjustment Review - Approval Criteria. The planning director shall approve, 
conditionally approve, or deny an adjustment review application. Approval or 
conditional approval shall be based on compliance with the following applicable 
criteria. 

 * * * 
(13) Tree Preservation and Removal Standards Adjustment.  [Except as 

otherwise provided in EC 9.6885(3) Adjustments to Standards, the tree 

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 6CC Agenda - Page 86



Ordinance - Page 21 of 38 

preservation and removal standards of EC 9.6885(2) may be adjusted[, and 
the number of trees amount of existing d.b.h. required to be preserved may be 
reduced] based on compliance with all of the following criteria [of (a), (b), (c), 
and (d), and one of the conditions of (e) exists: 
 (a) The proposed adjustment to the tree preservation and removal 

standards is the minimum necessary to implement the development 
proposal. 

(b) The proposal includes an approved replanting or restoration program or 
plan that mitigates the loss of trees or impacts to other natural features.  

(c) The proposal is otherwise in compliance with all applicable standards. 
(d) Alternative proposals have been evaluated, and there is no feasible 

alternative. 
(e) One of the following conditions exists: 

1. Compliance with tree preservation and removal standards is not 
feasible, or would result in degradation of steep slopes, significant 
wildlife habitat, or water bodies due to the topography or other 
natural features of the development site; or 

2. An adjustment to the tree preservation and removal standards is 
necessary in order to achieve the minimum residential density 
under this land use code; or 

3. The existing trees required to meet the minimum preservation 
standard are unlikely to survive the level and type of anticipated 
development due to susceptibility to windthrow or other natural 
causes of failure.] 

The minimum tree preservation requirement and maximum mitigation 
allowance of EC 9.6885(2) may be adjusted if one of the conditions listed 
in subparagraph (a) below applies and the proposed design complies 
with the criteria in subparagraphs (b) through (e): 
(a) Conditions. To qualify for an adjustment, one of the following 

conditions must apply: 
1. Strict compliance with tree preservation and removal 

standards is not feasible due to other requirements of this 
code or existing site constraints such as topography or other 
natural features; or, 

2. An adjustment to the minimum tree preservation and/or 
mitigation requirement is necessary in order to achieve a net 
density greater than 75 percent of the maximum allowed 
under this land use code; or, 

3. The existing trees required to meet the minimum preservation 
requirement are unlikely to survive the level and type of 
anticipated development due to susceptibility to windthrow or 
other natural causes of failure. 

(b) The proposed reduction to the minimum tree preservation 
requirement or increase in mitigation allowance is necessary to 
accommodate a reasonable level of development. In no case shall 
minimum tree preservation for areas at or above 900 feet elevation 
be reduced below 30%.  

(c) Except for areas at or above 900 feet elevation, proposals may 
mitigate up to 100% of the minimum tree preservation requirement 
if the following requirements are met:  
1. For proposed subdivisions, new trees must be planted so 

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 6CC Agenda - Page 87



Ordinance - Page 22 of 38 

that lots up to 7,000 square feet in area will contain a 
minimum of two trees and lots 7,000 square feet or more will 
contain a minimum of three trees.   

2. For all other developments, the proposed design must 
provide one tree per dwelling unit.  

New trees planted to meet subsection 1. or 2. above are subject to 
the requirements at EC 9.6885(2)(d)2.c. Installation and 
Maintenance. Trees planted to meet applicable landscape 
standards may count toward these requirements. Existing trees on 
the development site that are under 8-inches Diameter Breast 
Height (d.b.h.) and listed in Table 9.6885(2)(d)2. Approved Species 
List may be designated for preservation and counted toward these 
requirements (in lieu of planting new trees). 

(e) For areas at or above 900 feet elevation, mitigation is limited to 10% 
of the minimum preservation requirement. 

* * *  
(37) Street Standards Adjustment. Where this land use code provides that 

street standards may be adjusted, the standards may be adjusted upon a 
demonstration by the applicant that the requested adjustment is 
consistent with the following:  
(a) The applicant has submitted a report prepared by an Oregon 

licensed civil engineer that demonstrates it is not technically or 
financially feasible to construct the street in accordance with 
adopted plans and policies, and the adopted “Design Standards 
and Guidelines for Eugene Streets, Sidewalks, Bikeways, and 
Accessways.” 

(b) The adjustment is necessary due to at least one of the following 
conditions: 
1. Existing on-site or off-site geologic or topographic conditions, 

or existing wetlands designated for protection by the City of 
Eugene; or 

2. Existing development on lands abutting the development site. 
 
 
Section 26.  Section 9.8045 of the Eugene Code, 1971, is amended to provide as follows: 
 
9.8045 Applicability of Cluster Subdivisions.  Cluster subdivision provisions shall 

be applied when requested by the property owner and when the proposed 
subdivision meets the definition of cluster subdivision in section 9.0500 of this 
land use code. A subdivision application proposing [needed housing, as 
defined in state statutes,] housing to be reviewed with clear and objective 
approval criteria shall be processed pursuant to EC 9.8520 Subdivision, 
Tentative Plan Approval Criteria – [Needed] Housing/Clear and Objective. No 
development permit shall be issued by the city prior to approval of the cluster 
subdivision. 

 
 
 
 

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 6CC Agenda - Page 88



Ordinance - Page 23 of 38 

Section 27.  Subsection (1)(a) of Section 9.8055 of the Eugene Code, 1971, is amended 

to provide as follows: 

9.8055 Cluster Subdivision- Approval Criteria – General/Discretionary.  The planning 
director shall approve, approve with conditions, or deny a proposed cluster 
subdivision.  Approval or approval with conditions shall be based on the following: 
(1) The proposed subdivision complies with: 

(a) EC 9.8515 Subdivision, Tentative Plan Approval Criteria- 
General/Discretionary except for the standards related to EC 9.2760 
Residential Zone Lot Standards; and 

 
* * * 
 

 
Section 28.  Section 9.8085 of the Eugene Code, 1971, is amended to provide as follows: 
 

9.8085 Conditional Use Permit Application Requirements.   
(1) Conditional use applications shall be processed in accordance with the 

application procedures contained in EC 9.7000 through 9.7835, Application 
Procedures.   

(2) When a conditional use permit is required for the proposed use, no 
development permit application shall be accepted by the city until the hearings 
official or planning commission approves the conditional use permit, and then 
only in accordance with the terms and conditions of that conditional use 
permit.   

(3) If the proposal includes [needed housing, as defined by state law] housing, 
the written statement submitted with the conditional use permit application 
shall clearly state whether the applicant is electing to use the [general] 
discretionary approval criteria in EC 9.8090 Conditional Use Permit Approval 
Criteria – General/Discretionary instead of the approval criteria found in EC 
9.8100 Conditional Use Permit Approval Criteria – [Needed] Housing/Clear 
and Objective. 

 
 
Section 29.  The heading of Section 9.8090 of the Eugene Code, 1971, is amended to 

provide as follows: 

9.8090 Conditional Use Permit Approval Criteria – General/Discretionary.  A 
conditional use permit shall be granted only if the proposal conforms to all of the 
following criteria: 

 
 * * * 
 
 

Section 30.  Section 9.8100 of the Eugene Code, 1971, is amended to provide as follows: 
 

9.8100 Conditional Use Permit Approval Criteria- [Needed] Housing/Clear and 
Objective. The hearings official shall approve, conditionally approve, or deny the 
conditional use permit application. Unless the applicant elects to use the [general] 

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 6CC Agenda - Page 89



Ordinance - Page 24 of 38 

discretionary criteria contained in EC 9.8090 Conditional Use Permit Approval 
Criteria – General/Discretionary, where the applicant proposes [needed housing, 
as defined by the State statutes] housing, the hearings official shall approve or 
approve with conditions a conditional use based on compliance with the following 
criteria: 
(1) [The applicant has demonstrated that the proposed housing is needed 

housing as defined by State statutes.] The proposal complies with EC 
9.5860 Transition Standards.  

(2) If applicable, the proposal complies with the standards contained in EC 9.5500 
Multiple-Family Standards. 

(3) For areas not included on the city’s acknowledged Goal 5 inventory, the 
proposal will preserve existing natural resources by compliance with [all of the 
following: 
(a) The proposal complies with] the provisions of EC 9.6880 to EC 9.6885 

Tree Preservation and Removal Standards. 
(b) Natural resource areas designated on the comprehensive plan diagram 

as “Natural Resource” are protected.  Protection shall include the area 
of the resource and a minimum 50 foot buffer around the perimeter of 
the natural resource area.] 

(4) The proposal complies with [all applicable standards, including, but not limited 
to: 
(a) EC 9.2000 through EC 9.4170 regarding lot dimensions and density 

requirements for the subject zone and any applicable overlay 
zones. 

(b) EC 9.6500 through EC 9.6505 Public Improvement Standards. 
(ac) EC 9.6706 Development in Flood Plains through EC 9.6709 Special 

Flood Hazard Areas – Standards.  
(bd) EC 9.6710(6) Geological and Geotechnical Analysis.  
(ce) EC 9.6730 Pedestrian Circulation On-Site.  
(df) EC 9.6735 Public Access Required.  
(eg) EC 9.6750 Special Setback Standards.  
(fh) EC 9.6775 Underground Utilities.  
(gi) EC 9.6780 Vision Clearance Area.  
(hj) EC 9.6791 through 9.6797 regarding stormwater flood control, quality, 

flow control for headwaters area, oil control, source control, easements, 
and operation and maintenance. 

(k) EC 9.6800 through EC 9.6875 Standards for Streets, Alleys, and 
Other Public Ways. 

(l) All other applicable development standards for features explicitly 
included in the application.  

(im) An approved adjustment to a standard pursuant to the provisions 
beginning at EC 9.8015 of this land use code constitutes compliance 
with the standard. 

(5) Public improvements as required by this land use code or as a condition of 
[tentative plan] approval will be [have been] completed prior to issuance of a 
development permit, or:  
(a) A performance bond or suitable substitute as agreed upon by the city 

has been filed with the city finance officer in an amount sufficient to 
assure the completion of all required public improvements; or 

(b) A petition for public improvements and for the assessment of the real 
property for the improvements has been signed by the property owner 

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 6CC Agenda - Page 90



Ordinance - Page 25 of 38 

seeking the conditional use permit, and the petition has been accepted 
by the city engineer. 

(6) If the standards addressed under EC 9.8100(4) require a public street, or 
if the applicant proposes the creation of a public street, the proposal will 
provide pedestrian and bicycle circulation to residential areas, transit 
stops, neighborhood activity centers, parks, schools, commercial 
centers, office parks, and industrial parks located within ¼ mile radius of 
the development site, provided the city makes findings to demonstrate 
consistency with constitutional requirements. 

 
 
Section 31.  Subsection (2) of Section 9.8105 of the Eugene Code, 1971, is amended to 

provide as follows: 

9.8105 Conditional Use Permits within the NR Natural Resource Zone or /WB Wetland 
Buffer Overlay Zone. 

 * * *  
(2) Criteria for Hearings Official Approval.  Applications for conditional use permits 

within the NR natural resource zone or /WB wetland buffer overlay zone shall be 
processed and scheduled for public hearings in the same manner as other 
conditional use permit applications, except that NR standards (2) through (19) listed 
in EC 9.2530 Natural Resource Zone Development Standards shall be considered 
as additional criteria along with the criteria listed in EC 9.8090 Conditional Use 
Permit Approval Criteria – General/Discretionary. 

 
 
Section 32.  Section 9.8205 of the Eugene Code, 1971, is amended to provide as follows: 

9.8205 Applicability of Partition, Tentative Plan Applications. Requests to create 2 or 3 
parcels shall be subject to the partition provisions of this land use code, following a 
Type II application procedure, except as provided for concurrent applications in 
EC 9.8005. 
(1) A tentative plan application to partition land [application that also involves a 

PUD request] may be submitted and reviewed concurrently with a [not be 
submitted until a decision on the] tentative PUD application following a Type 
III application procedure [approval is final]. If a partition application that 
also involves a PUD application is not submitted concurrently with the 
tentative PUD application, the partition application may not be submitted 
until a tentative PUD is approved.  (Refer to EC 9.8305 Applicability.)   

(2) If a partition tentative plan application is not reviewed concurrently with a 
tentative PUD application, [N]no development permit shall be issued by the 
city prior to approval of the tentative partition application.[,] If a tentative 
partition is reviewed concurrently with a tentative PUD application, no 
development permit shall be issued by the city prior to approval of the 
final PUD application in accordance with EC 9.8305. 

 
 
 

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 6CC Agenda - Page 91



Ordinance - Page 26 of 38 

Section 33.  Subsection (4) of Section 9.8210 of the Eugene Code, 1971, is amended to 

provide as follows:  

9.8210 Partition, Tentative Plan Application Requirements.  In addition to the provisions 
in EC 9.7010 Application Filing, the following specific requirements apply to partition 
tentative plan applications: 

 * * * 
(4) If the proposal includes [needed housing, as defined by State statutes] 

housing, the written statement submitted with the partition application shall 
clearly state whether the applicant is electing to use the [general] 
discretionary approval criteria in EC 9.8215 Partition, Tentative Plan 
Approval Criteria- General/Discretionary instead of the approval criteria 
found in EC 9.8220 Partition, Tentative Plan Approval Criteria- [Needed] 
Housing/Clear and Objective. 

 
 
Section 34.  The heading of Section 9.8215 of the Eugene Code, 1971, is amended to 

provide as follows: 

9.8215 Partition, Tentative Plan Approval Criteria- General/Discretionary.  The 
planning director shall approve, approve with conditions, or deny a partition, with 
findings and conclusions.  Approval, or approval with conditions, shall be based on 
compliance with the following criteria: 

 
 * * * 
 
 

Section 35.  Section 9.8220 of the Eugene Code, 1971, is amended to provide as follows:  

9.8220 Partition, Tentative Plan Approval Criteria- [Needed] Housing/Clear and 
Objective.  Unless the applicant elects to use the discretionary criteria 
contained in EC 9.8215 Partition, Tentative Plan Approval Criteria- 
General/Discretionary, for housing applications entitled to clear and objective 
review pursuant to state statute, [T]the planning director shall approve, 
conditionally approve, or deny the partition application[.  Unless the applicant elects 
to use the general criteria contained in EC 9.8215 Partition, Tentative Plan Approval 
Criteria- General, where the applicant proposes needed housing, as defined by 
State statutes, the planning director shall approve or approve with conditions a 
partition] based on compliance with the following criteria: 
[(1) The applicant has demonstrated that the proposed housing is needed housing 

as defined by State statutes.]  
(21) The proposed partition complies with all of the following: 

(a) [Lot standards of]EC 9.2000 through [9.3980] 9.4170 regarding 
applicable parcel dimensions and density requirements for the subject 
zone and any applicable overlay zones. Within the /WR Water 
Resources Conservation Overlay Zone or /WQ Water Quality Overlay 
Zone, no new lot may be created if more than 33% of the lot, as created, 
would be occupied by either: 

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 6CC Agenda - Page 92



Ordinance - Page 27 of 38 

1. The combined area of the /WR conservation setback and 
any portion of the Goal 5 Water Resource Site that extends 
landward beyond the conservation setback; or  

   2. The /WQ Management Area. 
(b) EC 9.6800 through EC 9.6875 Standards for Streets, Alleys, and Other 

Public Ways.  
(c) EC 9.6500 through EC 9.6505 Public Improvement Standards.  
(d)  EC 9.6706 Development in Flood Plains through EC 9.6709 Special 

Flood Hazard Areas – Standards.  
(e)  EC 9.6710(6) Geological and Geotechnical Analysis.  
(f)  EC 9.6735 Public Access Required.  
(g)  EC 9.6750 Special Setback Standards.  
(h)  EC 9.6775 Underground Utilities.  
(i) EC 9.6780 Vision Clearance Area.  
(j)  EC 9.6791 through 9.6797 regarding stormwater flood control, quality, 

flow control for headwaters area, oil control, source control, easements, 
and operation and maintenance.  

[(k)  EC 9.6880 through EC 9.6885 Tree Preservation and Removal 
Standards.]  

(lk)  All other applicable development standards for features explicitly 
included in the application. 

An approved adjustment to a standard pursuant to the provisions beginning at 
EC 9.8015 of this land use code constitutes compliance with the standard.  

(32) The proposed partition will not cause any existing improvements on proposed 
lots to be inconsistent with applicable standards in this land use code. 

 [(4) Partitions abutting collector and arterial streets comply with access 
management guidelines of the agency having jurisdiction over the street.] 

(53) If the provisions of EC 9.8220(2) require a public street, or if the applicant 
proposes the creation of a public street, the following criteria also apply: 
(a) The proposed land uses and densities within the partition are consistent 

with the land use designation(s) shown on the comprehensive plan 
diagram, as refined in any applicable refinement plan.  

(b) Provision of pedestrian, bicycle and transit circulation among buildings 
located within the development site, as well as to adjacent and nearby 
residential areas, transit stops, neighborhood activity centers, office 
parks, and industrial parks, provided the city makes findings to 
demonstrate consistency with constitutional requirements. “Nearby” 
means uses within 1/4 mile that can reasonably be expected to be used 
by pedestrians, and uses within 2 miles that can reasonably be expected 
to be used by bicyclists. 

[(c) The street layout of the proposed partition shall disperse motor vehicle 
traffic onto more than one public local street when the sum of proposed 
partition parcels and the existing lots utilizing a local street as the single 
means of ingress and egress exceeds 19.] 

(64) On R-1 zoned property, if the partition results in a parcel greater than 13,500 
square feet in size based on EC 9.2761(5)(b), the application shall indicate the 
location of parcel lines and other details of layout that show future division 
may be made without violating the requirements of this land use code and 
without interfering with the orderly extension of adjacent streets, bicycle paths, 
and accessways. Any restriction of buildings within future street, bicycle path, 

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 6CC Agenda - Page 93



Ordinance - Page 28 of 38 

and accessway locations shall be made a matter of record in the tentative plan 
approval. 

 
 
Section 36.  Subsections (2)(c) and (5) of Section 9.8310 of the Eugene Code, 1971, are 

amended to provide as follows: 

9.8310 Tentative Planned Unit Development General Application Requirements.   
* * * 
(2) Project Coordinator and Professional Design Team.  The tentative PUD 

application shall identify the PUD project coordinator and the professional 
design team and certify compliance with the following:  
(c) Plan Certification.  Certification of the services of the professionals 

responsible for particular drawings shall appear on those drawings.  [To 
ensure comprehensive review of all plans for compliance with the PUD 
provisions by the professional design team, the cover sheet shall 
contain a statement of review endorsed with the signatures of all 
designated members of the professional design team stating that the 
portion of the project in which he or she was involved complies with the 
following:  
1. Meets the standards of his or her profession.  
2. Complies with the tentative PUD criteria.]  

* * * 
(5) [Needed] Housing.  If the proposal includes [needed housing, as defined by 

State statutes] housing, the written statement submitted with the PUD 
application shall clearly state whether the applicant is proceeding under: 
(a)[electing to use] the [general] approval criteria in EC 9.8320 Tentative 
Planned Unit Development Approval Criteria- General/Discretionary; or (b) 
[instead of] the approval criteria [found] in EC 9.8325 Tentative Planned Unit 
Development Approval Criteria-[Needed] Housing/Clear and Objective.  

 
 
Section 37.  The heading of Section 9.8320 of the Eugene Code, 1971, is amended to 

provide as follows: 

9.8320 Tentative Planned Unit Development Approval Criteria- General/Discretionary. 
The hearings official shall approve, approve with conditions, or deny a tentative 
PUD application with findings and conclusions.  Decisions approving an application, 
or approving with conditions, shall be based on compliance with the following 
criteria:  

 
 * * * 

 
 
Section 38.  Section 9.8325 of the Eugene Code, 1971, is amended to provide as follows:   
 

9.8325 Tentative Planned Unit Development Approval Criteria – [Needed] 
Housing/Clear and Objective. Unless the applicant elects to use the 
discretionary criteria contained in EC 9.8320 Tentative Planned Unit 

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 6CC Agenda - Page 94



Ordinance - Page 29 of 38 

Development Approval Criteria- General/Discretionary, for housing 
applications entitled to clear and objective review pursuant to state statute, 
[T]the hearings official shall approve, conditionally approve, or deny the PUD 
application [with findings and conclusions. Unless the applicant elects to use the 
general criteria contained in EC 9.8320 Tentative Planned Unit Development 
Approval Criteria –General, where the applicant proposes needed housing, as 
defined by the State statutes, the hearings official shall approve or approve with 
conditions, a PUD] based on compliance with the following criteria:  
(1) [The applicant has demonstrated that the proposed housing is needed 

housing as defined by state statutes.] The proposal complies with EC 
9.5860 Transition Standards.  

(2) The proposed land uses and densities within the PUD are consistent with the 
land use designation(s) shown on the comprehensive plan diagram, as refined 
in any applicable refinement plan. 

[(3) The PUD provides a buffer area between the proposed development and 
surrounding properties by providing at least a 30 foot wide landscape area 
along the perimeter of the PUD according to EC 9.6210(7).] 

(43) For areas not included on the city’s acknowledged Goal 5 inventory, the PUD 
preserves existing natural resources by compliance with [all of the following: 
(a) T]the provisions of EC 9.6880 to EC 9.6885 Tree Preservation and 

Removal Standards[, (not subject to modifications set forth in subsection 
(11) below)]. 

[(b) Natural resource areas designated on the comprehensive plan diagram 
as “Natural Resource” are protected.] 

(5) [There shall be no proposed grading on portions of the development site that 
meet or exceed 20% slope.] 

(64) The PUD provides safe and adequate transportation systems through 
compliance with all of the following: 
(a)  EC 9.6800 through EC 9.6875 Standards for Streets, Alleys, and Other 

Public Ways (not subject to modifications set forth in subsection (11) 
below).  

(b)  Provision of pedestrian, bicycle and transit circulation among buildings 
located within the development site, as well as to adjacent and nearby 
residential areas, transit stops, neighborhood activity centers, office 
parks, and industrial parks, provided the city makes findings to 
demonstrate consistency with constitutional requirements. “Nearby” 
means uses within 1/4 mile that can reasonably be expected to be used 
by pedestrians, and uses within 2 miles that can reasonably be expected 
to be used by bicyclists.  

[(c) The street layout of the proposed PUD shall disperse motor vehicle 
traffic onto more than one public local street when the PUD exceeds 19 
lots or when the sum of proposed PUD lots and the existing lots utilizing 
a local street as the single means of ingress and egress exceeds 19.]    

(75) The PUD complies with all of the following: 
(a) EC 9.2000 through [9.3980] EC 9.4170 regarding applicable lot 

dimensions and density requirements for the subject zone and any 
applicable overlay zones.  Within the /WR Water Resources 
Conservation Overlay Zone or /WQ Water Quality Overlay Zone, no 
new lot may be created if more than 33% of the lot, as created, would 
be occupied by either: 

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 6CC Agenda - Page 95



Ordinance - Page 30 of 38 

1. The combined area of the /WR conservation setback and 
any portion of the Goal 5 Water Resource Site that extends 
landward beyond the conservation setback; or 

2. The /WQ Management Area.  
(b) EC 9.6500 through 9.6505 Public Improvement Standards.  
(c) EC 9.6706 Development in Flood Plains through EC 9.6709 Special 

Flood Hazard Areas – Standards.  
(d) EC 9.6710(6) Geological and Geotechnical Analysis.  
(e) EC 9.6730 Pedestrian Circulation On-Site.  
(f) EC 9.6735 Public Access Required.  
(g) EC 9.6750 Special Setback Standards.  
(h) EC 9.6775 Underground Utilities.  
(i) EC 9.6780 Vision Clearance Area.  
(j) EC 9.6791 through 9.6797 regarding stormwater flood control, quality, 

flow control for headwaters area, oil control, source control, easements, 
and operation and maintenance. 

(k) All applicable development standards explicitly addressed in the 
application. 

An approved adjustment to a standard pursuant to the provisions beginning at 
EC 9.8015 of this land use code constitutes compliance with the standard. 

(86) The applicant has demonstrated that wastewater service, transportation 
service, stormwater service, water service, and electrical service will be 
provided to the site prior to the need for those facilities and services. Where 
the facility or service is not already serving the site, this demonstration 
requires evidence of at least one of the following:  
(a) Prior written commitment of public funds by the appropriate public 

agencies.  
(b) Prior acceptance by the appropriate public agency of a written 

commitment by the applicant or other party to provide private services 
and facilities.  

(c) A written commitment by the applicant or other party to provide for 
offsetting all added public costs or early commitment of public funds 
made necessary by development, submitted on a form acceptable to 
the city manager. 

 (97) [All proposed dwellings within the PUD are within 1/4 mile radius (measured 
from any point along the perimeter of the development site) of an accessible 
recreation area or open space that is at least 1 acre in size and will be 
available to residents.] PUDs proposed on development sites that are two 
acres or larger must comply with either subparagraph (a) or (b), below:  
(a) The PUD is located within 1/2-mile of a public park, public 

recreation facility, or public school (determined using the shortest 
distance as measured along a straight line between a point along 
the perimeter of the development site and a point along a property 
line of a public park, public recreation facility, or public school); or 

(b) The PUD shall provide common open space within the development 
as follows:  
1. Common open space area.  

a. If the average lot area is equal to or greater than the 
minimum lot area of the base zone, then the PUD shall 
provide common open space within the development site 
equal to a minimum of 10 percent of the net acres of the 

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 6CC Agenda - Page 96



Ordinance - Page 31 of 38 

development site or 14,500 square feet, whichever is 
greater. 

b. If the average lot area is below the minimum lot area of 
the base zone, then the PUD shall provide common open 
space within the development site equal to a minimum of 
15 percent of the net acres of the development site or 
14,500 square feet, whichever is greater.  

For the purpose of this subparagraph, net acres means the 
total development site area minus area(s) for public or private 
streets. In no case shall the common open space requirement 
exceed one acre.  

2.  Common open space shall be provided in one separate tract 
of land, except that developments providing more than 29,000 
square feet of common open space may include up to three 
common open space tracts provided no tract is less than 
14,500 square feet. 

3.  Ownership of the common open space tract(s) must be 
dedicated to all lot or parcel owners within the development 
site. 

4.  Each common open space tract must include a portion with 
minimum dimensions of 70 feet by 70 feet. 

5. Except where each lot or parcel in the development abuts one 
or more of the common open space area(s), common open 
space tracts must have a minimum of 10 feet of lot frontage 
along an existing or proposed public way or private street.  

6. Common open space tracts do not have to meet lot standards.  
(c) For proposals that include multiple-family development, 

compliance with subparagraph (a) or (b) shall constitute 
compliance with the requirements of EC 9.5500(9).  

[(10) Lots proposed for development with one-family detached dwellings shall 
comply with EC 9.2790 Solar Lot Standards (these standards may be modified 
as set forth in subsection (11) below). 

(11) The PUD complies with all applicable development standards explicitly 
addressed in the application except where the applicant has shown that a 
modification is consistent with the purposes as set out in EC 9.8300 Purpose 
of Planned Unit Development.]  

(128) For any PUD located within or partially within the boundaries of the South Hills 
Study, the following additional approval criteria apply: 
(a) [No development shall occur on land above an elevation of 900 feet 

except that one dwelling may be built on any lot in existence as of 
August 1, 2001.] Development on any portion of the development 
site located above 900 feet elevation is limited by the following: 
1. The sum of all building area, measured using building 

footprints, shall not exceed 5,000 square feet on proposed 
new lots or parcels. 

2. Driveways shall not exceed 20 feet in width on proposed new 
lots or parcels.  

(b) Development on any portion of the development site located above 
900 feet elevation shall be setback at least 300 feet from the ridgeline 
unless there is a determination by the city manager that the area is not 
needed as a connection to the city’s ridgeline trail system. For purposes 

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 6CC Agenda - Page 97



Ordinance - Page 32 of 38 

of this section, the ridgeline [trail] shall be considered as the line 
indicated as being the urban growth boundary [within the South Hills 
Study plan area. 

(c) Development shall cluster buildings in an arrangement that results in at 
least 40% of the development site being retained in 3 or fewer 
contiguous common open space areas. For purposes of this section, the 
term contiguous open space means open space that is uninterrupted by 
buildings, structures, streets, or other improvements.]  

(dc) Residential density is limited as follows: 
1. In the area west of Friendly Street, the maximum level of new 

development per gross acre shall be 8 units per acre. 
2. In the area east of Friendly Street, the maximum level of new 

development per gross acre shall be limited to 5 units per acre. 
3. Housing developed as Controlled Income and Rent Housing shall 

be exempt from the density limitations in subsections 1 and 2 
above, but are subject to the other applicable development 
standards and review procedures. 

4. For any portion of the development site located above 900 
feet elevation, the maximum density shall be 2.5 units per 
gross acre, or one dwelling per legal lot in existence as of 
August 1, 2001, whichever is greater. This subsection does 
not preclude the addition of an accessory dwelling on any 
legal lot. 

 
 
Section 39.  Subsection (4) of Section 9.8360 of the Eugene Code, 1971, is deleted. 
 

9.8360 Planned Unit Development, Final Plan Application Requirements.  In addition to 
the provisions in EC 9.7010 Application Filing, the following specific requirements 
apply to PUD final plan applications: 

 * * *  
[(4) Public improvements as required by this land use code or as a condition of 

tentative plan approval have been completed, or:  
(a) A performance bond or suitable substitute as agreed upon by the city 

has been filed with the city finance officer in an amount sufficient to 
assure the completion of all required public improvements; or 

(b) A petition for public improvements and for the assessment of the real 
property for the improvements has been signed by the property owner 
seeking the subdivision, and the petition has been accepted by the city 
engineer.] 

 
 
Section 40.  Section 9.8365 of the Eugene Code, 1971, is amended to provide as follows: 
 

9.8365 Final Planned Unit Development Approval Criteria.  The planning director shall 
approve, approve with conditions, or deny a final PUD application, based on 
compliance with the following criteria:[.  Approval shall include a finding that the 
final PUD plan conforms with the approved tentative PUD plan and all conditions 
attached thereto.] 
(1) The final PUD plan conforms with the approved tentative PUD plan and 

all conditions attached thereto. 

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 6CC Agenda - Page 98



Ordinance - Page 33 of 38 

(2) For final PUDs not associated with a land division, public improvements 
as required by this land use code or as a condition of tentative plan 
approval will be completed prior to issuance of a development permit, 
or:  
(a) A performance bond or suitable substitute as agreed upon by the 

city has been filed with the city finance officer in an amount 
sufficient to assure the completion of all required public 
improvements; or 

(b) A petition for public improvements and for the assessment of the 
real property for the improvements has been signed by the 
property owner seeking the subdivision, and the petition has been 
accepted by the city engineer. 

 
 
Section 41.  The heading of Section 9.8440 of the Eugene Code, 1971, is amended to 

provide as follows: 

9.8440 Site Review Approval Criteria- General/Discretionary.  The planning director 
shall approve, conditionally approve, or deny the site review application.  Approval 
or conditional approval shall be based on compliance with the following criteria: 

 
 * * * 

 
 

Section 42.  Section 9.8445 of the Eugene Code, 1971, is amended to provide as follows: 

9.8445 Site Review Approval Criteria- [Needed] Housing/Clear and Objective.  Unless 
the applicant elects to use the discretionary criteria contained in EC 9.8440 
Site Review Approval Criteria- General/Discretionary, for housing applications 
entitled to clear and objective review pursuant to state statute, [T]the planning 
director shall approve, conditionally approve, or deny the site review application.  
[Unless the applicant elects to use the general criteria contained in EC 9.8440 Site 
Review Approval Criteria – General, where the applicant proposes needed housing, 
as defined by the State statutes, the planning director shall approve, or approve 
with conditions, a site review] based on compliance with the following criteria: 
(1) [The applicant has demonstrated that the proposed housing is needed 

housing as defined by state statutes.] The proposal complies with EC 
9.5860 Transition Standards.  

(2) For a proposal for multiple family developments, the proposal complies with 
the standards contained in EC 9.5500 Multiple Family Standards. 

(3) For areas not included on the city’s acknowledged Goal 5 inventory, the 
proposal will preserve existing natural resources by compliance with [all of the 
following: 
(a) The proposal complies with] The provisions of EC 9.6880 through EC 

9.6885 Tree Preservation and Removal Standards. 
 [(b) Natural resource areas designated on the comprehensive plan diagram 

as “Natural Resource” are protected.] 
(4) The proposal complies with all of the following [standards]: 

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 6CC Agenda - Page 99



Ordinance - Page 34 of 38 

(a) EC 9.2000 through [9.3980] EC 9.4170 regarding applicable lot 
dimensions and density requirements for the subject zone and any 
applicable overlay zones. 

(b) EC 9.6800 through EC 9.6875 Standards for Streets, Alleys, and 
Other Public Ways.  

(bc) EC 9.6500 through 9.6505 Public Improvement Standards.  
(cd) EC 9.6706 Development in Flood Plains through EC 9.6709 Special 

Flood Hazard Areas – Standards.  
(de) EC 9.6710(6) Geological and Geotechnical Analysis.  
(ef) EC 9.6730 Pedestrian Circulation On-Site.  
(fg) EC 9.6735 Public Access Required.  
(gh) EC 9.6750 Special Setback Standards.  
(hi) EC 9.6775 Underground Utilities.  
(ij) EC 9.6780 Vision Clearance Area.  
(jk)  EC 9.6791 through 9.6797 regarding stormwater flood control, quality, 

flow control for headwaters area, oil control, source control, easements, 
and operation and maintenance. 

(kl) All other applicable development standards for features explicitly 
included in the application. 

     An approved adjustment to a standard pursuant to the provisions beginning at 
EC 9.8015 of this land use code constitutes compliance with the standard. 

(5) Public improvements as required by this land use code or as a condition of 
[tentative plan] approval will be [have been] completed prior to issuance of 
a development permit, or:  
(a) A performance bond or suitable substitute as agreed upon by the city 

has been filed with the city finance officer in an amount sufficient to 
assure the completion of all required public improvements; or 

(b) A petition for public improvements and for the assessment of the real 
property for the improvements has been signed by the property owner 
seeking the subdivision, and the petition has been accepted by the city 
engineer. 

(6) If the standards addressed under EC 9.8445(4) require a public street, or 
if the applicant proposes the creation of a public street, the proposal will 
provide pedestrian and bicycle circulation to adjacent residential areas, 
transit stops, neighborhood activity centers, parks, schools, commercial 
centers, office parks, and industrial parks located within ¼ mile radius of 
the development site, provided the city makes findings to demonstrate 
consistency with constitutional requirements. 

 
 
Section 43.  Section 9.8505 of the Eugene Code, 1971, is amended to provide as follows: 
 

9.8505 Applicability of Subdivision, Tentative Plan Applications.   
Requests to create 4 or more lots shall be subject to the subdivision provisions of 
this land use code under a Type II application process, except as provided for 
concurrent applications in EC 9.8005.  
(1) A tentative plan application to subdivide[sion] land may be submitted and 

reviewed concurrently with a [application that also involves a PUD request 
may not be submitted until a decision on the] tentative PUD application 
following a Type III application procedure [approval is final].  If a 
subdivision application that also involves a PUD application is not 

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 6CC Agenda - Page 100



Ordinance - Page 35 of 38 

submitted concurrently with a tentative PUD application, the subdivision 
application may not be submitted until a tentative PUD application is 
approved. (Refer to EC 9.8305 Applicability.)   

(2) If a subdivision tentative plan application is not reviewed concurrently 
with a tentative PUD application, [N]no development permit shall be issued 
by the city prior to approval of the tentative subdivision [tentative plan] 
application. If subdivision tentative plan application is reviewed 
concurrently with a tentative PUD application, no development permit 
shall be issued by the city prior to approval of the final PUD application 
in accordance with EC 9.8305. 

 
 
Section 44.  Subsection (5) of Section 9.8510 of the Eugene Code, 1971, is amended to 

provide as follows: 

9.8510 Subdivision, Tentative Plan Application Requirements.  In addition to the 
provisions in EC 9.7010 Application Filing, the following specific requirements shall 
apply to tentative subdivision plan applications: 

 * * * 
(5) If the proposal includes [needed housing, as defined by State statutes] 

housing, the written statement submitted with the subdivision application shall 
clearly state whether the applicant is electing to use the [general] 
discretionary approval criteria in EC 9.8515 Subdivision, Tentative Plan 
Approval Criteria- General/Discretionary instead of the approval criteria 
found in EC 9.8520 Subdivision, Tentative Plan Approval Criteria- [Needed] 
Housing/Clear and Objective. 

 
 
Section 45.  Subsection (2) of Section 9.8515 of the Eugene Code, 1971, is amended to 

provide as follows: 

9.8515 Subdivision, Tentative Plan Approval Criteria – General/Discretionary.  The 
planning director shall approve, approve with conditions, or deny a proposed 
subdivision.  Approval, or approval with conditions shall be based on compliance 
with the following criteria:  

 * * * 
(2) Approval does not impede the future best use of the remainder of the property 

under the same ownership or adversely affect the development of the 
remainder or any adjoining land or access thereto, based on the provisions of 
this land use code.  For subdivisions involving phasing, it shall be 
demonstrated that each sequential phase will maintain consistency with the 
provisions of EC 9.8515 Tentative Subdivision Approval Criteria – 
General/Discretionary. 

 
* * * 

 
 
 
 

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 6CC Agenda - Page 101



Ordinance - Page 36 of 38 

Section 46.  Section 9.8520 of the Eugene Code, 1971, is amended to provide as follows: 

9.8520 Subdivision, Tentative Plan Approval Criteria – [Needed] Housing/Clear and 
Objective. Unless the applicant elects to use the discretionary criteria 
contained in EC 9.8515 Subdivision, Tentative Plan Approval Criteria- 
General/Discretionary, for housing applications entitled to clear and objective 
review pursuant to state statute, [T]the planning director shall approve, 
conditionally approve, or deny the subdivision application.  [Unless the applicant 
elects to use the general criteria contained in EC 9.8515 Subdivision, Tentative Plan 
Approval Criteria-General, where the applicant proposes needed housing, as 
defined by the State statutes, the planning director shall approve or approve with 
conditions a subdivision] based on compliance with the following criteria: 
[(1) The applicant has demonstrated that the proposed housing is needed housing 

as defined by State statutes.] 
(21) The proposed land uses and densities are consistent with the land use

designation(s) shown on the comprehensive plan diagram, as refined in any
applicable refinement plan.

(32) The proposed subdivision complies with all of the following, unless specifically
exempt from compliance through a code provision applicable to a special area
zone or overlay zone:
(a) EC 9.2000 through [9.3980] EC 9.4170 regarding applicable lot

dimensions and density requirements for the subject zone and any
applicable overlay zones.  Within the /WR Water Resources
Conservation Overlay Zone or /WQ Water Quality Overlay Zone, no
new lot may be created if more than 33% of the lot, as created, would
be occupied by either:
1. The combined area of the /WR conservation setback and any

portion of the Goal 5 Water Resource Site that extends landward
beyond the conservation setback; or

2. The /WQ Management Area.
(b) EC 9.6800 through EC 9.6875 Standards for Streets, Alleys, and Other

Public Ways.
(c) EC 9.6500 through EC 9.6505 Public Improvement Standards.
(d) EC 9.6706 Development in Flood Plains through EC 9.6709 Special

Flood Hazard Areas – Standards.
(e) EC 9.6710(6) Geological and Geotechnical Analysis.
(f) EC 9.6730 Pedestrian Circulation On-Site.
(g) EC 9.6735 Public Access Required.
(h) EC 9.6750 Special Setback Standards.
(i) EC 9.6775 Underground Utilities.
(j) EC 9.6780 Vision Clearance Area.
(k) EC 9.6791 through 9.6797 regarding stormwater flood control, quality,

flow control for headwaters area, oil control, source control, easements,
and operation and maintenance.

An approved adjustment to a standard pursuant to the provisions beginning at 
EC 9.8015 of this land use code constitutes compliance with the standard. 

(43) The proposed subdivision will not cause any existing improvements on
proposed lots to be inconsistent with applicable standards in this land use
code.

[(5) There shall be no proposed grading on portions of the development site that 
meet or exceed 20% slope.] 

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 6CC Agenda - Page 102



Ordinance - Page 37 of 38 

(64) The proposed subdivision provides [safe and adequate transportation systems
through compliance with the following:] for the
[(a) P] provision of pedestrian, bicycle and transit circulation among buildings

located within the development site, as well as to adjacent and nearby 
residential areas, transit stops, neighborhood activity centers, office 
parks, and industrial parks, provided the city makes findings to 
demonstrate consistency with constitutional requirements.  “Nearby” 
means uses within 1/4 mile that can reasonably be expected to be used 
by pedestrians, and uses within 2 miles that can reasonably be expected 
to be used by bicyclists.   

[(b) The street layout of the proposed subdivision shall disperse motor 
vehicle traffic onto more than one public local street when the 
subdivision exceeds 19 lots or when the sum of proposed subdivision 
lots and the existing lots utilizing a local street as the single means of 
ingress and egress exceeds 19.] 

(75) For areas not included on the city’s acknowledged Goal 5 inventory, the
subdivision will preserve existing natural resources by compliance with [all of
the following:
(a) The proposal complies with] the provisions of EC 9.6880 through EC

9.6885 Tree Preservation and Removal Standards.
[(b) Natural resource areas designated on the comprehensive plan diagram 

as “Natural Resource.”] 
(86) On R-1 zoned property, if the subdivision results in a lot greater than 13,500

square feet in size based on EC 9.2761(5)(b), the application shall indicate the
location of lot lines and other details of layout that show future division may be
made without violating the requirements of this land use code and without
interfering with the orderly extension of adjacent streets, bicycle paths, and
accessways. Any restriction of buildings within future street, bicycle path, and
accessway locations shall be made a matter of record in the tentative plan
approval.

(97) The subdivision complies with development standards explicitly addressed in
the application or is granted adjustments thereto pursuant to the provisions
beginning at EC 9.8015 of this land use code.

(108) Where all or a portion of a development site is within the South Hills Study and
above 700 feet in elevation, the proposed development shall have received
initial approval through the Planned Unit Development process. Where all or a
portion of the development site is within the South Hills Study and is between
500 feet and 701 feet, and the development site is at least 4 acres with areas
of the development site containing slopes that exceed 20%, the proposal shall
have received initial approval through the Planned Unit Development process.

Section 47.  The zip file on the flash drive attached as Exhibit B-1 to this Ordinance, 

which contains data identifying the location areas of moderate and high landslide susceptibility, 

is hereby adopted as the City’s official Eugene Landslide Hazard Map.  The PDFs on the flash 

drive attached as Exhibit B-1 to this Ordinance depicting areas of moderate and high landslide 

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 6CC Agenda - Page 103



Ordinance - Page 38 of 38 

susceptibility are for illustrative purposes only. The printed map attached to this Ordinance as 

Exhibit B-2 is also for illustrative purposes only. 

Section 48.  The findings set forth in Exhibit C attached to this Ordinance are adopted as 

findings in support of this Ordinance. 

Section 49.  The City Recorder, at the request of, or with the concurrence of the City 

Attorney, is authorized to administratively correct any reference errors contained herein or in 

other provisions of the Eugene Code, 1971, to the provisions added, amended or repealed 

herein. 

Section 50.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion of this 

Ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, 

such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct and independent provision and such holding 

shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions hereof. 

Section 51.  This Ordinance shall take effect pursuant to Section 32 of the Eugene Charter 

2002, or on the date of its acknowledgement as provided in ORS 197.625, whichever is later. 

Passed by the City Council this  Approved by the Mayor this 

___ day of _______________, 2021 ____ day of _______________, 2021 

____________________________  _____________________________ 
City Recorder Mayor 

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 6CC Agenda - Page 104



Exhibit A 

{00374872;1}

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 6CC Agenda - Page 105



Exhibit B-1 

Placeholder for 

Flash Drive / Eugene Landslide Hazard Map 

Link to the datasets online: https://mapping.eugene-or.gov/datasets/eugene-landslide-hazard 

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 6CC Agenda - Page 106

https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fmapping.eugene-or.gov%2Fdatasets%2Feugene-landslide-hazard&data=04%7C01%7CCCunningham%40eugene-or.gov%7C8ced791671a7492cbb4d08d8d4733f8a%7C0c0d3453aa1d41bc8aa35c843d4ca0e8%7C0%7C0%7C637492938748699951%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=t1YyYW1FQxUpID5Ub1FUAbRBy%2BqnPxI3aci3EKg8Ckw%3D&reserved=0


Exhibit B-2 

Exhibit B-2

Eugene Landslide Hazard Map

HT

3 a
Irvington Dr

4

MM™
1i

I .$d
AirpO*

s>.

" %
%Irving Rd

5,

J
YJ

Randy Pape Belt//'ne

£H Y*Crescent Ave

\oMaxwell Rd

1

1 iiwHBarger Dr Beltline Rd

a 00

.5
ro1: =8 Hi

% o
Cal Young Rd $

vo.
o aj

y)

O <£"

X 03

(J?£ fi>

$a | Royal Av< %"V, laA0* Rd 5
ib. S1 o

I
0)
CD% <3*a

5® CodntryC/^
2

-a o

o £

1%
"S £

? A

<3.
1-105

(J I

% Z WCente^aXBIVdMartin Luther

1 , Br- '
IT AW 6th Ave

W 7th Ave

JCMBI ' 17 J
/II-,

£
Jo

W 11th Ave I
II. m

0)

f) So So
= S "EJ I W 13th Ave

Franklin ®wd
c, ASt

I
t/3

s I f

i 8 1":::;
aL

\
r-.5

JoW 1 8th Ave

f|

JMs

!lliiR,n
i

£
i~

Hi'IT-
'S03

1 03 CD

v5rane^vy |

\ E 30th Ave

°cs
»»

2
i |

5HI

j'llPi
'!SiJ

it-:-S

sa

l

Mile

Taxlots

Eugene UGB

Deep Landslide Susceptibility - Relative Risk

Moderate

High

This map is intended for illustrative purposes, and is not suitable for legal,

surveying, or engineering purposes. ^8^
Map created October 2020 by City of Eugene Planning Division.

•TiSource: IMS-60, Landslide hazard and risk study of Eugene-Springfield

and Lane County, Oregon, DOGAMI

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 6CC Agenda - Page 107



Exhibit C 

Page 1 of 19 

Findings 

Clear & Objective 
(City File CA 20-4) 

Overview 
As part of the Envision Eugene urban growth boundary (UGB) process the Eugene City Council 
initiated several projects related to housing. This Clear and Objective Housing Approval Criteria 
Update is one of those projects and is intended to update and improve the City’s regulations 
related to housing. Currently, the City offers two paths to approval for land use applications 
involving housing. One track, referred to in the amendment as the Clear and Objective Track 
includes only clear and objective standards, conditions and procedures. The second approval track, 
called the Discretionary Track, includes approval criteria that are subjective in nature offering a 
discretionary option for applicants seeking greater flexibility.  Applicants proposing housing are 
entitled to proceed under the Clear and Objective Track but have the option to proceed under the 
Discretionary Track. 

Findings 
Eugene Code Section 9.8065 sets out the following approval criteria (in bold italics) for a land 
use a code amendment: 

(1) The amendment is consistent with applicable statewide planning goals adopted by the
Land Conservation and Development Commission.

Goal 1 - Citizen Involvement.  To develop a citizen involvement program that insures the 
opportunity for citizens to be involved in all phases of the planning process.   

The City has acknowledged provisions for community involvement which ensure the 
opportunity for citizens to be involved in all phases of the planning process and which set out 
the requirements for such involvement.  The land use code amendments do not amend the 
City’s citizen involvement program.  The process for adopting these amendments complies with 
Goal 1 because it is consistent with the City’s acknowledged citizen involvement provisions.   

In addition to meeting the minimum requirements for compliance with Goal 1, significant public 
involvement occurred prior to the formal adoption process. As part of Phase 1 outreach, prior 
to the formal adoption process, staff reached out to stakeholders to solicit input on identifying 
key issues to be addressed within the scope of the Clear & Objective Housing Approval Criteria 
Update. Outreach included listening sessions, focus group sessions, phone calls, and in-person 
follow-up sessions. Staff hosted focus group sessions on June 11 and 12, 2018, to gather 
stakeholder observations regarding residential development and to solicit specific input on how 
the City’s current clear and objective criteria are working. Over 50 stakeholders were invited to 
participate and 24 people representing neighborhood associations and residents, housing 
builders and developers, design professionals, housing advocates and affordable housing 

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 6CC Agenda - Page 108



Exhibit C 

Page 2 of 19 

providers attended the sessions. All stakeholders, including those who were not able to attend 
a session, were invited to submit written comments over a three-week period.  

As part of Phase 2 outreach, staff held a series of four working group meetings to engage 
stakeholders in discussions related to significant key issues identified during Phase 1. Over the 
course of Phase 2, the interested parties list grew to over 80 members. Meeting invites and 
reminders were sent to all interested parties. In addition, an outreach flyer was provided to 
various City committees such as the Housing Policy Board, the Sustainability Commission, the 
Historic Review Board, and the Active Transportation Committee.  Project updates were 
included monthly in the Envision Eugene e-newsletter that reaches over 1,500 community 
members. Over 40 stakeholders representing neighborhood associations and residents, housing 
builders and developers, design professionals, housing advocates, and affordable housing 
providers attended some or all of the working group meetings. 

This project was designed to be accessible to everyone. Meeting videos and materials along 
with online surveys were provided on the project website so that anyone wanting to participate 
had access to the materials. City staff also offered four two-hour drop-in “office hour” sessions 
for anyone with questions about the project, the land use process, or the issues and possible 
concepts discussed at the working groups. 

During Phase 3, the draft code writing phase, interested parties had opportunities to provide 
comment on draft code amendments. Their feedback helped to drive refinements processed 
through multiple Planning Commission and City Council work sessions.    

Finally, a Notice of Proposed Amendment was filed with the Oregon Department of Land 
Conservation and Development on September 18, 2020.  A public hearing was held before the 
Planning Commission on October 20, 2020.  Consistent with land use code requirements, the 
Planning Commission public hearing on the proposal was duly noticed to all neighborhood 
organizations in Eugene, as well as community groups and individuals who requested notice.  In 
addition, notice of the public hearing was published in the Register Guard.  Information 
concerning the amendments, including the dates of the public hearings, was posted on the City 
of Eugene website. 

These processes afforded ample opportunity for citizen involvement consistent with Goal 1. 
Therefore, the ordinance is consistent with Statewide Planning Goal 1. 

Goal 2 - Land Use Planning.  To establish a land use planning process and policy framework as a 
basis for all decisions and actions related to use of land and to assure an adequate factual basis 
for such decisions and actions.    

Eugene’s land use code specifies the formal adoption procedure and approval criteria that were 
used in considering these amendments.  The record shows that there is an adequate factual 
basis for the amendments.  The Goal 2 coordination requirement is met when the City engages 
in an exchange, or invites such an exchange, between the City and any affected governmental 

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 6CC Agenda - Page 109



Exhibit C 

Page 3 of 19 

unit and when the City uses the information obtained in the exchange to balance the needs of 
citizens.   

To comply with the Goal 2 coordination requirement, the City engaged in an exchange about 
the subject of these amendments with affected governmental units.  Specifically, the City 
provided notice of the proposed action and opportunity to comment to the Oregon 
Department of Land Conservation and Development, as well as to Lane County and the City of 
Springfield.  There are no exceptions to Statewide Planning Goal 2 required for these 
amendments.  Therefore, the amendments are consistent with Statewide Planning Goal 2. 

Goal 3 - Agricultural Lands.  To preserve and maintain agricultural lands. 

The amendments will affect properties located within the City of Eugene and do not affect any 
lands designated by the comprehensive plan for agricultural use.  To the extent that there are 
properties within the City currently zoned for agricultural use the proposed amendments do 
not force a discontinuance of agricultural practices. As the amendments are intended to reduce 
barriers to construction of housing within the City they may reduce the need to expand the 
City’s urban growth boundary in a way that impacts agricultural land in the future. The 
amendments are consistent with Statewide Planning Goal 3. 

Goal 4 - Forest Lands.  To conserve forest lands. 

The amendments will affect properties located within the City of Eugene and do not affect any 
lands designated by the comprehensive plan for forest use.  Therefore, Statewide Planning Goal 
4 does not apply. To the extent that the amendments may have an indirect impact on forest 
lands, they are consistent with Statewide Planning Goal 4 because they remove barriers to 
building housing on land within the city, potentially reducing the need to expand the City’s 
urban growth boundary in the future.  

Goal 5 - Natural Resources, Scenic and Historic Areas, and Open Spaces. To conserve open space 
and protect natural and scenic resources. 

OAR 660-023-0250(3) provides:  Local governments are not required to apply Goal 5 in 
consideration of a PAPA unless the PAPA affects a Goal 5 resource. For purposes of this section, 
a PAPA would affect a Goal 5 resource only if: 
(a) The PAPA creates or amends a resource list or a portion of an acknowledged plan or land

use regulation adopted in order to protect a significant Goal 5 resource or to address
specific requirements of Goal 5;

(b) The PAPA allows new uses that could be conflicting uses with a particular significant
Goal 5 resource site on an acknowledged resource list; or

(c) The PAPA amends an acknowledged UGB and factual information is submitted
demonstrating that a resource site, or the impact areas of such a site, is included in the
amended UGB area.

These amendments do not create or amend the City’s list of Goal 5 resources, do not amend a 

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 6CC Agenda - Page 110



Exhibit C 

Page 4 of 19 

code provision adopted in order to protect a significant Goal 5 resource or to address specific 
requirements of Goal 5, do not allow new uses that could be conflicting uses with a significant 
Goal 5 resource site and do not amend the acknowledged urban growth boundary.  Therefore, 
the proposed amendments are consistent with Statewide Planning Goal. 

Goal 6 - Air, Water and Land Resource Quality.  To maintain and improve the quality of the air, 
water and land resources of the state. 

Goal 6 addresses waste and process discharges from development, and is aimed at protecting 
air, water and land from impacts from those discharges.  The amendments do not affect the 
City’s ability to provide for clean air, water or land resources.  Therefore, the amendments are 
consistent with Statewide Planning Goal 6. 

Goal 7 - Areas Subject to Natural Disasters and Hazards.  To protect life and property from 
natural disasters and hazards. 

Goal 7 requires that local government planning programs include provisions to protect people 
and property from natural hazards such as floods, landslides, earthquakes and related hazards, 
tsunamis, and wildfires.  The amendments update the requirements of EC 9.6710 Geological 
and Geotechnical Analysis for applicants proposing housing. The amendments require 
consideration of the Eugene Landslide Hazard Map by a design professional as a part of the 
development of a housing project. To the extent that the amendments add additional 
requirements for development and set more specific standards for required geological and 
geotechnical analyses, these updates are consistent with Goal 7. The amendments are 
consistent with Goal 7.  

Goal 8 - Recreational Needs. To satisfy the recreational needs of the citizens of the state and 
visitors and, where appropriate, to provide for the siting of necessary recreational facilities 
including destination resorts. 

Goal 8 ensures that recreational facilities are provided to Oregon citizens and is primarily 
concerned with the provision of recreational facilities in non-urban areas of the state.  The 
amendments do not affect the City’s provisions for or citizen’s access to recreation areas, 
facilities, or recreational opportunities. To the extent that the amendments can be related to 
this goal, EC 9.8325(9 now 7) sets a requirement for Planned Unit Developments (PUD’s) to be 
near public parks, recreation facilities, or provide common open space that can be provided. 
This requirement provides support for Goal 8 as PUD’s are often larger scale developments that 
provide housing for a large number of people. By requiring the development occur near an 
existing recreation space, or providing common open space the criterion helps to support City 
efforts to provide recreation space. Therefore, the proposed amendments are consistent with 
Statewide Planning Goal 8.  

Goal 9 - Economic Development.  To provide adequate opportunities throughout the state for a 
variety of economic activities vital to the health, welfare, and prosperity of Oregon’s citizens.    

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 6CC Agenda - Page 111



Exhibit C 

Page 5 of 19 

Goal 9 requires cities to evaluate the supply and demand of commercial land relative to 
community economic objectives.  The amendments do not impact the supply of industrial or 
commercial lands.  Therefore, the amendments are consistent with Statewide Planning Goal 9. 

Goal 10 - Housing.  To provide for the housing needs of citizens of the state. 

Goal 10 requires the City to provide an adequate supply of buildable land to accommodate the 
City’s estimated housing needs for a 20-year planning period. The Envision Eugene Residential 
Land Supply Study (2017) includes an inventory of buildable lands for residential use.  The 
Envision Eugene Residential Land Supply Study was adopted by the City of Eugene as a 
refinement of the Envision Eugene Comprehensive Plan and complies with the requirements of 
Goal 10 and the corresponding Administrative Rule.  

In order to calculate the residential development capacity in Eugene, the Envision Eugene 
Residential Land Supply Study estimated the capacity of Eugene’s residential land supply to 
accommodate new housing units by converting the land supply into a number of potential 
dwelling units. This “capacity analysis,” allowed the City to account for the differing 
development capacity of different areas within its urban growth boundary. 

Factors such as elevation, slope, and parcel size can affect the capacity of Eugene’s land supply 
to accommodate new units of housing. The capacity analysis uses different density assumptions 
for land depending on its land use designation (LDR, MDR, or HDR), elevation (below or above 
900’), slope (less than or more than 5%), and lot size (acres located on lots of less than 1 acre, 
1-5 acres, or 5 or more acres).  Due in part to the land use regulations in effect at the time the
capacity analysis was conducted, the analysis assumed lower densities on sloped parcels and
parcels located above 900 feet in elevation.  Additionally, the capacity analysis made
assumptions about future development density based on historic development trends which
were influenced by existing land use regulations.

The analysis to arrive at assumptions about the capacity of the residential land took into 
account constraints that could limit residential development on residential land. The allocation 
of housing types to each plan designation and the density assumptions used are derived from 
the housing type allocations and densities actually seen in these plan designations during the 
development review period. 

Part V of the Residential Land Supply Study is the City’s final Residential Buildable Lands 
Inventory for the 2012-2032 planning period. That Inventory includes maps which demonstrate 
there is sufficient buildable land designated on the Metro Plan Diagram to satisfy the housing 
needs for the planning period.  

The proposed land use code amendments do not alter or amend the City’s adopted Envision 
Eugene Residential Lands Supply Study.  The amendments are simply intended to increase the 
efficiency, effectiveness, and clarity of the City’s clear and objective land use standards. 
However, one potential outcome of the amendments is a net-positive impact on the supply of 
residential land available for housing.  The amendments remove or modify several clear and 

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 6CC Agenda - Page 112



Exhibit C 

Page 6 of 19 

objective standards that currently constrain development of housing, such as: removal of the 
requirement for a 30 foot buffer along the perimeter of a PUD site; removal of the prohibition 
on grading on slopes of 20% or greater; removal of a 40% open space requirement for PUDs 
and substitution of  an open space requirement that is only triggered when open space is not 
available within a half mile of the development and is scalable based on the size of the site; 
modification of a 300 foot setback for PUDs from the ridgeline in the City’s south hills so that 
the setback only applies to areas above 900 feet in elevation; and modification of the tentative 
PUD criterion that prohibited most housing above 901 feet in elevation to allow 2.5 dwelling 
units per gross acre or one dwelling per legal lot in existence as of August 1, 2001, whichever is 
greater. These amendments will increase the land area available for housing when proposals 
are reviewed under clear and objective standards and are therefore consistent with Goal 10. 
Applicants wishing to create higher density developments also have the option to proceed 
under the City’s alternative discretionary review tracks (currently called the General tracks), 
which may allow greater flexibility to achieve that goal.   

The amendments also add required transition standards and modify existing tree preservation 
standards.  While both the transition standards and tree preservation standards could impact 
the area available for development on a specific site, both sets of standards provide developers 
with several compliance pathways that allow for substantial flexibility in design of a project, 
including the ability to choose a compliance pathway that will prioritize density of 
development.  A more detailed analysis of the new transition standards and tree preservation 
criteria is provided below.   

EC 9.5860 Transition Standards for Housing/Clear and Objective Applications is a new set of 
standards that will apply to Conditional Use Permits (CUP’s), tentative Planned Unit 
Developments (PUD’s), and Site Reviews (SR’s) reviewed under clear and objective standards. 
The intent of the transition standards is to create a buffer between areas zoned for lower 
density residential use and higher density uses such as multi-family development, and housing 
coupled with services, such as assisted care.  

The proposed transition standards provide developers with four different transition options: 1) 
building height limitation plus a fence or landscaping; 2) a sloped interior yard setback plus a 
fence and trees/landscaping; 3) a 30 foot setback with trees; or 4) a setback of 50 feet or 
setback equal to the tallest building on the site, whichever is less.  The setback areas may be 
used as open space, vehicle use area, pedestrian circulation, bicycle parking, stormwater quality 
facilities or landscaping.  These options allow configuration of developments subject to the 
transition standards in many different ways to provide for flexibility in design and various 
densities of development.  The proposed transition standards do not, on their face, reduce land 
available for development.  In other words, although individual sites or designs might be 
constrained by the new transition standards, the transition standards themselves are minimal 
enough and flexible enough that they do not reduce the City’s residential land capacity. 

The amendments also update the tree preservation and removal standards at EC 9.6885 Tree 
Preservation and Removal Standards to allow for more options for demonstrating compliance 
while adding clarity to the standards. The updated standards include exemptions from tree 

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 6CC Agenda - Page 113



Exhibit C 

Page 7 of 19 

preservation requirements for smaller sites located below 900 feet in elevation, sites with 
fewer than 5 trees, and sites zoned for higher density residential development. By creating the 
exemptions and thresholds, the proposed amendments avoid impacting small sites where it 
may not be as feasible to meet the standards, which could ultimately reduce the buildable area 
of smaller lots. By scaling the degree to which a project must consider trees, the updated 
standards maintain consistency with Statewide Planning Goal 10.  
 
The updated tree standards require preservation based on the Diameter Breast Height (d.b.h.) 
of existing trees on a given site and the location of the site. Higher minimum preservation is 
required in areas where adopted City plans and polices, such as the South Hills Study, recognize 
the significance of natural views. Previously, EC 9.8325(12) (now EC 9.8325(10)) included a 
requirement to cluster buildings to retain 40% of a given development site as common open 
space for developments within the South Hills Study area. As discussed above, the 40% open 
space requirement is being removed, which results in additional land available for the 
development of housing. To balance the potential impacts of allowing development on larger 
portions of sites within the South Hills Study area, the requirements for tree preservation are 
higher within the area.   
 
The new tree standards provide two pathways to approval, the first requires a complete 
inventory of existing significant trees on a site and allows for removal, preservation or 
mitigation (replanting) of trees based on the location of the site. The second pathway allows an 
applicant to preserve 50 percent of the total existing d.b.h. within specified tree preservation 
areas. In the event an applicant has a site with a particularly dense stand of trees and neither 
option is workable based on their proposal, the new tree standards also allow for adjustment. 
Although individual sites or development plans may be constrained by the new clear and 
objective tree preservation and removal standards, the standards themselves are flexible 
enough that they do not reduce the City’s residential land capacity.  
 
Because the new transition standards and tree preservation and removal standards are clear 
and objective, they must address in a “one-size-fits-all” way the city's legitimate regulatory 
interests in public health and safety, as applied to many different properties, each of which may 
have topographic or other challenges to development. Consequently, in order to gain approval 
of a particular development proposal on a particular property under clear and objective 
standards, a developer may be left with less developable property on that site. However, that 
does not mean that the new standards diminish the City’s residential land capacity.  In order to 
maximize density of a particular development, a developer may need to modify their 
development proposal to take advantage of the flexibility inherent in the transition and tree 
preservation and removal standards, or instead, choose to proceed under the 
General/Discretionary track.   The new transition and tree preservation and removal standards 
both provide various pathways to approval to allow a housing developer to prioritize density of 
housing on a site.  Further, the transition and tree preservation and removal standards do not 
preclude a developer from choosing to proceed under the even more flexible discretionary 
development standards.  Therefore, the new transition standards and new tree preservation 
and removal standards are consistent with Goal 10. 
 

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 6CC Agenda - Page 114



Exhibit C 

Page 8 of 19 

For all the reasons discussed above, the amendments are consistent with Statewide Planning 
Goal 10.  
   
Goal 11- Public Facilities and Services. To plan and develop a timely, orderly and efficient 
arrangement of public facilities and services to serve as a framework for urban and rural 
development. 
  
The amendments do not affect the City’s provision of public facilities and services.  Therefore, 
Statewide Planning Goal 11 does not apply. 
 
 
Goal 12- Transportation. To provide and encourage a safe, convenient and economic 
transportation system. 
 
The Transportation Planning Rule (OAR 660-012-0060) contains the following requirement: 
 

(1)  If an amendment to a functional plan, an acknowledged comprehensive plan, or a land 
use regulation (including a zoning map) would significantly affect an existing or planned 
transportation facility, then the local government must put in place measures as 
provided in section (2) of this rule, unless the amendment is allowed under section (3), 
(9) or (10) of this rule. A plan or land use regulation amendment significantly affects a 
transportation facility if it would: 

  (a)  Change the functional classification of an existing or planned transportation 
facility (exclusive of correction of map errors in an adopted plan); 

  (b)  Change standards implementing a functional classification system; or 
  (c)  Result in any of the effects listed in paragraphs (A) through (C) of this subsection 

based on projected conditions measured at the end of the planning period 
identified in the adopted TSP. As part of evaluating projected conditions, the 
amount of traffic projected to be generated within the area of the amendment 
may be reduced if the amendment includes an enforceable, ongoing requirement 
that would demonstrably limit traffic generation, including, but not limited to, 
transportation demand management. This reduction may diminish or completely 
eliminate the significant effect of the amendment. 

   (A)  Types or levels of travel or access that are inconsistent with the functional 
classification of an existing or planned transportation facility; 

   (B)  Degrade the performance of an existing or planned transportation facility 
such that it would not meet the performance standards identified in the 
TSP or comprehensive plan; or 

   (C)  Degrade the performance of an existing or planned transportation facility 
that is otherwise projected to not meet the performance standards 
identified in the TSP or comprehensive plan. 

 
The amendments do not change the functional classification of a transportation facility, change 
the standards implementing a functional classification system or degrade the performance of a 
facility otherwise projected to not meet performance standards.  Therefore, the amendments 

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 6CC Agenda - Page 115



Exhibit C 

Page 9 of 19 

do not have a significant effect under OAR 660-012-0060(1)(c)(A), (B) or (C).  As such, the 
amendments do not significantly affect any existing or future transportation facilities.  Based on 
the above findings, the amendment is consistent with Statewide Planning Goal 12. 

Goal 13 - Energy Conservation.  To conserve energy. 

Goal 13 provides guidance on the management of land and land uses to maximize the 
conservation of energy. Goal 13 provides implementation direction focused on lot sizes, 
building heights, density of housing, compatibility, and availability of light, wind, and air. The 
amendments add a new approval criterion, EC 9.5860 Transition Standards for Housing/Clear 
and Objective Applications which includes options that require an applicant to use setbacks or 
reduce proposed building heights when property zoned for a lower density zoning is adjacent to 
a development site.  Alternatively, the amendments allow an applicant to provide additional 
open space and landscaping to mitigate the impact of development. The transition standards 
align with the intent of Goal 13 by increasing open space and reducing building height. Because 
the amendments increase compatibility between land use activities, and allow for the 
movement of light, wind, and air the amendments are consistent with Goal 13.  

Goal 14 - Urbanization.  To provide for an orderly and efficient transition from rural to urban 
land use, to accommodate urban population and urban employment inside urban growth 
boundaries, to ensure efficient use of land, and to provide for livable communities.    

The amendments do not affect the City’s provisions regarding the transition of land from rural 
to urban uses.  Therefore, the amendments are consistent with Statewide Planning Goal 14. 

Goal 15 - Willamette River Greenway.  To protect, conserve, enhance and maintain the natural, 
scenic, historical, agricultural, economic and recreational qualities of lands along the Willamette 
River as the Willamette River Greenway. 

The amendments do not contain any changes to the City’s Willamette River Greenway 
regulations; therefore, the amendments are consistent with Statewide Planning Goal 15. 

Goal 16 through 19 - Estuarine Resources, Coastal Shorelands, Beaches and Dunes, and Ocean 
Resources. 

There are no coastal, ocean, estuarine, or beach and dune resources related to the property 
effected by these amendments.  Therefore, these goals are not relevant, and the amendments 
will not affect compliance with Statewide Planning Goals 16 through 19. 

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 6CC Agenda - Page 116



Exhibit C 

Page 10 of 19 

Findings 
Adopted Area Plans 

Clear & Objective 
(City File CA 20-4) 

Applicable Metro Plan Policies 
The following policies from the Metro Plan (identified below in italics) appear applicable to this 
amendment.  To the extent that the following policies constitute mandatory approval criteria, 
based on the findings provided below, the amendments are consistent with the applicable 
provisions of the Metro Plan.  

Residential Land Use and Housing Element 

A.11 Promote higher residential density inside the UGB that utilizes existing
infrastructure, improves the efficiency of public services and facilities, and 
conserves rural resource lands outside the UGB. 

A.12  Coordinate higher density residential development with the provision of
adequate infrastructure and services, open space, and other urban amenities. 

The above policies are consistent with the proposed amendments.  The proposed amendments will increase the 
efficiency, effectiveness and clarity of the City’s clear and objective standards, creating an even more 
straightforward path to the development of housing, which should incentivize higher residential density and more 
affordable residential development within the City.  In addition, the updates to EC 9.8325(7) (previously EC 
9.8325(9)), refine the requirement for PUD’s to locate dwellings within ¼ mile of recreation areas or provide an 
acre of open space for residents. For larger developments, or those located near existing recreation or open space 
areas meeting this requirement was feasible. In the case of smaller developments, located away from existing 
recreation areas the criterion created potential development barriers. The proposed changes set an applicability 
threshold of two acres for development sites, which opens up development potential for small infill sites. 
Additionally, the update provides two options for compliance which creates flexibility for a developer based on the 
unique nature of a given site. Taken together, the threshold and options have the cumulative effective of providing 
more options for development and is consistent with the intent of the policies above.   

A.13  Increase overall residential density in the metropolitan area by creating more
opportunities for effectively designed in-fill, redevelopment, and mixed use while 
considering impacts of increased residential density on historic, existing and 
future neighborhoods. 

A. 14 Review local zoning and development regulations periodically to remove barriers
to higher density housing and to make provision for a full range of housing 
options. 

A.17 Provide opportunities for a full range of choice in housing type, density, size, cost
and location. 

A.18 Encourage a mix of structure types and densities within residential designations
by reviewing and, if necessary, amending local zoning and development 
regulations. 

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 6CC Agenda - Page 117



Exhibit C 

Page 11 of 19 

A.23  Reduce impacts of higher density residential and mixed-use development on 
surrounding uses by considering site, landscape, and architectural design 
standards or guidelines in local zoning and development regulations.  

 
The above policies have the common themes of increasing density, variety and affordability in 
housing types, while considering impacts to existing developments. One of the main goals of 
the proposed amendments is to remove barriers to housing by reassessing the City’s clear and 
objective zoning regulations. The proposed amendments are intended to provide clarity and 
promote efficiency in development, which can open up the possibility for providing denser 
housing and/or a wider variety of housing types. To the extent that allowances will increase 
development, the impacts of that increased development are balanced with the addition of 
transition standards and updated tree preservation standards. A more detailed discussion of 
both standards can be found in the statements of compliance under Statewide Planning Goal 
10. Based on the balanced approach to making the process for approval under clear and 
objective standards more efficient and effective, the amendments are consistent with the 
policies above.   
 

A.24  Consider adopting or modifying local zoning and development regulations to 
provide a discretionary design review process or clear and objective design 
standards, in order to address issues of compatibility, aesthetics, open space, and 
other community concerns.  

 
The above policy directs the City to consider updating the code to address compatibility, 
aesthetics, open space, and other community concerns. The above policy provides support for 
the proposed addition of transition standards, and the proposed updates to tree preservation 
and removal standards. The proposed amendments address compatibility, aesthetics, open 
space and other community concerns raised during the scoping phase through clear and 
objective design standards and, therefore, are consistent with this policy.  

 
A.33  Consider local zoning and development regulations impact on the cost of 

housing.  
 
The proposed amendments open up potential for smaller in-fill sites by reducing barriers and 
creating opportunities for more affordable development. By intentionally excluding some 
smaller sites from compliance with some of the more stringent standards, potentially undue 
cost burdens are minimized. Where possible, proportionality was written into the standards to 
better support infill housing development. Based on this consideration, the proposed 
amendments are consistent with the above policy. 
 
Envision Eugene Comprehensive Plan 
The Envision Eugene Comprehensive Plan does not contain any policies relevant to this 
amendment.  
 
Applicable Refinement Plans 
To the extent that polices in the refinement plans constitute mandatory approval criteria a 

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 6CC Agenda - Page 118



Exhibit C 

Page 12 of 19 

discussion of the policies that appear to be relevant is provided below. The plan the policy is 
from is listed in (bold) followed by policies in (italics) and discussion.  
 
Fairmount-University of Oregon Special Area:  
The following policy appears to be the only policy applicable to the proposed amendments.  
Policies – East Campus Area: 

4. The City shall encourage the University to develop its high – and medium-density 
residential units with concern for adequate parking and appropriate parking solutions, 
regard for landscaping, and consideration of the impact on the rest of the neighborhood.  

 
To the extent that the above policy places responsibility of mitigating impacts to the existing 
neighborhood by new development, the proposed amendments are supported by this policy. In 
particular, the proposed transition standards will mitigate the potential visual and spatial 
impacts of higher intensity development located near lower intensity development.  
 
Jefferson Far West Refinement Plan (1983) 
The following residential policies in the Land Use Element of the plan lend general support for 
the amendment: 
 
Residential 

2.0 Increase the opportunity for home ownership within the area.  
3.0 Encourage a mixture of housing densities and types to allow a diverse population 
group to live in the area. 
15. Low-to Medium-Density Residential Area:   
This area shall be recognized as a low- to medium-density residential area. The City shall 
explore methods of encouraging an increase in residential density yet maintaining the 
character of the area. Residential densities beyond ten units per acre shall be allowed, 
subject to an approved block plan or rezoning to R-2 in conjunction with a site review.  
 

One of the main goals of the proposed amendments is to remove barriers to housing by 
reassessing the City’s clear and objective zoning regulations. The proposed amendments are 
intended to provide clarity and promote efficiency in development, which can open up the 
possibility for providing denser housing and/or a wider variety of housing types.  More available 
housing stock should increase the opportunity for home ownership within the plan area. To the 
extent that the amendments will increase development, the proposed transition standards 
reduce impacts of higher intensity development when located near property zoned for lower 
intensity development. Additionally, the updates to the tree preservation and removal 
standards set thresholds which reduce barriers for smaller in-fill sites which has the potential to 
increase density. Based on these findings, the proposed amendments are consistent with the 
policies above.  
 
Laurel Hill Plan (1974) 
The following policies from the Laurel Hill Plan appear applicable to the proposed code 
amendments: 
 

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 6CC Agenda - Page 119



Exhibit C 

Page 13 of 19 

Laurel Hill Valley 
6. The Laurel Hill Plan supports the South Hills Study standards. In general, alteration of
land contours shall be minimized to retain views of natural features and retain as much
of the forested atmosphere as possible. Aside from purely aesthetic considerations, these
hillsides demand care in development because the topsoil is thin and the water runoff is
rapid. Proposed developments shall respect the above considerations. The Valley hillside
policy applies to all land with an average slope, from toe to crest, of 15 percent or
greater. (A 15-percent slope is one in which the land rises 15 feet per 100 horizontal
feet.)

a. If, in the opinion of the responsible City official, an adverse conservation or
geological condition exists upon a parcel of land proposed for subdivision, or
before any major hillside clearing, excavation, fill or construction is
contemplated, the requirements of the Uniform Building Code, Chapter 70,
Excavation and Grading, and those sections of the code relative to foundation
design may be invoked.

b. Considerable latitude shall be allowed the developer in shaping, depth, and
required street frontages of lots where it is necessary to preserve terrain.

The above policy can be summarized as providing direction to preserve the aesthetics of 
hillsides, and functions of soil on hillsides. The proposed amendments update tree preservation 
standards to provide more specific standards, and also add more stringent tree preservation 
requirements for properties located at a higher elevation. The amendments also update the 
requirements for geological and geotechnical analysis, adding additional standards with the 
intent of identifying any existing or potential stability issues on a given site. Both updates are 
supportive of the above policy because they add more robust standards that can be applied to 
applications filed under clear and objective criteria.  

River Road-Santa Clara Urban Facilities Plan (1987) 
The following policies from the River Road-Santa Clara Urban Facilities Plan appear to be 
applicable to the proposed code amendments: 

1.0 Recognize and maintain the predominately low-density residential character of the 
area consistent with the Metropolitan Plan. 

2.0  Provide diversity of housing types in the area. Available techniques include 
encouraging reinvestment and rehabilitation of existing housing stock and the use 
of development standards that provide for cluster or planned unit development. 

One of the main goals of the proposed amendments is to remove barriers to housing by 
reassessing the City’s clear and objective zoning regulations. The proposed amendments are 
intended to provide clarity and promote efficiency in development, which can open up the 
possibility for providing denser housing and/or a wider variety of housing types.  More available 
housing stock should increase the opportunity for home ownership within the plan area. To the 
extent that the amendments will increase development, the proposed transition standards 
reduce impacts of higher intensity development when located near property zoned for lower 
intensity development.  

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 6CC Agenda - Page 120



Exhibit C 

Page 14 of 19 

1.0 Maintain and enhance the compatibility of adjacent land uses through the use of 
appropriate buffering mechanisms, such as landscaping standards. 

The proposed addition of transition standards reduces the potential impact of higher intensity 
development located near lower intensity development through the use of setbacks, 
landscaping, or height restrictions.  

South Hills Study:  
The following policies from the South Hills Study appear to be applicable to the proposed code 
amendments: 

Ridgeline Park 
1.To insure preservation of those areas most visibly a part of the entire community.
2. To protect areas of high biological value in order to provide for the continued health of
native wildlife and vegetation.
3. To insure provision of recreational areas in close proximity to major concentrations of
population.
4. To provide connective trails between major recreational areas.
5. To provide connective passageways for wildlife between important biological
preserves
6. To contribute to Eugene’s evergreen forest edge; and
7. To provide an open space area as a buffer between the intensive level or urban
development occurring within the urban service area and the rural level of development
occurring outside the urban service area.

Specific Recommendations (Policies) 
That all vacant property above an elevation of 901’ be preserved from an intensive level of 
development, subject to the following exceptions:  

1. Development of individual residences on existing lots; and
2. Development under planned unit development procedures when it can be
demonstrated that a proposed development is consistent with the purposes of this
section.

Development Standards 
1.To insure the responsiveness of specific developments to the aggregate of known
natural factors;
2. To insure maximum preservation of the natural character of the south hills; and
3. To insure adequate review of public consequence of development in the south hills.

Specific recommendations (Policies) 
That planned unit development procedures shall be utilized for the following purposes: 

1. To encourage clustering of development in areas characterized by:
a. Shallowest slopes;
b. Lowest elevations;
c. Least amount of vegetation;
d. Least amount of visual impact.

2. To encourage preservation as open space those areas characterized by:

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 6CC Agenda - Page 121



Exhibit C 

Page 15 of 19 

a. Intermediate and steep slopes;
b. Higher elevations;
c. Significant amounts of vegetation;
d. Significant visual impact.

That adequate review of both on-site and off-site impact of any development by a qualified 
engineering geologist occur under any of the following conditions: 

1. All formations
Soil depth of 40 inches and above
Slopes of 30 Percent and above

2. Basalt flows
Soil depth of 40 inches and above
Slopes of 30 percent and above

3. Eugene Formation
Soil depth of 40 inches and above
Slopes of 20 percent to 30 percent

4. Basalt flows
Soil depth of 20 inches to 40 inches
Slopes of 30 percent and above

5. Eugene Formation
Soil depth of 20 inches to 40 inches
Slopes of 30 percent and above

The policies of the South Hills Study can generally be summarized as intending to protect views, 
protect access to parks, preserve natural features, and encourage cluster development.  

EC 9.6710 Geological and Geotechnical Analysis 
Proposed development on properties with slopes equal to or greater than 5% are already 
subject to geotechnical standards, consistent with South Hills Study policy direction. The 
proposed amendments to the geotechnical standards update the requirements for geological 
analysis to address additional factors such as slope, soil types, open drainage ways, and fill. The 
standards also require the use of a newly adopted Landslide Hazard Map to identify and 
address potential deep landslide risks. Taken together, the updates raise the bar for 
developments to consider potential impacts of geological constraints, consistent with South 
Hills Study policy direction.  

EC 9.6885 Tree Preservation and Removal Standards 
The updated tree preservation standards provide a variety of options for compliance and set a 
higher bar for tree preservation for areas within the South Hills Study area. By raising the 
required amount of preservation to 50%, rather than 40%, and not allowing mitigation for areas 
over 900 feet in elevation the updated tree preservation standards demonstrate consideration 
of the policy intent to protect views in the South Hills Study area. Previously, a tentative PUD 
applicant utilizing clear and objective standards for property located within the South Hills 
Study was only required to consider tree preservation. The new tree preservation standards will 
ensure some preservation as well as provide mitigation for some of the trees to be removed. As 
such, the proposed standards are better suited to accomplish the policy intent described by the 

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 6CC Agenda - Page 122



Exhibit C 

Page 16 of 19 

South Hills Study. For additional discussion of tree preservation standards, see the findings 
provided under Statewide Planning Goal 10.  
 
EC 9.8325 Tentative Planned Unit Development Approval Criteria 
The approval criteria at EC 9.8325(12) (now EC 9.8325(10)) sets specific requirements for 
development within the South Hills Study area. The proposed updates to those criteria allow 
additional development of homes at an elevation over 900 feet, while maintaining consistency 
with the policy direction that all vacant property above an elevation of 901’ be preserved from 
an “intensive” level of development. This will be achieved by limiting density to 2.5 units per 
gross acre (which is consistent with assumptions made in the 2017 Envision Eugene Residential 
Land Supply Study based on historical levels of development achieved on property above 900 
feet elevation within the South Hills Study area) and limiting the development footprint in this 
area. The addition of more stringent standards for tree preservation and geotechnical analysis 
both align with the intent of the South Hills Study in a way that is more impactful than simply 
placing a numerical limit on development.  
 
The amendments also remove EC 9.8325(12)(c) which required clustering of developments. This 
criterion attempted to address, in a clear and objective manner, the South Hills Study policy to 
encourage clustering of development in areas characterized by: shallowest slopes; lowest 
elevations; least amount of vegetation; and least amount of visual impact and to encourage 
preservation as open space those areas characterized by: intermediate and steep slopes; higher 
elevations; significant amounts of vegetation; significant visual impact. Much of the policy 
language is inherently subjective and difficult to translate directly into clear and objective 
standards. To the extent that the clustering accomplished the intent of the South Hills Study 
policies, the result was leaving large portions (at least 40%) of a site as undeveloped common 
open space. This heavy-handed preservation requirement was identified as one of the main 
disincentives for applicants to use the existing clear and objective track for PUDs. As noted 
above, the standards for geological analysis and tree preservation are becoming more 
stringent, in part to better address some of the policy goals and direction in a more holistic 
way. While the specific approval criterion that requires clustering of development is being 
removed, the impact of better tree preservation/mitigation standards and development design 
that takes geological issues into consideration continue to encourage clustering of development 
in areas with shallowest slopes, lowest elevations, least amount of vegetation, and least 
amount of visual impact; and encourage preservation of open space in areas characterized by 
intermediate and steep slopes, higher elevations, significant amounts of vegetation, and 
significant visual impact.  
 
Based on the above findings and consideration of the amendments as a package, the 
amendments are consistent with the South Hills Study.  
 
Walnut Station Specific Area Plan: 
The following policy from the Walnut Station Specific Area Plan appears applicable to the 
proposed code amendments: 
 

(c) Impacts to any adjacent residentially zoned properties are minimized. Design 

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 6CC Agenda - Page 123



Exhibit C 

Page 17 of 19 

elements for this purpose may include treatment of building massing, setbacks, 
stepbacks, screening and landscaping. 
 

The above policy does not distinguish between commercial or residential development and the 
impact it would have on adjacent residentially zoned properties. To the extent that the policy is 
applicable to the proposed amendments, it provides support for the addition of the transition 
standards.  The transition standards address height, setback area, and generally promote 
compatibility between higher intensity residential and lower density residential development. 
Based on these findings, the proposed amendments are consistent with the policy listed above. 
For a more in-depth discussion of the transition standards, see the findings under Statewide 
Planning Goal 10.  
 
Whiteaker Plan 
The following policies from the Whiteaker Plan appear to be applicable to the proposed code 
amendment: 

 
Policy 7: Review existing City Code regulations on height, setback, area, and lot coverage 
to strengthen compatibility between existing residential development and new 
commercial, industrial, medium and high-density residential developments, and the 
positive impact of new development on the public streetscape.  
 

To the extent that the policy is applicable to the proposed amendments, it provides support for 
the addition of the transition standards.  The transition standards address height, setback area, 
and generally promote compatibility between higher intensity residential and lower density 
residential development. Based on these findings, the proposed amendments are consistent 
with the above policy. For a more in-depth discussion of the transition standards, see the 
findings under Statewide Planning Goal 10. 
 
Willakenzie Area Plan (1992) 
The following policies from the Willakenzie Area Plan appear to be applicable to the proposed 
code amendments:  
 
Land Use Policies and Proposed Actions  

 
3. Retain existing significant vegetation whenever possible to provide buffering between 
residential and nonresidential uses, as well as between low-density and higher density 
residential uses.  
5. Site review procedures or special development standards shall be considered for 
properties which abut or face one another, when the uses permitted on those properties 
are potentially incompatible.   
6. Minimize land use conflicts by promoting compatibility between low-density and 
higher-density residential land uses as well as between residential and nonresidential 
land uses.  

 
In the context of the proposed amendments, the above policies provide support for the 

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 6CC Agenda - Page 124



Exhibit C 

Page 18 of 19 

addition of transition standards and modifications to tree standards. The above policies discuss 
compatibility between uses, and different intensities of residential development. Because the 
transitions standards are intended to increase compatibility between higher intensity 
residential and lower intensity residential development the standards are consistent with the 
intent of the policies. In addition to promoting compatibility, the tree preservation standards 
will promote the retention of significant vegetation which is consistent with Policy 3 provided 
above. 

Residential Policies and Proposed Actions 
1. Maintain the existing low-density residential character of existing Willakenzie
neighborhoods, while recognizing the need to provide housing for all income groups in
the City.
8. Promote compatibility between low-density residential land uses and medium- to
high-density residential land uses.

To the extent that the above policies are applicable to the proposed amendments, they provide 
general support for the transition standards. Because the transition standards require setbacks, 
landscaping, or limitations to building height they promote compatibility between higher 
density residential uses and lower density residential uses. Based on these findings, the 
proposed amendments are consistent with the policies listed above.  

Harlow Policies and Proposed Actions: 
1. The City shall require that medium-density residential development on the east side of
Coburg Road, between Tandy Turn and Bailey Lane and between Adkins Street and
Elysium Avenue, is developed in a manner that promotes compatibility between low-
density and medium-density uses, enhances the visual character of Coburg Road (a
designated Entrance Corridor), and limits traffic conflicts on Coburg Road and local
streets.

The above policy requires that new development be compatible with existing lower density 
developments. The proposed amendments add transition standards which require setbacks, 
landscaping, or limitations to building height which are all techniques that can be used to 
promote compatibility. A more robust discussion of the specifics of the transition standards is 
provided in the discussion under Statewide Planning Goal 10. Based on these findings, the 
proposed amendments are consistent with the policy listed above. 

Willagillespie Subarea Policies and Proposed Actions: 
2. The City shall encourage infilling of large, vacant residential parcels and residential
parcels which have not yet been developed to their fullest capacity in order to
accomplish compact urban growth form.

The intent of the proposed amendments is to increase clarity, efficiency, and effectiveness for 
applications subject to the clear and objective approval criteria. The proposed amendments are 
intended to support the development of housing and do this by updating and removing existing 
standards that created barriers to development. For a full discussion of the updated and 

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 6CC Agenda - Page 125



Exhibit C 

Page 19 of 19 

removed standards and criteria see the discussion under Statewide Planning Goal 10. Based on 
these findings, the amendments are consistent with the above policy.  

3. The City shall ensure that new development and redevelopment occurring on the
flanks of the Gillespie Butte will be accomplished in a manner that affords maximum
preservation of the natural character of the butte, and is sensitive to topographic
constrains, soil conditions, views to and from the butte, and the need for public access to
the butte.

To the extent that the above policy is applicable, it provides support for the proposed updates 
to tree preservation and geological and geotechnical analysis standards. The proposed 
amendments are consistent with the intent of the above policy.  

Chase Gardens Subarea Policies and Proposed Actions: 
2. New development abutting historic properties shall provide an effective transition
between urban and rural uses, recognizing the high density nature of the new
development. New buildings facing the historic ensemble from across Garden Way
should emulate the architectural forms and materials of the historic residences.

The above policy is concerned with the impacts of new development to historic properties. To 
the extent that historic properties are zoned for lower density residential uses, the proposed 
transition standards are consistent with this policy. The options to limit building height, set 
buildings back, and provide landscaping amenities will minimize the impacts of new higher 
density development on existing abutting lower density development. For a more robust 
description of the transition standards, see the findings under Statewide Planning Goal 10 
above. 

10. Development shall be sensitive to the area’s natural features, such as mature trees,
windrows, remnant orchards, and the Q Street Channel.

The proposed amendments include updates to tree preservation standards which will provide 
additional clarity and specificity on how to address existing on-site vegetation. In the context of 
the above policy, new development will have clear standards for identifying trees for 
preservation or mitigation. The proposed tree standards are consistent with the above policy. 
For a more robust description of the tree preservation standards, see discussion under 
Statewide Planning Goal 10 above. 

Based on the findings above, the proposed amendments are consistent with the applicable 
adopted refinement plans.  

(3) The amendment is consistent with EC 9.3020 Criteria for Establishment of an S Special
Area Zone, in the case of establishment of a special area zone.

The amendments do not establish a special area zone.  Therefore, this criterion does not apply. 

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 6CC Agenda - Page 126



CLEAR & OBJECTIVE HOUSING: APPROVAL CRITERIA UPDATE 

Date (Webcast Link) Description 

May 8, 2018 Project overview and introduction with Planning Commission 

May 30, 2018 Project overview and introduction with City Council 

June 25, 2018 Planning Commission approval of the Public Involvement Plan 

November 19, 2018 
Planning Commission review of Batch 1 recommendations (maintenance/less complex 
issues) 

November 26, 2018 Planning Commission summary of feedback on Batch 1 items 

November 26, 2018 City Council advanced Batch 1 recommendations to draft code writing 

December 10, 2018 Planning Commission review of Batch 2 recommendations (more complex issues) 

December 11, 2018 Planning Commission review of Batch 2 recommendations 

January 23, 2019 City Council advanced Batch 2 recommendations to draft code writing 

February 4, 2019 Planning Commission review of Batch 1 draft code amendments 

April 16, 2019 Planning Commission review of Batch 2 draft code amendments (1 of 3) 

April 23, 2019 Planning Commission review of Batch 2 draft code amendments (2 of 3) 

April 30, 2019 Planning Commission review of Batch 2 draft code amendments (3 of 3) 

May 20, 2019 City Council advanced draft code amendments to formal adoption 

January 27, 2020 Planning Commission follow up items based on Council motion (1 of 2) 

February 11, 2020 Planning Commission follow up items based on Council motion (2 of 2) 

October 20, 2020 Planning Commission public hearing 

November 23, 2020 Planning Commission deliberations (1 of 5) 

December 8, 2020 Planning Commission deliberations (2 of 5) 

December 21, 2020 Planning Commission deliberations (3 of 5) 

January 25, 2021 Planning Commission deliberations (4 of 5) 

February 9, 2021 Planning Commission deliberations (5 of 5) 

Planning Commission and City Council Meetings 

Attachment C

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 6CC Agenda - Page 127

https://www.eugene-or.gov/AgendaCenter/ViewFile/Agenda/_05082018-879
https://eugene.ompnetwork.org/embed/sessions/38872/eugene-city-council-wednesday-work-session-may-30-2018
https://www.eugene-or.gov/AgendaCenter/Planning-Commission-2/?#05082018-879
https://www.eugene-or.gov/AgendaCenter/ViewFile/Agenda/_11192018-919
https://eugene.ompnetwork.org/embed/sessions/93670/eugene-city-council-work-session-november-26-2018
https://eugene.ompnetwork.org/embed/sessions/93670/eugene-city-council-work-session-november-26-2018
https://eugene.ompnetwork.org/embed/sessions/94885/eugene-planning-commission-meeting-december-10-2018
https://eugene.ompnetwork.org/embed/sessions/94886/eugene-planning-commission-meeting-december-11-2018
https://eugene.ompnetwork.org/embed/sessions/97347/eugene-city-council-wednesday-work-session-january-23-2019
https://eugene.ompnetwork.org/embed/sessions/98152/eugene-planning-commission-evening-meeting-february-4-2019
https://www.eugene-or.gov/AgendaCenter/ViewFile/Agenda/_04162019-945
https://ompnetwork.s3-us-west-2.amazonaws.com/sites/134/documents/epc_pm_agenda_04-23-19.pdf?GQbVuO5KbyQf4oTDZ92L6SoAKv3lEYLs
https://ompnetwork.s3-us-west-2.amazonaws.com/sites/134/documents/epc_pm_agenda_04-30-19.pdf?yB7LR.qiidvwWTEjq.g7Is5tX5SLPGDv
https://ompnetwork.s3-us-west-2.amazonaws.com/sites/134/documents/agenda_packet_5-20-19_work_session_-_post.pdf?Sa.AbmImG_hcecBxs0FRiTzpO3na5axL
https://eugene.ompnetwork.org/embed/sessions/126979/eugene-planning-commission-meeting-january-27-2020
https://eugene.ompnetwork.org/embed/sessions/128299/eugene-planning-commission-meeting-february-11-2020
https://eugene.ompnetwork.org/embed/sessions/156262/eugene-planning-commission-public-hearing-october-20-2020?default_tab=1
https://eugene.ompnetwork.org/embed/sessions/158206/eugene-planning-commission-meeting-november-23-2020
https://eugene.ompnetwork.org/embed/sessions/159072/eugene-planning-commission-meeting-december-8-2020?default_tab=1
https://eugene.ompnetwork.org/sessions/159768/eugene-planning-commission-meeting-december-21-2020
https://eugene.ompnetwork.org/embed/sessions/161260/eugene-planning-commission-meeting-january-25-2021?default_tab=1
https://eugene.ompnetwork.org/embed/sessions/162323/eugene-planning-commission-meeting-february-9-2021?default_tab=1


Attachment D

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 6CC Agenda - Page 128



2018 – (June) Council approves land use code amendments related to SB 1051 and Accessory Dwelling 
Units 

2019 – (June) State passes House Bill 2001  
2019 – (May) Council advances the Clear & Objective Update to formal adoption with direction to first 

return to Planning Commission to revisit/refine a few items 
2020 – (January) Council approves land use code amendments related to Accessory Dwellings (on 

remand) 
2020 – (March) Pandemic starts, housing crisis intensifies 
2020 – (May) Middle Housing Code Amendments project gets underway to implement HB 2001 
2021 – Planning Commission recommends adoption of draft Clear & Objective code amendments 

As you can see, there has been significant activity around improving our local housing scenario over the course 
of the Clear & Objective project timeline. This means that the urgency of the crisis may not have been as well 
recognized during earlier phases of the project, as they are today, in the final adoption phase. We see it as part 
of our role to help ensure consistency among various projects and initiatives converging on common goals. To 
this end, the Planning Commission has prioritized housing development while weighing the balance of these 
changes with other development goals. This does not imply that our evaluation wholly elevates one goal 
(housing) above all others, but rather the weight we place on whether a proposed change will have a positive 
impact on increasing housing opportunities. Throughout the project, staff and the commission have respected 
the substantial public input that went into shaping the project goals and direction from the beginning.  The 
commission closely reviewed the public input and appreciates the countless hours that the community 
contributed to the process from high-level brainstorming to detailed analysis of proposed code language. Due 
to the community’s diverse and immense contributions, and the timing of the project that allowed the 
commission to incorporate the intent of HB 2001, the revisions before you today are greatly improved from 
earlier versions. 

Contextually, with all other factors being equal, we strive to make choices geared at removing barriers and 
actively seek to avoid adding new ones. In cases where early outreach identified the need to improve the 
effectiveness of our regulations, the commission carefully reviewed any new or stricter requirements. We 
worked with staff to make sure their applicability was targeted and limited to projects related to the original 
concern and provided flexibility within the confines of the clear and objective statutory requirements where 
possible. The proposed tree preservation standards and transition standards stand out as prime examples, as 
they are significant improvements over the current clear and objective tracks.  Not surprisingly, the majority of 
our time in deliberations was spent thoroughly and thoughtfully refining these new requirements in an effort 
to find the right balance between promoting our natural resources and livability goals without creating barriers 
to the development of housing. Taken on whole, we believe the proposed amendments constitute changes to 
the land use application review processes and approval criteria that, if implemented, will improve efficiency 
and remove barriers.  

Beginning with the public hearing in October, today’s meeting was the culmination of six Planning Commission 
meetings dedicated to consideration of the proposed Clear & Objective amendments. It is our honor to 
provide such a meaningful service to our community and it is our hope that our commitment to the City’s 
housing goals, and diligent approach to our review, show in the evolution of the amendments we formally 
recommend you approve. The housing crisis is a multifaceted problem – one that will require a multitude of 
partial solutions. We are confident that the proposed amendments, which we unanimously recommend for 
adoption, are one of these partial solutions that will provide some relief by making the development of 
housing easier.  

Thank you for the opportunity to provide guidance on this important project and its outcomes. We appreciate 
and value collaborating with you on this and future projects that look to remove barriers to housing 
affordability, availability, and diversity. 

March 8, 2021, Meeting - Item 6CC Agenda - Page 129


	Agenda 3-8-21 Meeting
	Item 2A - Minutes
	Item 2A - Attachments
	Item 2B - Tentative Agenda
	Item 2B - Attachment
	Item 2C - Ordinance on Withdrawalof Annexed Properties
	Item 2C - Attachment
	Item 3 - Public Forum
	Item 4 - FY22-FY27 Capital Improvement Program
	Item 5 - Central Eugene Industrial Park Zone Change
	Item 5 - Attachments
	Item 6 - Ordinance on Clear & Objective Standards
	Item 6 - Attachments



